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SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2020
The directors present their strategic report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Strategy and business model

SQCOTEC UK Limited's (SOCOTEC) mission is to be its customers' 'Leading partner for technical expertise and service'. SOCOTEC is the UK's leading provider
of testing, inspection and compliance services, providing comprehensive solutions to a broad range of clients operating in the Infrastructure, Environment &
Safety, Environmental Science, Building Control and Fire Safety sectors.

SOCOTEC offers an unrivalled range of services in the market to more than 5,000 customers in the UK. We pride ourselves on our dient-focussed approach ang
continual drive to exceed expectations through our technical expertise. service operational excellence, and technological innovation.

The business structures its operating activities as follows, aligned to the key market sectors served:

i) Infrastructure

SOCOTEC offers the widest range of testing, inspection and compliance services in the UK to every stage in the infrastructure project lifecycle. From preliminary
geotechnical investigations and soil investigations ta foundation and materials testing, our services ptay a vital role in delivering projects safely, on time and to
specification and budget.

ii) Envirohment & Safety

SOCOTECG delivers peace of mind by helping clients conform to health and safety obligations and manage environmental risks. The Company works with a range
of clients including faciliies managers, property owners and property managers to maintain and optimise their compliance. Services include: emissions
monitoring, envirenmental monitoring. occupational hygiene, health & safety, asbestos management & consulting. water consultancy and water equipment.

ity Environmental Science
A bespoke suite of testing, inspection and compliance tests, to support energy and waste projects and businesses nationwide: including solid fuel, power
generation & transmissien testing, environmental and specialist chemistry analysis, nuclear chemistry and lubricant testing,

iv} Building Control & Fire Safety

A registered provider of certified buillding regufations approval (via Socetec Building Control Limited, which is a subsidiary of SCCOTEC UK Limited), to clients
ranging from individuals to global multinationals. Alsc a provider of Fire Engineering, Fire Risk Assessment, Fire Safety and Built Environment consultancy
services.

Review of the business

Clearly, like most businesses, 2020 was significantly affected by Covid-19. A detailed commentary of the impact of the pandemic on the Company and its
respense to it is provided in the Directors Report. While SOCOTEC's business model is very resliant and its services are underpinned by regulation and
legislation, which continues, in the eary part of the pandemic. mainly quarter 2 of 2020, many client sites were temporarily closed and some of SOCOTEC's
services could nat be carried out until the sites re-opened and our services could continue in a safe manner. Clearly this had an adverse impact on tumover and
profitability, mainly in quarter 2, although the impact did continue for longer in a number of businesses. However, the resiliance of the SQCOTEC business model
and preadth and range of its services were evident as the business was broadly in line with s trading budget for the the other three quarters of the 2020 financial
year including the pasitive impact of some large infrastructure projects and the need for clients to continue to comply with regulations and legislation. The
Company's balance sheet and liquidity remained very strong threugheout the pandemic through strong management of working capital and careful timing of capital
investment. The Company generated £87.9m of revenue in 2020, representing 2.6% of revenue growth, in spite of Covid-12, Brexit and related uncertainty.
Underlying EBITDA, before management charges from tne Company's parent company and exceptional items, decreased by 2.8% to £10.5m, refiecting the mix of
work, with a strong pipeline of government sponsored Infrastructure projects, offsetting the impact from reduced commaercial construction, delayed project starts in
other areas and delays to regular work due to Covid-19.

The Company continued to invest in its client service, technical and operaticnal solutions, further developing its technical staff training and development with a
new location in the Midlands with the opening of Socctec Central. The location 1s ideally situated to frain our Infrastructure technical staff and also o service many
large infrastructure opportunities in the Midlands and surrounding regions. SCCOTEC is also investing heavily in upgrading its Environmental Science facilities
near Burton-on-Trent including new state of the art equipment for our growing business and improved working environment for cur valued staff. This project
continues into 2021, In total SOCOTEC invested £4.0m in capital projects in the year to support its sustainable growth objectives,

On 1 April 2021, the Fire Engineering, Fire Risk Assessment and Consuitancy businesses were transferred from the subsidiaries of Trenton Fire Limited and
Butler & Young Consultants Limited to SOCOTEC UK Limited as part of the rebranding of these business to SOCCOTEC. While the Butler & Young Building
control business will remain in its own subsidiary the name was changed te Socotec Building Control Limited (from Butler & Young Approved Ingpectors Limited)
on 1 April 2021, The rebranding has allowed these businesses to maximise the oppartunities available from being part of the wider SOCOTEC Group.

The Company's results for the year and financial position at the balance sheet date are shown in the attached financial statements and have been prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP). including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (FRS 131).

The key financial measurements that are used and reported against within the businesses are amongst others, revenue. gross profit margins, earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, management charges and exceptional or non-recurring items (adjusted EBITDA), Capital Expenditure, Days Sales
Qutstanding (DSO) and cash generation.

The cperating loss for 2020 after depreciation, non-recurring items, and group management charges totalled £0.2 million {2019: profit £0.8 million), which 18 in
line with management’s expectations. Net assets at the year end were £33.9m {2019: £37.7m),

In addition to financial parameters. the business also uses a number of other key performance indicators (*KPIs") to monitor performance in delivering its strategic
targets; these include: full time employees (FTE) fee eamer and asset utilisation, productivity. reporting turnaround times, new business development, health and
safety compliance and employee engagement and retention.

Exceptional costs of £1.1m were incurred during the year (201%: £1.1m) of which £nd {2019 £0.7m}, related te the asset impaiment relating to companies
liquidated as part of the Group's rationalisation of non-trading entities. £1.1m related to the restructuring of the Company’s operations {2019: £0.4m).



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 {continued}

Outlook

The Company and its subdidiaries provide an industry leading range of Inspection, Testing and Compliance services to a broad range of end markets and
customers. It plans to deliver future growth in the United Kingdom, through a combinaticn of organic market share gain in its key sectors, adding breadth and
strength to #s proposition and through complementary bolt on acquisitions, which add to the breadth and scale of SOCOTEC's client proposition. it will support
this by investment in iis people, equipment and technology providing best in class customer service to the high quality erganisations it works with and by building
scale and technically innovative solutions to increasingly complex and changing requirements, 1o increase its business with existing customers and atiract new
customers. So far in 2021 the Company has made or committed to significant further investment in its technolegy, its IT infrastructure, the development of its
people, its labaratory environments, and its property portfolic to continue its growth plan and enhancements fo client service. The impact to the business of the
Covid-19 pandemic is explained above and on page 7.

Market environment
The business operates across a number of sectors and markets, including:

s Indrastructure. infrastructure materials testing: ground investigation and cther gectechnical services; foundation and asset monitoring to customers in the
utilities. road, rail and general infrastructure, refurbishment and maintenance sectors, including main contractors, lecal authorities and leading consultant
engineers.

+» Envircnment & Safety. compliance related services. mainly in the built environment, including legionetla monitoring. water safety treatments and advice,
health & safety advice, air and emmissions monitoring, asbestos surveys and monitoring, and occupational hygiene assessment to a broad range of clients in
the private. public and local authority sectors, including industrial and commercial property cwners. properly managers and facilities managers.

« Envircnemntal Science testing, inspection and compliance services, to suppert laberatory analysis for waste companies and energy suppliers, power
generators and transmission and distribution networks, as well as marine, water and soil testing, energy regulationr compliance and risk management

« Building Control & Fire Safety. certified buillding regulations approval (Approved inspectors), fire safety, risk assessment and safety consultancy services, to
clients ranging from mndividuals to large multinationat businesses. During the year these services were provided through 100% owned subsidianes as
oppoesed to directly In Socotec UK Limited.

The majarity of the Company’s sales are made in the UK. The cutlook for the 'K economy remains relatively positive despite the significant impact of Covid-18
and Brexit with large scale infrastructure investment continuing with the country showing signs of benefiting from reduced political uncertainty now that Brexit has
been delivered. The government remains committed to modernising UK Infrastructure and reducing regional inequalities through projects ke "High Speed 2.
helping te sustain this.

The bread portfolio of custamers. services and markets served, reduces the company’s expesure to risk associated with individual customers or markets.

Trends and factors affecting future development, perfermance or position

The Company's future development is dependent on a number of factors, including: macro-economic conditions; public and private investment and spending
levels: legislative changes, the operational peformance of the business; business development; retention and growth of business with customers, staff retention.
the competitor landscape, strategic acquisitions and en-going availability of skilled technically knowlegeable staff and availability of financial resources from
investors.

investment review

In 2020, the Company has invested significantly in the new Socotec Central site near Coventry developing new high specification facilities to service our growing
Infrastructure division particularly for the Materials Testing and Ground Iinvestigation and Geotechnical businesses. The investment includes new state-of-the-art
laberatories and related equipment, new offices and, critically, a new training and development operation, all of which is designed to continue to improve our client
service, Alsa, during the year, there was further investment in and development of the LIMS (Laboratory Information Management Systems) infrastructure in its
Environmental Science businesses, additional deployment of Mobile Date Capture devices and development of new Mobile applications to improve operational
efficiency. There has been further investment in IT systems focussed on enhancing customer service levels, providing more of the client base with online and real
time access to their projects and data.

Essential contractual or other arrangements
The Company has a number of important relationships with its customers, suppliers and bankers. These relationships are managed by key Managers and
Directors.

The primary operational resources utilised by the business are its skilled and valued workforce, its technical equipment, both mobile and in labaratories, its
portfolio of leasehold properties and its fleet of vehicles. The largest and most significant property is the site of the Company's laboratory facilities and head office
at Bretby, near Burton Upon Trent which is on a long-term lease with mere than S years remaining.

A range of other resources are procured, e.g. consumables, vehicles, plant & equipment and |T services, however no critical dependencies have been identified
on any supplier.

Principal risk and uncertainties

Like most companies, the Company is exposed to a variety of risks and actively manages them through its risk management procedures. While risk cannot be
eliminated altogether. actions are taken to mitigate them wherever possible through the establishment and testing of key controls. As a matter of policy, the
Company does not enter into speculative activities.

The key risks that the Company is exposed to include but are not limited to

. managing and working with the impact of the COVID-1¢ pandemic;

. damage to the Company's reputation as a leader in testing and ingpecton senices or loss of accreditations;

. exposure to uninsured envirenmental or commercial claims and liabilities;

. damage to the environment or to the heafth and safety of employees, customers or the public resulting from the company's activities;
. compliance with relevant laws and regulations;

. not maintaining technical knowledge and skills;

. data breaches or cyber attacks;

. loss of use of intellectual preperty:

. loss of use or breakdown of key physical assets, including plant, property er equipment:

In accordance with its risk management guidelines, the Company raises awareness of business risks at all operational board levels, and encourages all
management teams to assess and minimise risk through the implernentation and testing of key controls.

The Company ensures that it has appropriate insurance cover in respect of all matenal liability and claims risks,

Where the larger wider Group is exposed to financial risks due fo movements in exchange and interest rates, these are mitigated at the ultimate parent company

level as appropriate.
3



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
Section 172 (1} Statement

The Board of SOCOTEC UK Limited ("the Company”) consider that it has adhered to the requirements of Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act") and
has. in good faith, acted in a way that it considers would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholders as & whole and,
in doing so, it has had regard to and recognised the importance of considering all stakeholders and other matters (as set aut in 5.172{1)(a-f} of the Act} in its
decision-making.

This statement provides details of Section 172 compliance and how the Beard considers the potential impacts on stakeholders in its decision making processes.
SOCOTEC UK is a long-term business with long-term relationships with its shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers, regulators and other stakeholders and

consequently it takes a leng-term view in its decision making process. The Beard's business plan is designed to have a long-term beneficial impact on the
Company and its stakeholders and to contribute te its long term success by cantinuing to deltiver high quality services. The plan includes:

. Strategic investment in staff training and development. eguipment and IT capabilities to complement and improve our service offering 1o our
customers,

. Strategic acquisitions that will help the wider SOCOTEC UK Group provide 1o our customers a broader range of high quality services and further
help them comply with relevant standards, lcgislation and ragulation,

. Retaining, and where relevant, attaining relevant accreditations to enable us to continue to service current customer needs and also increase cur
senvice portfolio;

. Continuing to operate with tight budgetary contrals and to high technical standards to ensure we continue to provide our customers with high

quality testing, inspection and compliance services at competitive and efficient prices.

Our employees are fundamental to the delivery of our plan. We aim to be a responsible, flexible and good employer in our approach to the pay and benefits our
employees receive and their working environment and practices. The health, safety and well-being of cur employees and our custemer's staff is our highest
priority in the way we do business. We also plan fo ensure that our staff are continually trained te enable them to continue te fulfil their responsibilities and develop
their careers, and provide the services expected and required by our clients.

Our plan prioritises organic growth of existing services and businesses together with key strateqic acquisitions which compliment and add to our current
businesses, service offerings and client base. This is driven by cross-selling and up-selling services 1o existing clients and bringing new clients into the group. To
do this we will continue to develop and maintain streng client relations by maintaining and improving our high level of service, communication and engagement.

We also act ethically, responsibly and fairly in how we engage with our customers. suppliers and other stakehclders, including the wider communities that we
work in across the UK and co-operate and comply fully with our regulators; all of whom are integral to the successful delivery of our plan. The business respects
and contributes to the many communities it works in. Employees actively participate in charity events both locally and nationally. with a company chasen charity
nominated by employees each year. In addition, the company and its employees are actively involved in local community initiatives, including the provision of free
of charge services to support them.

We fully recognise that our day-to-day operations can impact on the envirenment and we are committed to managing. manitering and, where appropriate,
reducing our impact through assessing and improving our long term environmental performance using an Environmental Management System. Through 1SO
14001 we employ systems and procedures that ensure the Company's compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and other requirements relating to the
environment. Sustainability considerations are fully integrated in our plan and business decision making processes and we carry out environmental supply chain
management to encourage suppliers to also adopt environmentally sound practices.

The Beard of Directors’ intention is to always behave responsibly and to ensure that management operate the business n a respensible and ethical manner,
cperating within the high standards of businass conduct within our areas of expertise. In deing so. this will contribute to the delivery of eur plan and the long-term
success of the business and its stakeholders.



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Stroamlined Encrgy 8 Carbon Reporting (SECR}

Overall emissions have fallen for the reporting period due o a shift towards home woerking and reduction in travel. Ve have continued to invest in technologies to
measure gur environmental performance including energy monitoring equipment, vehicle telematics and installation of half hourly metering systems.

Organisational Boundary

A financial control approach has been taken,

Operational Scopes

We have measured our scope 1, 2 and certain scope 3 emissions. We have net yet estimated our percentage exclusions. For the categories reported, exclusions
mate in respect of the accounting process have been accounted for in our methodaology.

Figures are as follows for the calendar year:

2020
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (KWh) 21,875,828
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh)
Gas 2290798
Electricity 5,287,213
Transport fuel” 14,297,817
Scope 1 - Direct emissions - emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Gas consumption 421
Transport (Fleet)’ 3,484
Total Scope 1 3,805
Scope 2 - Indirect emissions from purchased energy - emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Purchased electricity 1,233
Scope 3 -indirect emissions from use of third party transport - emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 141
Transmission & Distribution Losses 106
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 5,385
Intensity ratio Tonnes CO2e per £m revenue 685.0

Intensity measurement
Cur chosen intensity measurement ratio 15 total emissions in metric tonnes CC2e per £m revenue.

Quantification and reporting methodolegy

We have followed the 2019 HM Gavernment Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and the
2020 UK Government's Cenversien Factors for Company Reporting.

+ Figures include an undetermined amount of energy/carbon attributed to personal mileage from purchased fuel which remain to be gquanitified.

This report was approved by the board and signed on its bebalf by:

y j:ﬁ;

J R Goodwin
Director
06 August 2021



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2020
The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Results and dividends
The results before taxation. amounted to a loss of £1.07m (2019: profit of £1.97m).
There has been no payment or declaration of a dividend for the year or the previous year.

Insurance of directors and Indemnity

As permitted by the Artickes of Association, the Directors have the bepefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying third party indemnity provisicn as defined by Section
234 of the Companies Act 2008, The indemnity was in force throughout the last financial year and is currently in force. The Company also purchased and maintained
throughout the financial year Directors’ and Officers’ hability insurance in respect of self and its directors.

Directors
The directors of the Company wno were in office during the year and up 1o the date of signing the financial statements were:

N L Detchepare (appointed 29 March 2021)
N Sieeth (resigned 30 June 2021)

P J HB8all

1 Sparks {resigned 31 March 2021)

A C Bolter (resigned 17 April 2020)

D J Coen {appeinted 16 January 2020)

J MacFariane {appointed 16 January 2020}
J R Goodwin {appointed 24 March 2020)

J Murphy (resigned 16 January 2020)

C Wallis {appointed 12 March 2021)

Employees and social responsibliities

The Company is committed ta conducting its business in an ethical and socially responsible and sustainable manner. We commit to acting in an envirenmentally
responsible manner in regard to our operations, products and services and we expect all our suppliers, employees and partners to act in the same manner. The
Company's Section 172{1) statement is provided in the sirategic report.

The Company seeks o involve its employees in its corporate objectives, plans and performance and in other relevant matters of interest to employees through
vaneus communication methods, including regular employee meetings and an empleyee newsletier. The directors consider there to be a good relationship between
employees and management. The Company is an equal apportunities employer and does not discriminate in the recruitment and promotion of staff, including
appiicants whe are disabled. If an employee becomes disabled it is the policy, wherever practicable, to provide continued employment.

The Company systematically provides employees with information on matters of concern te them, consulting them or their representatives regularly, so that their
views can be taken into account when making decisions that are likely to affect their interests. Employee invelvement in the Company 15 encouraged, as achieving a
common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and other economic facters affecting the Company plays a majer role in maintaining its performance.
The Company encourages the involvement of employees by means of strategy meeting sessions, announcements via the intranet and e-matls as appropriate.

Disabled / Equality policy

The Gompany is committed to employment policies, which foljow best practice, based on equal opportunities for all employees, irrespective of sex, race, colour,
disabilty or marital status. The Company gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment for disabled persens, having regard to their particular
aptitudes and abilties. Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued employment and training, career development and prometion of gisabled persons
employed by the Company. If memkers of staff become disabled, the Company continues employment where practical, either in the same or an alternative position.
with appropriate retraining being given if necessary.

Financial risk management

The Company's objective regarding financial risk management is to keep exposure of price risk, credit risk. exchange risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, cash flow
and liquidriy risk to an acceptable level. In the opinion of the directors the exposure to financial risks has been assessed and at present is deemed tc be at an
acceptable level for the Company’s cperations.

Future Developments

The Company continues fo work clasely with its shareholser, Holding Socotec SAS, a Company incorporated in France, to strategically develop its position as a
leading provider of technical, testing, inspection and compliance services, offering a broad and increasing range of services fo its customers. This will continue to be
led through both organic growth and by strategic acquisitions which fit closely with its strategy and that of the wider Socotec global Group. Fulure developments are
discussed further in the strategic report.

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting {SECR)

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting is included in the Strategic report.



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 {continued)

The COVID-18 Coronavlrus pandemic

Like most businesses world-wide, SOCOTEC UK was impacted by the global Covid-18 pandemic in the year to Decemnber 2020. Our immediate priority was
maintaining a safe working enviranment for our ¢lients and our dedicated workforce, many of whom provide critical services and who were required to continue te
work, whether at client sites, at our own locations or at home. There were some early disruptions to our cperations in order to make sure we had appropriate
procedures put in place to provide Covid secure working environments. While many of our critical services continued threughout the majority of the year, during the
pandemic, others were either delayed or cancelled due to the necessary restrictions and some of our clients’ sites not being open for our work to be carried out. This
varied across our many businesses and services. The months of April, May and June were the most significantly affected during the first “lockdown” period in the UK.
After these moenths, more client sites opened and our operational activity increased as our critical testing, inspection and cerification-based services were required on
these sites. By the final quarter of the year, activity levels were broadly in line with the budget we set at the start of the year in most of our businesses. So farin 2021,
and during the third Covid "lockdown” in January to March 2021, operational activity levels continued largely as normal, with some exceptions, mainly in the
construction sector, where activity has marginally dropped. During the period, we accelerated our investment in digital technologies to maintain continuity of services
to our clients and also to provide flexible working arrangerments for our valued staff. Our ability to successfully deliver eritical services to our clients during the
pandemic in 2020 and now in 2021 has been due to the hard work, support and flexibility of cur dedicated work force, their families, our clients and supply ¢hain and
we thank everyone for their support. While the restrictions had an impact on turnover and profitability in 2020 (mest netably in April, May and June) due to work being
delayed or cancelled, through streng working capital and capital expenditure management, the Company's liquidity, cash flow perfformance and balance sheet
remained very strong throughout the 2020 year as is the case now in 2021, The Company is confident that it can continue to operate largely as normal during 2021.
Curing the year and into 2021, the Company has continued to meet its financial, contractual and regulatary obligations, again, a reflection of the financial and
operational resilience of the business model. The Directors are, however, aware that the pandemic has caused eccnomic challenges, and uncertainty, and that living
and cperating with the pandemic and managing its risks will be a long-term requirement. The Directors continue to actively analyse the consequences whilst directing
the Company’s respense to mitigate these ongoing risks.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law the directors have prepared the financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (Unfed Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework”. and applicable law}.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing the financial statements. the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

s state whether applcable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 161, have been followed, subject te any matenal departures dischsed and
explained in the financial statements;

+ Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will centinue in business.

The directors are responsicle for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them te ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The directors are alse responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved.
« sofar as the director is aware. there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditers are unaware; and
« they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that

the company's auditors are aware of that information.

This report was approved by the beard and signed on its behalf by:

o

J R Goodwin
Director
06 August 2021



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Independent auditer's report to the members of SOCOTEC UK Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial stateiments of Secolec UK Limited (the  compans ™) for the year ended 31 December 2020 which comprise the Income Matement,
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity and notes to the financial statements, inctuding a summary of
significant accounting pelicies. The financial reporning framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and Unned Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Thsclosure Framework™ {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In our opmmion. the financial statements
*  pived true and far view of the state of the company s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of 1ts result for the year then ended,
«  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. and

®  have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companics Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (1K) and applicable law Our responsibilitics under those standards are
further desenbed in the Auditor's respensibilitics for the audit of the financial statements section of our report We are independent of the company in accerdance with
e etheal tequuements that are relevant to our audit of the hinancial statements in the UK. including the FRC s Ethical Standard, and we have tulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our epinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financal statements, we have coneluded that the directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 15
appropriate

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matenal uncertainnes relating to events o1 conditions that. individually or collectively. may cast
significant doubt on the company's ability te continuc as a going concern for a penied of at least twelve months from when the financial statemenis are authorised for
1s5ue

Gur respansibilities and the responsibilitivs of the directors with respect 1a going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report,

Other information

The other information comprises the mnormation included m the annual repont, other than the financial statements and out auditor’ s report thercon. The dircetars are
responsible for the other informatien contaied within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and. except to
the extent otherwise exphcetly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In conneetion with our audit of the financial statcments. our responsibility 18 1o read the other infonmation and, in doing so. consider whether the other information 15
materially meensistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated If we identify such
material inconsistencics or apparent material misslatements, we are required to determine whether there 15 a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information 11, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a matenial nusstatement of this other mformation.
we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opiion, based on the work undertaken 1n the course of the audit
* the information given 1n the Strategic Report and the Directors” Report for the financial vear for which the tinancial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
financial statenents: and

«  the Strategic Report and the Directors  Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

[n hght of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit. we have net identified matenal misstatements m
the Stratzgic Report or the Lirectors” Report

We have nothing to report i1n respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requircs us 1o Teport to you it, in our opimton

¢ adequate accounting records have not been hept. or returns adeguate for our audit hasv e not been received from branches not visited by us. or
#  the tinancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
+  certain disclesures of directors” remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* e have not received all the information and explanations we requare for our audit



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Independent auditor's report to the members of SOCOTEC UK Limited (Continued)

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully 10 the directors  responsibilities statement set out on page 7. the directers are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
heing satisiied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directers determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financiat statements
that are free from matenial misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

In preparing the financial statements. the directors are responsible for assessing the compan s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors enther intend to liquidate the company or o cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our oblectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal musstatement. whether due to fraud or error.
and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that meludes our oprmon Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance. but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs {UK ) will always detect 2 material nussiatement when 11 exists Misstatements can arise from fraud or crror and arc considered matenial if.
indivicually or 1n the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

Irregularities. including traud, are instances of non-comphance with laws and regulations We design procedures in hine with our responsibilitics. outhined above, to
detect material misstatements 1o respect of nregularities, including fraud. Based on our understanding of the Company and its industry, we 1dentified that the principal
risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to UK tax legislation, anti-bribery, corruption and fraud, money laundering and we considered the extent to
which non-comphiance might have a matenal effect on the linancial statements We also considered those laws and regulations that bave a direct impact on the
preparation of the {inancial statements. such as the Companies Act 2006

We evaluvated the directors” and management’s incentives angd opportuninies tor fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of
controls} and determined that the principal risks were related te posting manual jeurnal entnes 10 manipulate inancial performance. management bias through
Judgements and assumphions (n significant accounting estimates, in particular 1n relation to valuation of the investment in subsicharies,

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to those identified risks. including non-compliance with laws and regulations {irregulartics) and fraud that are matenal
to the financial statements Our audit procedures meluded but were not hmited to

s Ihscussing with the directors and management their palicies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations:
e Commuucating 1denlified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team and remaming alert to any indications of non-comphiance threughout our audit:

¢ Considering the risk of acts by the company which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations. including fraud

Qur audit procedures n relation to fraud included but were not hmited to.

»  Making enquines of the directors and management on whether they had knowledge of any actual. suspected or alleged fraud,
»  (Gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud.

s Discussimg amongst the engagement team the 1isks of fraud. and

»  Addressing the nisks of fraud through management evernde of contrels by performung journal entry testing

There are inherent imitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibihty for the prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud
rests with management As with any audit, there remained a nsh of non-detection ol wregularties. as these may involve collusion. forpery, intentional omissions.
misrepresentations or the override of internal controls.

A further description ef our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
wway tTe org uk/auditorsrespansibibitics This description forms part of our auditer’s repert

Use of the audit report

This report 15 made solely to the company”s members as a body m accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 o the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state 1o the company 's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitted by law. we do not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than the company and the compam s members as a body for our audst work,
for this report. or for the epinions we have formed

il

Pichard Karmel faug &, 2021 1651 SM1+10

Richard Karme! { Senior Stahtory Auditor) for and on hehalf of Mazars LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statory Auditor

Tower Bridge House
St Katharnne™s Way
London

EIW 1DD

Date  AUE 6, 2021



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Note Year ended 31

Year ended 31

December 2020 December 2019
Continuing Activities £'000 £'000
Revenue 4 97,861 95,426
Cost of sales {63,783) (60 BB3)
Gross profit 34,108 34,563
Other operating income 2,010 -
Administrative expenses {including exceptional costs of £1,083k (2019: £1,126k)) (36,341) (33,810
Operating (loss) / profit 5 [223) 753
EBIIDA hetore exceptional items and management charges 10,5611 10,813
Dividend received from related parties - 1,950
{Loss) 7 Proflt before interest and taxation {223) 2,703
Finance costs 8 {843) {732)
Net finance costs {843) {732)
{Loss) ! Prefit before Income tax {1,0686) 1,971
Incemne tax credit / (expense)} 9 292 {320)
{Loss) ! Profit for the financlal year {774) 1,651

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

{Loss} ! Prefit for the financial year
Other comprehensive (expense) / income:
Items that will not he reclasslified to profit or loss

Actuarial (losses} / gains on retirement benefit ckligations

Movement on deferred tax relating to pension deficit

Other comprehensive (expense) f Income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive {expense} / income for the year

The notes on pages 13 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

All amounts relate to continuing operations.

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

December 2020 Decernber 2019

Note £'000 £000
(774} 1,661

9,19 {3,832) (1,036)
2] 732 197
{3,100 (839)

{3,874} 812




SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2020

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Property. plant and eguipment
Investments

Right of use assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Creditors: amounts falling due within ane year

Net current {liabllties) / assets

Total assets less current llabilities

Creditors: amounts fafling due after more than cne year

Pravisions for liabilities
Retirement benefit abligations
Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Revaluation reserve
Capnal redemption reserve
Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ funds

The notes on pages 13 to 28 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

10
1"
13
12

14
15

17
18
19

20

As at 31 December

As at 31 December

2020 2019
£'000 £000
16,861 17,216
10,670 8,700
14,802 15617
14,757 11,282
57,090 53,815
481 562
55,014 63,239
9,449 2,992
64,944 66,793
{68,800) (71,280)
(3,856} (4,487)
53,234 49,328
(12,427} {8.588)
(838) (648}
(6,118} {2,367)
33,851 37,725
262 262
28,981 28,981
4,608 8,482
33,851 37,725

The financial statements on pages 10 to 28 were approved and authorised for issue by the board on 6 August 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

J R Goodwin
Director
06 August 2021

Registered number: 02880501



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Called up Capital Total

share Revaluation redemption  Retained Shareholders

capital reserve 4 reserve ; €arnings , funds

£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 January 201% - 262 28,981 7,670 36,913

Profit for the financial year - - - 1.651 1.851
Other comprehensive income for the year:

Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations, net of deferred tax - - - {839} (839}

Total comprehensive income - - - 812 81z

Balance as at 31 December 2019 - 262 26,987 8,482 37,725

Called up Capital Total

share Revaluation redemption  Retained Shareholders

capital reserve reserve , earnings funds

£'000 £'000 £900 £'000 £900

Bajance at 1 January 2020 - 262 28,981 £.482 37,725

Loss for the financial year - - - (774) (774)
Other comprehensive income for the year:

Actuarial loss on retirement benefit ebligations, net of deferred tax - - - (3,700) (3,100)

Total comprehensive income - - - (3.874) (3.874)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 - 262 28,981 4,608 33,851

The notes on pages 13 to 28 are an integral part of these financial statements.
" The revaluation reserve arose as part of a number of property revaluations during 1998 by the previous owners.
2 The capital redemption reserve arose as part of a resiructuring by a Company’s related company ESG Investments Limited.

* Retained earnings represents accumulated comprehensive income / (expense) for the year and prior periods plus transfers from the revaluation reserve relating o
depreciation realised on revaluations less dividends paid.



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

1

General Information

SOCOTEC UK Limited (“the Company"} provides inspection, testing and compliance services to customers operating in the Infrastructure, Environment & Safety,
Environmental Science and Building Control and Fire Safety sectors in particular,

The Company is a private limited Company, incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdem (Registration number 02880501). The address of the registered
office 15 SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park, Ashby Road, Burton Upon Trent, DE15 0YZ.

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out befow. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented. unless etherwise stated,

The Company's financial statements are presented in sterfing. which is also the Company's functional curency.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of SOCOTEC UK Limited have been prepared in accerdance with Financial Reporting Standard 101, 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’
{FRS 101}, The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of land and
hildings and in arenrdance with the Companies Act 2006,

The directors have assessed the impact of global businass uncertainty arising from the Cowvid-19 virus. The directors have reviewed the financial circumstances of
the Company and are satisfied that the Company will be able to satisfy its financial ebligations for at least 12 months from the date of signature of the financial
statements, which have been prepared on the geing concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 101 requires the use of certain critical accounting esbmates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Althaugh these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the
amount, event or actien, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.
The following exemptions fram the requirements of IFRS have teen applied in the preparation of these financial statements, in accordance with FRS 101,
-1FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures’
- Paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13, 'Fair value measurement’ (disclesure of valuation technigues and inputs used for fair value measurement of assets and liabilities)
- The following paragraphs of [AS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements".

- paragraph 10 {d}, {statement of cash flows)

- paragraph 16 (statement of cempliance with all IFRS)

- paragraphs 38A—-38B — Detail in respect of minimum comparative information

- paragraphs 38C-380 — Additional comparative infermation

- paragraphs 40A—400 — Detail in respect of a third balance sheet presented on a change in accounting policy, retrospective restatement or reclassification

- paragraph 111 {cash flow statement infermation)

- paragraph 79(a)(iv) — A recencilation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning anc end of the period for each cass of shares need not be
presented for prior periods, and

- paragraphs 134—136— Information on an entity's objectives, policles and processes for managing capital (qualitative and quantitative).
- l1AS 7, 'Statement of cash flows'
- |AS 8 "Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors', paragraphs 30-31 - Disclasure in respect of new standards and interpretations that have
been issued but which are not yet effective.

Consolidation exemption

The Company is a whotly ewned subsidiary of Inspicic Environmental Services Group Limited and of its ultimate parent company Soco 1 SAS. It is included in the
consolidated financial statements of Soco 1 SAS which are available as discussed in nate 24, Therefore the Company is exempt by virtue of section 400 of the
Caompanies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements. The address of the ultimate parent's registered office is 5 Place des
Freres Montgolfier, 78182 Guyancourt, France. These financial statements are the Campany's separate financial staternents.

Revenue recognition

Revenue. which is stated net of value added tax. represents net amounts recetvable from customers for the value of the services supplied in the ordinary course of
the Company's activities.

Revenue from inspections and tests is recognised when the service s either complete, or is at a stage of completion where it can be measured reliably.

Revenue arising from long term contracis represents the proportion of the centract value applicable to the aclivity in the period ascertained by reference to the
application for payments on each contract. Estimates of total contract costs and revenues are reviewed periedically and the cumulative effects of changes are
recognised in the period in which they are identified. All known or anticipated losses are provided in full as soon as they are foreseen. Revenues recognised in
excess of amounts billed, less applicable payments on account, are classified as accruad incomefcontract asset.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales represents amount paid for direct costs of running the laboratories, approprate salaries, together with amounts due to external third parties for
inspection services and other costs directly related to revenue.

EBITDA

EBITDA is revenue and earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation. management charges and excepticnals.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation,

The cost of property, plant and equipment is the purchase cost, together with any incidental costs of acquisition.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis so as to wnte off the cost of tangible fixed assets less their estimated residuat values, over the expected useful
economic lives of the assels concerned. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:

Vehicles, plant and equipment - 3to 10 years
Short leasehold improvements - Shorter of lease term or useful life
Freehald and long leasehold buildings - 30 years

Freehold and long leasehold land is not depreciated. Short leasehold assets are depreciated over the penod of the lease.

Property. plant & equipment are tested for impairment when a triggering event occurs by comparing the carrying value of the asset being lested with its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount 15 the higher of the net selling price and value in use. Value in use is calculated on the basis of estimated future cash flows. using
a discount rate appropriate to the Company.



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
2 Principal accounting policies {continued)

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Finance leases

Leasing agreements that transfer to the Company substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of an asset {"finance leases") are treated as if the asset
has been purchased outright. The assets are included in the balance sheet as non-current assets on the lease commencement date at the lower of fair value
and present value of minimum lease payments. The capital element of the leasing commitments is shown as obligations under finance |eases, The jease rentals
are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements. The capital element is applied to reduce the outstanding obligation and the inferest ejement is charged
against profit 0 as to give a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance outstanding at each accounting period. Assets held under finance leases
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the useful lives of equivalent owned assets.

Qperating leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or containg a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a
carresponding kability with respect to all iease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12
months or less} and leases of low value assets. For these leases. the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

The lease liability is intially measured at the present valug of the lease payments that are not paid at the cemmencement date, discontinued by using the rate
implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determingd, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate, When the incremental borrowing rate is used it
15 the rate of interest that the lessee would have 1o pay to borrew aver a similar item and with a similar security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value ta the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

Goodwill

Goodwilt arising represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary, asseciate or jeintly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.

Goodwil is recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually by assessing the recoverable amount of each operating segment to which the
goodwill relates. The recoverable amount is higher of fair value less costs to sell, and value in use. When the recoverable amount of the operating segment is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment is recognised. Any imparment 8 recognised immediately in the income statement and is not subsequently
reversed. On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets

Purchased intangible assets including but not limited to computer software, brands, technology and customer relationships are capitalised when acquired as
part of a business combination or otherwise purchased and amortised on a straight ne basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life of
intangible assets is summarised below

Brands 25 years
Customer relationships 10 years
Knowhow & technology 15 years
Sofiware 3 years

Software costs consist primarily of externally incurred development costs, rights to use purchased software and separately identifiable staff costs.

Intangibles are tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on intangibles are not reversed.

Taxation
The tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, and any adjustment in respect of the prior year. The charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date, where transactions or events that
result in an obligation to pay moere tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.

A deferred lax asset is recognised as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely
than not that there will be suitable taxable profits against which 1o recover carried forward tax losses and from which the future reversal of undertying timing
differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax |s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilties are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset.
fnventorles

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first in first out method. Net realisable value 15 the estimated
selling price, less applicable seling expenses. Inventories represent goods held for resale, and certain consumables used by the Company. In general
consumables are written off to cost of sakes in the period in which they are purchased unless there is a clear one to one relationship between the use of the
consumable and the revenue generated from the service,



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
2 Principal accounting policies {continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer} they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shori-term liquid investments with eriginal maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Creditors

Creditors are obligations fo pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Creditors are recognised initially al fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Employee beneflts

a} Defined contribution scheme

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge in the profit and less account represenis the ameunts payable by the
Company to the fund in respect of the year.

b} Defined benefit scheme

The Company operates iwo defined benefit schames. The amounts charged to operating profit in respect of these schemes are current service costs and any
gains and losses on setflements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs within administrative expenses. Past service cests are charged to
operating profit immediately if the benefits have vested. If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised by equal annual instalments over
the period until vesting occurs.

The liability recognised n the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pensien plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 2t the end of the
reparting perod less the fair value of the plan asset. The defined benefit abligation is calculated annually by independent actuanies using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit abligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quaiity
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms of maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on governments bonds are used.

The amount charged or credited to finance costs is a net interest amount calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liabilty or
asset. Actuarial gains and losses net of deferred tax are recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Company has a present legal or constructive obligaticn
as a result of past events: it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Reorganisation provisions comprise lease term penalties and empleyee termination payments. Provisiens are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations. the likelihcod that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. Provision is recognised even if the outflow with respect to any cne item included in the same class of otligations may be small.

Pravisions are measured at present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of meney and the risks epecific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time s recognised as
interest expense.

Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency cof the primary economic environment in which the relevant part of the entity
operates (the “functional currency™). The financial statements are presented in 'pounds Sterling' (E) which is also the Company's functional currency.
Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at spot rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilties denominated in foreign currencies, which are held at the year-end, are taken to the
income statement within administrative expenses.

Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are not explicitly addressed under FRS101. Accordingly, the Company has defined exceptional tems as those items of sufficient financial
significance to be disclosed separately in order to assist in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved.

Exceptional items are those which, in the judgement of the directors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size er incidence in order to obtain a
proper understanding of the financial infermation, such as but not limited to, the impairment of goodwill, impairment of assets, restructuring costs and acquisition
activities.

15



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 {continued)

2

Principal accounting policies {continued)
Future pronouncements and changes adopted in the year

The application of the other revised Interpretations, Amendments and Annual Improvemnents has nat had any material impact on the amounts reported for the
current and prior years but may affect the accounting far future transactions or arrangements.

Government grants

Grants are acccunted under the accruals model as permitted by FRS 1G1. Grants relating to expenditure on tangible fixed assets are creaited to profit or loss
at the same rate as the depreciation en the assets te which the grant relates, The deferred element of grants is included in creditors as deferred income.

Grants of a revenue nature are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the same pericd as the related expenditure.

Critical estimates and judgements in applying the entity's accounting policies

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actuat
results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment te the carrying amounts of assets and liabilties within
the next financial year are addressed below,

Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions about
the future |.e. life expectancy, salary increases. asset valuations and discount rates. These assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends. Any
changes in these assumpticns will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations and assets.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value
of estimated future cash outflows expected te be required to settie the pensicn obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company
considers the interest rates of high-guality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid. and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension lability.

Cther key assumptions for pension obligations and assets are based in part on current marke! conditions. Additional information 1s disclosed in note 19.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations {which are dealt with separately above). that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recegnised in financial statements.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Company tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated above. The recoverable amounts
of cash generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations and fair value less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of
estimates. See note 10 for the carrying amount of goodwill.

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment

The annual depreciation charge fer property, plant and equipment is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic Itves and residual values of the
assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on
technalogical advancement. fulure investments, economic dlilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See note 11 for the carrying amount of the
preperly, plant and equipment, and note 2 for the useful economic lives of each class of assets.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Company makes an estimate of the recoveraple value of trade and other debtors. When assessing impairment of trade and other receivables,
management considers factors inckiding the credit rating of the receivable, the ageing profile of recevables and historical experience, See note 15 for the net
carrying amount of receivables and associated impairment provision.

Provisions against accrued income and retentions

The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of accrued income and retentions. When assessing accrued income and retentions management
considers factors including operational management expertise together with historical experiences. See ncte 15 for the net carrying amount of accrued
income and retentions.

Recoverability of amounts owed by group undertakings

The recoverability of amounts owed by group undertakings has been assessed by the Company. The balances are all considered to be recoverable when
considering the group as a whole. See note 15 for the carrying amount owed by group undertakings.



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 {continued)

4 Revenue

Revenue arises from the Company's activities as outlined in the Strategic report. There is one category of revenue being to provide testing, inspecticn and
compliance services. The analysis of revenue by geographical area of destination is shown below:

2020 2018
£000 £'000
United Kingdom 97,123 93.925
Europe 698 1,289
Rest of the World 40 212
97,861 95,426
5 Operating (loss) / profit
2020 2019
£'000 £000
Qperating (loss) / profit is stated after charging / (crediting):
Wages and salaries 36,602 36.806
Social security costs 3,630 3,571
Pension costs - defined contributicn plans {note 15) 1,063 1,022
Pension costs - defined benefit plans (note 19) 81 324
Staff costs 41,576 41,820
(Profit) on disposal of fixed assels {222) {6
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 10) 1,192 1,190
Depreciation of tangible assets (note 11) 2,581 2577
Depreciation of right of use assets {hote 12} 3,977 3,491
Operating lease charges (note 12} 54 57
Foreign exchange loss / {gain) on trade receivables & (87)
Audit fees payable to the company's auditors 82 70
Non audit fees incurred 83 57
Management charges paid to parent company 1,800 1676
Amount of inventaries recognised as an expense 497 1,448
6 Exceptional items
Exceplional items congist of the following items:
2020 201e
£'000 £000
Impairment of Goodwill on liquidated eompanies . 570
Refinancing costs and sale costs - B9
Restructuring activities 1,083 387
1,083 1,128

During the year exceptional cash costs relating to property leases totalling £285 000 have been accounted for under IFRS 16 and therefore within interest
and depreciation for the year the following amounts relate tc empty properlies, £53,000 of interest and £247 000 of depreciation.



SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 {continued)

7

Directors and employees

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the company during the year was:

2020 2019
Number Number

By actlvity
Inspection & testing 928 989
Marketing and distribution 42 45
Management and administratien 32 317
1,282 1,351

Total emolumernts paid to key management personnel (statutory and other directors) was £1,498,000 (2019 £1,358,000) with £50,000 (2019: £54,000)
contributions intc defined contribution pension schemes,

Total emoluments paid to directors were £1,252.000 (2019 £949,000} will) £43,000 {2019, £40,000) contributions into aenned contribution pension

schemes. The emoluments of the highest paid director was £302,000 (2019; £275,000) with £nil (2019 Enil} being paid to defined contribution pension
schemes. Pensich contributions intc personal pension schemes were payable in respect of two (2019: two) executive directors.

Key management personnel are those persons having autherity for planning, directing and contreling the activities of the company, including all directors
of SOCOTEC UK Limited.

Net finance costs

Finance expense 2020 2019

£099 £'000
Other interest {52) -
Interest payatle on loans from group companies {5) (18)
Net cost of pest-empleyment benefits {note 19) {46) (40)
Interest expense on Lease liabilties (note 12) {740) (674)
Total finance expense 1843) (732)
Net flnance cost 2020 2018

£'000 £'000
interest expense {843) (732)
Net finance expense {843) (732)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 {continued)

9 Income tax expense

Current Income tax:

UK corporation current tax on (loss) /7 profit for the year
Total current tax [credit) / charge

Deferred tax:

Transfer of 45EE Lta

Crigination and reversal of timing differences
Adjustments in respect of prier year

Impact of changes in tax rate

Total deferred tax

Tax on (loss} / profit

Other comprehensive income jtems;
QOrigination and reversal of timing differences
Deferred {ax - prior year

2020 2018
£'000 £000
(66 115
{66) 115
- 14
(&7) 185
] 25
(148} {19
(226} 205
{292) 320
(753} (197
21 -
{732) (197)

A reconciliation of the income tax charge applicable to the accounting {loss) / profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to total taxation for the

Company is as follows:

{Loss} / Profit before taxation
(Loss} / Profit before taxation multiplied by the standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2018 19%)

Effects of:

Adjustments in respect of prior year
Expenses naot deductible for tax purposes
IFRS 16 adjustment

Tax rate changes

Other

Dividend received not faxable

Effects of group relief/ other reliefs

Total Tax {credit) / expense

Factors affecting current and future tax charges

2020 2019
£000 £000
{1,066} 1,971
(203} 375
{57} 74
85 182
65 80
(148) (19}
10 -

- (371}

{44} -
(292) 320

The UK Government announced in the 2021 budget that from 1 April 2023, the rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdem will increase from 18% to
25%. Companies with profit of £50,00C or less will continue to be taxed at 19%, which is a new small profits rate. Where taxabie profits are between

£50,000 and £250,000, the higher 25% rate will apply but with a marginal relief applying as profits increase,

Deferred taxation
At 31 December 2020, the company had deferred tax assets as follows:

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January

Charge to the income statement

Adjustment in respect of prior years

Deferred tax charge in Other Comprehensive Income
Total deferred tax asset recognised {nhote 15}

Tax effect of timing differences because of

Fixed Assets
Temporary differences trading
Total deferred tax asset

2020 201e
£'000 £000
1,521 1.515

236 {168)

9) {25)

732 197

2,480 1,621
Amount Amount
recognised  recognised

2020 2019
£'000 £000

779 825
1,701 696
2 480 1,521

The Directars consider it is mere likely than not that there will be sufficient taxable profiis in the future sufficient to realise the deferred tax assets, and

therefore the asset has been racognised in the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

10 Intangible assets
Customer Knowhow and

Goodwill Brands Relationships tachnology Software Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2019 22711 301 5,408 3.181 4,485 36 086
Additions - - - - 770 770
Transfer from investments on hive up of business 3123 - - - - 3,123
At 31 December 2019 25834 301 5,408 3.181 5.235 39959
Additions - - - - 152 182
As 31 December 2020 26,479 301 5,408 3,181 5,427 40,796
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2019 11767 121 4772 1,873 2,920 21.553
Amartisation for the year {nate &) - 12 420 174 584 1190
At 31 December 2019 11.767 133 5192 2.147 3,504 22,743
Amortsation for the year {note &) - 12 200 209 77 1,192
At 31 December 2020 11,767 14§ 5,392 2,356 4,275 23,935
Net book value
As at 31 December 2019 14,087 188 218 1034 1,731 17,216
As at 31 December 2020 14,712 1586 16 828 1,162 18,861

The total goodwill and other intangibles of £16.9m (2019 £17.2m) is allocated to the Campany's single cash generabing unit (CGU) this being for envirenmental services.

Intangible assets amartisation 1s recorded in administrative expenses in the income statement

Al the year end an impairment test on goodwill was carned out in accordance with FRS101. The impairment analysis 1s based on future projected after tax cash flows to 2025,
followed by a terminal earmings estimate amount. based on a growth rale to perpetuty of 2 0% per annum These forecasts reflect management's prudent consideration of future
performance in terms of sales margins and market conditons agamnst histeric trading experience and the recoverable amounts of the assets are supported by vaiue in use based
on a discount rate of 8.14%, the discount rate applied to fulure post tax cash flows, Sensitivity analysis has been performed as part of the imparment test by reducing the growth
rate to 0.5%. at this lower level of growth the carrying value of intangibles is still suppertable. The Directars beheve the carrying valua of intangibles 1s supportable

11 Property, plant and equipment
Fraehold and

fong leasehold
land and Short leasehold Vehicles, Plant

buildings Improvernents  and Equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost
A1 January 2018 3,002 856 27,868 31824
Additions. - - 2,195 2195
Bisposals - - {99) {89
At 31 December 2013 3,002 856 29,963 33.921
Addiions - - 3873 3,873
Disposals - - {1.227) {1.227}
At 31 December 2020 3,002 956 32,708 36,667
Accumulated depreclation
At 1 January 2018 981 755 18,994 21730
Charge for the year 52 a4 2,492 2,577
Disposals - - (87) {87)
At 31 December 2019 1,033 789 22,398 24220
Charge for the year 52 34 2,495 2581
Disposals - - 1804} (BO4}
At 31 December 2020 1,085 823 24,089 25,997
Net book value at 31 December 2020 1,917 133 8,620 10,670
Net hoak value at 31 December 2018 1,969 167 7.564 8700
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

12

13

14

Leases

Right-of-use assets

Cost

At 1 January 2020
Addtons

Lease madificatien
Disposals

At 31 December 2020
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2020
Charge far year (note 5)
Disposals

At 31 December 2019

Net book value at 31 December 2020

Net book value at 31 December 2019

Ameunts recognised in profit or loss

Interest expense on leass habilties (note B)
Expenses relating te short-term {eases {note 5)

Investments

Cost and net boek value

At1 January 2018

Additions in the year

Deferred consideration adjustment
Imparrment in the year

At 31 December 2020

Copiers &

Vehicles Property Computers Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'900
2845 10.944 581 14,370
3,701 3.876 - 7577

- (125} - {125)
619) (811 - 710
5,927 14,604 581 21,112
1,091 1,882 105 3,088
1.622 2,293 142 3977
(618 {81} - (710}
2,094 4,014 247 €,355
3,833 10,590 334 14,757
1,754 9,052 476 11,282

2020

E£'000

740

54
Subsidiary
undertakings
£'000
15,617

5

(645)

(175)
14,802

*The Company indirectly halds 100% cf the share capital of SOCOTEC Asbestos Limited, SOCOTEC Monitering UK Limited. Constructionfit Monitering Lt¢, Butier & Young
Group Limited SQCOTEC Building Controf Limited (fermerly Butler & Young Approved Inspecters Limited. Buller & Young Consultants Limited, Trenton Fire Limited, Butler
& Young Residential Limited and Butler & Young Irelana Limited.

The Campany halds 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Geotech Specialists Limited, a campany incorparated in [reland.

Investments in group undertakings are stated at cost. The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by ther underlying net assets,

The foliowing 1s a fist of subsidiaries at 31 Decernber 2020

Geotech Specialists Limited
Heniey Water Limited
Waterwise Technology Limited
Scientfics Lmited

SOCOTEC Asbestos Limited®
4see Ltd

Calyx Investments Limited
SOCOTEC Monitoring UK Limited”
Constructionfit Menitormg Lt
Butier & Young Holdings Limted
Butter & Young Group Limited*
SOCOTEC Building Centrol
Limited {formerly Butler & Young
Approved Inspectors Limited}”
Butler & Young Cansultants
Limited™

Trenten Fire Limited”

Butler & Young Residential
Limited*

Butler & Young Ireland Limited®

Inventories

Registered Office

Carrewswood, Castlemartyr Co Cork. Ireland

SOCOTEC House Brethy Business Park,
Ashby Road, Burton Upon Trent, DE15 OYZ
SOCOTEC House Bretby Business Park.
Ashby Road, Burton Upon Trent, DE15 OYZ
SOCOTEC House Bretby Business Park,
Ashby Road, Burton Upon Trent, DE15 OYZ
SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park,
Ashby Road, Burton Upon Trent, DE15 OYZ
SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park.
Ashby Road, Burton Upon Trent. DE15 Y2
SQCOTEC Hause, Bretby Business Fark,
Ashby Road. Burton Upon Trent, DE15 OYZ
SOCOTEC Hause, Brelby Business Park,
Ashby Road, Burton Upon Trent. DE15 0YZ
SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park,
Ashby Road, Burton Upen Trent. DE15 0v2
SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park,
Ashby Road, Burton Upon Trent. DE15 02
SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park,
Ashby Road, Burtan Upen Trent, DE15 OYZ
SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park,
Ashby Road. Burton Upon Trent. DE15 OYZ

SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park,
Ashby Read, Burton Upen Trent, DE15 OYZ
SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park,
Ashby Road. Burton Upon Trent, DE15 OYZ
SOCOTEC House, Bretby Business Park,
Ashby Road, Burton Upon Trent, DE15 0YZ
38 Main Street, Swords, Co Dublkn, ireland

(Goads held for resale and certain consumables

The difference between the purchase pnce and replacement cost 1s not matenal.

Inventories are stated after provisions of £ml {2019 £rul).

Class of
shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrchinary
COrdinary
Ordinary

COrdinary

Crdinary

Crdinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

% interest

100

100

100

160

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Country of incorporation or

registration

Ireland
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Vales
England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

Type of business

Property holding
company

Dermant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Asbestos testing and

consultancy
Dormant company

Holding company
Environmeantal testing
Dormant company
Holding company
Helding company

Building cantral

Cansultancy

Fire safety
engineering
Dormant company

Iretand Dormant company
2020 2019
£'000 £000

481 5652
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15

16

17

18

Trade and other receivables

2020 2018

£'000 £'000

Contract assets 1,948 3,800
Trade receivables 16,078 23,590
Amounts owed by group undertakings 32,380 31.598
Other receivables 85 636
Prepayments 1,791 1,961
Corporation tax 274 133
Deferred fax asset {note 9) 2,480 1.52%
55,014 63,239

The fair value of the Company's trade and cther receivables is not materially different to the amounts stated above due to their short tarm duration.
Amounts due from group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed repayment date and are repayatle on demand.

As at 31 December 2020, provisions of £769,000 (2019: £530.000) were made against certain trade receivables totalling £16,847,000 (2019: £24,120,000}. The
accounting policies include further detail on the Company's provisioning methods.

A contract asset arises on contracts where work has been completed but is yet to pe billed. The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of
accrued inceme and retentions £35,387 (2019: £586.609). When assessing accrued income and retentions management considers factors including operational
management expertise together with historicat experiences. No impairment has heen recegnised in relation to these contract assets for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: £nil).

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2020 2019
£000 £'000
Trade creditors 5,073 9,335
Amounts owed to group undertakings 41,775 44 648
Lease liability 3,035 3,037
Qther taxation and social security 8,426 5103
Accruals and deferred income 10,491 9,157
68,800 71,280
Amounts owed to greup undertakings at the year end are unsecured and interest free. All ameunts are repayable on demand.
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Lease liability 12,427 8,588
Provisions for liabilities
£'000
At 1 January 2020 648
Additions during the year 328
Released during the year (138}
At 31 December 2020 838

Provisions principally relate to dilapidations in respect of leasehold properties. The movement in the year relates to the unwinding of the onerous lease provision.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 {continued)

19 Post-cmployment benefits

2020 2019
£'006 £'000
Non-current liabilities
Defined benefit pension schemes net liabilities (6,118} (2,367)
Refliected in statement of financial position as follows:
Retirement benefit obligations: non current liabilities (6,118} (2.367)

Expenses of £398,000 (2019: £335,000) and £397.000 (2019: £386,000) have been included in cost of sales and administrative expenses respectively in
respect of employee benefits excluding pensions.

Pensions

The Company participatas in two industry defined benefit pension schemes and several defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the defined benefit
schemes are managec on behalf of the trustees by independent fund managers,

Expenses recognised in the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2020:

Industry Wide

Coal Staff Defined
Superannuation Railway Pension contribution Year ended
Scheme Scheme pension schemes 31 December
2020 2029 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost of sales 35 163 629 B27
Adgminisirative costs 52 131 434 617
Employer's current service cost 87 294 1,063 1,444
Net interest on the defined benefit obligation 14 32 - 46
Total pension expenses 101 326 1,063 1,450

Expenses recognised in the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2019,

Industry Wide Coal

Staff Defined
Superannuation Railway Pension contribution Year ended
Scheme Scheme pension schemes 31 December
2019 2019 2019 2019
£'000 £'000 £'(XK) £'000
Cost of sales 37 145 623 804
Administrative costs 74 B5 399 538
Employer’s current service cost 111 210 1,022 1,343
Net interest on the defined benefit obligation 27 13 - 40
Total pension expenses 138 223 1,022 1,383
Movements in the defined benefit obligation during the year are as follows:
Industry Wide Industry Wide
Coal Staff Coal Staff
Superannuation  Railway Pension  Superannuation  Railway Pension
Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme
2020 2020 2019 2019
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 10,450 33,409 9.920 29755
Employer's interest cost 218 689 283 B47
Employer's current semice cost 35 163 37 145
Employer's past service ¢ost - - - -
Employee's current contributions cost 5 108 6 104
Employee's past service cost - - - -
Benefits paid (337} (1,219) (304) (1,134)
Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
- Actuarial {(gain) / loss on experience items {42} {1,082) (458} -
- Actuarial {(gain} / loss on financial assumptions 1,413 6,117 1.173 4,438
- Actuarial (gain) / loss on demagraphic assumptions 596 413 (207) (748)

Present value of obligatian at 31 December 12,336 38,598 10.450 33,409
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

19 Post-employment benefits (continued)

Movements in the fair value of plan assets during the year are as follows.

Industry Wide Ingustry Wide Coal
Coal Staff Staff
Superannuation Railway Pension Superannuation Raitway Fension
Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme
2020 2020 201¢ 2019
£900 £000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 9,585 30,906 8,831 29,237
Interest income on scheme assels 202 635 256 B25
Contributiens by employer 455 74 350 80
Contributions by schermne participants 5 49 6 54
Benefits paid {337) (1,219} {304) {1,134)
Administration expenses (52) (218) (74) {108)
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
- Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets 481 1,503 520 1,852
Fair vaiue of scheme assets at 31 December 10,339 31,730 9,585 30,906
It is anticipated that the Company will make the following contributions te the pension schemes in 2021
£000
Pension scheme contributions 829

The 31 December 2018 valuation of the Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme revealed a deficit. It has been agreed with the Trustees that the
Company will pay £413,196 each year until 31 December 2023 to make good this deficit. This amount includes the allowance for current contributions with the
remainder being allocated towards the shortfall in funding.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position at 31 December 2020 are determined as fellows:

Industry Wide
Coal Staff
Superannuation Railway Pension
Scheme Scheme Totat
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 December 2020
Present value of funded obligations (12,338} {38,598} {50,934}
Fair value of plan assets 10,328 31,730 42,069
Deficit in scheme {1.987) {6,868} {8,855}
Adjustment for members share of deficit - 2,747 2,747
Net pension liabikity {1.997) 4,121} {6,118}
Actuarial gain on experience items 42 4,082 1,124
Actuarial loss on financial assumptions {1,413) (6,117) {7,530}
Actuarial gain on demagraphic assumptions {596) {413) {1,009}
Actuarial gain on plan assets 481 1,503 1,984
Net actuarial gain / (loss} {1,488) (3,945) {5,431}
Company's share of net actuarial gains / (losses) on scheme assets {1.486) {2.367) {3,853)
Actuarial gains / (losses) on scheme liabilities {1.486) {2,367) {3,853)
Deferred tax on pension scheme 282 450 732
Net actuarial gains / (losses} on scheme liabilities {1,204) {1.917) {3,121)
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position at 31 December 2019 are determined as follows:
Industry Wide
Coal Staff
Superannuation  Railway Pension
Scheme Scheme Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 December 2019
Present value of funded obligations (10,450} {33,409) {43,859)
Fair value of plan assets 9,585 30,906 40 491
Deficit in scheme {865) (2.503) (3,368}
Adjustment for members share of deficit - 1,001 1,001
Net pension lLiability {865) {1,502} (2,367)
Actuarial gain on experience items 458 - 458
Actiarial loss en financial assumptions (1,173} {4,438) {5.611)
Actuarial gain on demegraphic assumplions 207 747 954
Actuarial gain on plan assets 520 1,952 2,472
Net actuarial gain / {loss) 12 {1,739} 1,727)
Change in asset ceifing and effect of members’ share of deficit - (5} {5)
Company's share of net actuarial gains / (losses) on scheme assets 12 {1.043} {1.031)
Actuarial gains / {losses) on scheme liabilities 12 {1,048} {1,036}
Deferred tax on pension scheme 12) 199 197

Net actuarial gains / {losses} on scheme liabilities 10 (849) (839)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 {continued)

19 Post-employment benefits (continued)
Actuarial valuations and assumptions

Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme {Scheme 1)

The last full actuarial valuation finalised prior to the 31 December 2020 year end was at 31 December 2018. The results of this valuation were used and rolled forward
to the accounting date. The service cost has been calculated by using the Projected Unit methed.

Scientifics Shared Cost Section of the Rallways Pension Scheme (Scheme 2}

The last full actuarial vatuation finalsed prior to the 31 December 2020 year end was at 31 December 2018. The results of this valuation were used and rolled forward
to the accounting date.

The assumptions used by the actuaries for both schemes are the best estimates chosen frem a range of possible actuarial assumptions, which, due to the timescale
covered, may not necessarity be borne cut in practice. The principal assumptions are included in the table below:

Industry Wide Coal Industry Wide

Staff Coal Staff
Superannuation Railway Penston  Superannuation Railway Pension
Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme
2020 2020 2019 2019
Discount rates 1.40% 1.40% 2.10% 2.10%
Expected rates of salary increases 1.75% 1.75% 1.55% 1.55%
Pension increases 2.85% 2.25% 2.85% 2.05%
Inflation (RPI} 2.90% 2.90% 2.95% 2.95%
Inflation (CPI) 2.25% 2.25% 2.05% 2.05%

An assumpticn has also been made for members of the Railway Pension Scheme to commute on average 2.5% of ther pension for cash on retirement, in line with
the 2019 actuarial valuation results. An allowance has been made for members of the Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme to commute 16% of their
pension for cash at retirement, in line with the 2018 actuarial valuation.

The starting point for the mortality assumptions for both schemes are the "SAPS" standard mortafity tables, adjusted to reflect the actual membership experience of
each scheme. The Railway Pensicn Scheme uses the SAPS S3N tables and the Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme uses the SAPS S3P tables. both
with adjustments made to the table weightings to reflect the respective populations of each Scheme.

Future imprevements are assumed to be in line with the CMI_2019 model, allowing for a long-term future trend of 1.25% per annum and a smoothing factor of 7.0.

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the balance sheet date is as follows:

Industry Wide Coal Industry Wide
Staff Coal Staff
Superannuation Rajlway Pensien  Superannuation Raitway Pension
Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme
2020 2020 2018 2019
Life expectancy at 60 for a current male pernsiener (years) 26,3 26,7 25.0 26.3
Life expectancy at 80 for a male nen-pensicnar aged 40 (years) 27.8 281 26.5 27.8

The analysis of the scheme assets at fair value at the balance sheet date was as follows:

Industry Wide Coal Industry Wide Coal

Staff Staff

Superannuation Superannuation Raillway Pension  Railway Penslon
Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme
Falr value Falr value Fair value Fair value
£'000 % £'400 %

2020
Equities 1,598 15% 17,725 £8%
Bonds 5,026 48% 13,517 43%
Property 525 §% - 0%
Gash 189 2% 161 1%
Other 3,001 5% 327 1%
10,339 100% 730 99%

2019
Equities 1,522 16% 17,800 57%
Bonds 4,605 8% 12,383 A0%
Property 528 6% - 0%
Cash 53 1% 9 0%
COther 2.877 30% 714 3%
9.585 100% 30.906 150%
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19 Post-employment benefits {cantinued)
Industry Wide Coal Statf Superannuation Scheme
The Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation Scheme {IWCSSS) is a funded defined benefit arrangement and is an industry-wide scheme for eligible employees.
There are different sub-funds within the scheme for different employers. The assets and liabilities of each sub-fund are identified separately from those of the

other sub-funds and the Company has its own sub-fund. The assets of the scheme are held separately from the Company. The Company's sub-fund of the
scheme has been closed to new members since 1284,

Formal actuarial valuations of the IWCSSS are normally carried out triennially by qualified independent actuaries, and the last full actuarial vatuation of the
Company’s section of the IWCSSS was carmried out by the scheme actuary at 31 December 2018,
The sensitivity of the defined benefit cbligation to changes in the actuarial assumptions is:

Change in defined

Change in assumption benefit obligation

£'000

Discount rate 01% {215)
Inflation 01% 213
Expected rates of salary increase 0.1% 4
Mortality + 1 year age rating applied to mortality 515

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all cther assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. The methed of calcutating these sensitivities is consistent with prior year.

Rallways Penslon Scheme

The Raitway Pensich Scheme (RPS) was established by statutory instrument, commeanced on 1 Cctober 1994 and is a funded defined benefit arrangement. The
RPS is an industry-wide scheme for all eligible empleyees within the railway industry, There are different sections within it for different employers. The assets and
liabilties of each secticn are identified separately from those of the other sectiens and the Cempany has s own section. This scheme, the assets of which are
held separately from the Company, is contributory and provides pensions related te pay at retirernent, The Company's section of the scheme nas been closed to
new members since 2003,

Formal actuarial valuaticns of the RPS are normally carried out triennially by qualified independent actuaries, and the last full actuarial valuation of the Company’s
sectich of the RPS was carried out by the scheme actuary at 37 December 2016, A full actuarial vaiuation is currently ongoing but not yet finalised for 31
Dacember 2020.

The total contribution rate payable under the RPS is normally split in the proportion 60:40 between the Company and the members. The Company reflects its

share of the contribution in the financial statements. i a surplus or deficit arises, the provisions in the RPS rules stipulate that the Company and members penefit
fram or pay for this respectively in the preportion 60:40.

The sensitivity of the defined penefit obligation to changes in the actuarial assumptions is:

Change in defined

Change ih assumption benefit obligation

E'Q00

Discount rate 0.1% (702}
Inflation 0.1% 565
Expected rates of salary increase 0.1% 49
Martality + 1 year age rating applied to mortahty 1,543

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. The method of caleufating these sensitivities is consistent with prior year.

Through its defined benefit pension plans the company is exposed to a number of risks that are inherent (n such plans and arrangements. There are, however, no
unusual, company specific risks, and no significant concentrations of risk. The risks can e summarised as follows:

Asset value volatility, with the associated impact on the assets held in connecticn with the funding of pension ebligations and the related cash flows; changes in
bond yields, with any reduction resulting in an increase in present value of pension obligations, mitigated by an increase in the value of plan asseats; inflation risk -
the risk that inflation is higher that assumed. with subsequent increases to pensions that need to be paid; and life expectancy. as pensions are provided for the
life of the beneficiaries and their dependants.
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Called up Share capital
2020 2018
Allotted and fully paid £000 £'000
323 (2019; 323) Ordinary Shares of £1 . -
Capital and other commitments
At 31 December, the company had the following capital commitments
2020 2018
£000 £'000
Cantracts for future capital expenditure not pravided in the financial statements 915 101
Related party transactions
During the year, the Cumparry entered Inte the tollowing transactions with related parties:
Purchase of Sale of Purchase of Sale of
services Services Leases SenVices Services Leases
2020 2020 2020 201¢ 2019 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
SOCOTEC Asbestos Limited (219) 198 838 {303) 316 700
SOCOTEC Monitering UK Limited (fermerly ITM Monitoring Limited) (99} 192 - {200) 125 -
4see Ltd - - . (48) 4 -
Other related companies (2) 40 - - 45 -
1320} 330 838 1552) 450 700

Sales of services were negotiated with relaled parlies on a tost-plus basis, allowing a gross prefit margin ranging from 15% to 30%. Purchases of services were an
normal commercial terms.

During the year, Holding Socotec SAS a related party, charged the company management charges of £1,042,000 (2019 £839,000). During the year, Socotec (Geston
SAS a related party, charged the company management charges of £858,000 (2019 £737,000).

Balances outstanding with related parties at 31 December were as follows

Amounts Arnounts AMoLMs Amounts

owed from owed to owed from owed 1o

related related related related

parties parties parties parties

2020 2020 2019 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Environmental Scientifics Group Heldings Limited 304 - 304 -

Buckingham Investigation Services Limited 2 - 27 -

Environmental Scientifics Holdings Limited 28,989 - 28,984 -

SQCOTEC UK Halding Limited n2 - 222 -

SCCOTEC Asbestos Limited - (7,82%) - (6.935)

SOCOTEC Monitoring UK Limited 327 (344) 93 (351)

Calyx Investments Limited 1,070 - 1.07C -

4see Lid - {772) - (772)
SCCOTEC Building Control Limited {formerty known as Butler & Young Approved Inspectars Limited} 150
Bulter & Young Group Limited 223

Holding Sacotec SAS 160 {115) - (150}

Socotec Gestion SAS - {55) - (184}

Inspicio Environmental Scientifics Group Limited - (12,442) - {14,385)

ESG Capital 2 Limited - (14,501) - {14,513}

Other Subsidiaries 913 (5.717) 808 (7.358)

32,360 {41,775) 31.558 (44,648)

The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest free, repayable en demand and will be settled in cash. No guaraniees have been given or received.

See nate 7 for disclosure of the directors remuneration.
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SOCOTEC UK LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

23

24

Post balance sheet events

On 1 April 2021, the trade, assets and liabilities of its subsidiary undertakings, Butlker & Young Consultants Limited and Trenton Fire Limited, were transferred to
SOCOTEC UK Limited with the operations of these subsidiaries, from this date, naw being operated within the Cempany. Also, on 20 July 2021, SOCOTEC UK
Limted acquired 100% of the issued share capital of TOR Driling Limited, a specialist rotary-drilling business, based in Glastonbury, Somerset.

Ultimate parent company and ultimate controiling party

The immediate parent undertaking is Inspicio Envirecnmental Services Group Limited, a company registered in England and Wales,

The ultimate parent undertaking is Soco 1 SAS, a Company incorporatad in France, which owns 100% of Holding Socotec SAS, which as at 31 December 2020
held 98.2% of the issued share capital of Pheenix UK 2020 Limited, a company registered in England and Wales. which has been the ultimate domestic parent of
this entity frem 11 August 2020. Seco * SAS is the parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements and this company
is included in the consolidated financial statements of Soco 1 SAS, a copy of which will be submitted alongside these financial etatements and may be obtained
from The Registrar of Companies, Companies Registration Office, Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff, CF14 3LiZ,

In the opinicn of the directors the uktimate controlling party is SophieLux 1 S.a.r.l, a company registered in Luxembourg. SophieLux 1 S.a.r.l, owns 65.65% of Soco
1 SAS the ultimate parent undertaking.
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Message from the CEO

During 2020, when the economy was severely disrupted by an unpre-
cedented public health crisis, SOCOTEC proved its resilience by achle-
ving success on three levels:

* Financial results: we generated proforma revenue of €891.4 million and

Ebitda of €132 million, which meant that we maintained cur growth tra-

jectory and remained on track with our 2024 strategic plan,

* Managerial performance: our teams were fully committed to steering our business through the pandemic,
showing outstanding responsibility and determination in constantly seeking the right balance between protec-
ting people’s health and providing the services our dients need,

* Cash management: we kept a firm grip on costs and implemented cost-saving plans, and adopted more
rigorous management of trade receivables in each of our business lines. Our hands-on approach enabled us
to regain seme operational room for manaceuvre by the end of the first half, and we were very quickly able
to position our business for the post-crisis recovery. bt also allowed us to develop our skills, extending them
beyond our traditional area of building control. As a result, we developed risk management and technical
consultancy services in all our businesses, opening the way to future developments between now and 2024.
In that sense, 2020 was a transitional year.
That transition was partly dewn to our CSR plan. We carried eut our first materiality analysis and adopted a
three-year roadmap, which is central to our operations as we seek to enhance our future performance, our
reputation as a responsible company and our appeal in the eyes of our stakeholders, i.e. clients, candidates,
technical partners and financial partners,
In the second half of 2020, we were also able to resume M&A activity, making five acquisitions in Germany,
the USA and France. Cementys is an international company based in France, and has bolstered SOCOTEC's
position in infrastructure manitoring, particularly via sensor solutions based on its proprietary technologies
and R&D. Veritas Advisory Inc. is an American company that has strengthened Vidaris’ position in the USA
by making it a leading construction and real estate consultancy, particularly through its Dispute Reselution
business.

Those two acquisitions were SOCOTEC's largest in 2020. We intend to maintain our growth impetus in 2021
with the aim of further improving our margins, broadening our array of expertise by integrating the best ex-
perts who are leaders in their respective fields, and developing risk-management services. There is growing

dernand for risk-management services in view of the major transitions (climate, energy, digital, mobility) and
regulatory changes that are underway. By developing these services, SOCOTEC is firmly positioning itself as a
provider of solutions.

I would like to thank our teams in all our regions: they performed very well last year, and their agility and tenacity

made all the difference.

| hope you enjoy reading our 2020 annual report.

Hervé MONTJOTIN
CEQ - SOCOTEC Group
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2020 Highlight

1. The SOCOTEC Group'{llllince to the pub Sl
health and economic criggiE.

The pandemic was of course the main event in 2020. Although Covid-19 depressed economic activity
in the Group's various countries at different points of the year and to varying extents, its impact was felt
across the board and prompted the Group’s management to take a fresh look at how the business is run.

From March 2020, management implemented a crisis management plan that had several aspects:

» Safeguarding the health of employees (health protection plans at SOCOTEC and client sites, working

from home} and of clients {solutions involving Covid officers, business-ready services etc.)

* Safeguarding operaticns, using furloughing arrangements in Europe and government business support

grants in the USA and Asia

* Safeguarding jobs and adjusting working arrangements: stepping up continuing professional
development and digital transition efforts during the first lockdown, managing staffing capacity from
week to week and sometimes from day to day, adjusting outsourcing, and carrying out targeted
recruitment in sectors that were resilient in Germany and ltaly, or that saw a sharp rebound in activity

after the first lockdown, i.e. Technica! Inspection & Verification (TI&V) in France.

* Safeguarding the Group’s finances: an increased focus on cash flow management at the overall and
local levels, cash flow forecasts and debt recovery, efforts to accelerate and finalise the transformation of
the Construction business unit in France with the deployment of the new Rapso V2 production systemn,
related adjustments to the Group’s crganisational model, a 10% reduction in the workforce against
the background of a changing and declining underlying construction market in France, negotiations
and implementation of bilateral funding facilities and a Group-level, long-term non-recourse factoring

programme.

For three months, from mid-March to the end of May 2020, the Group was hard-hit by Covid-19-related
restrictions. During that period, profoerma monthly revenue (based on the year-end 2020 business scope)
fell by 14% in March, 31% in April and 18% in May.

Around 85% of the fall in business levels during that period took place in France and Overseas France.
In France specifically, 0% of building sites were shut down for six weeks, while less severe shutdowns
took place in the UK and USA. The rest of 2020 was stable overall in proforma terms as Covid-related
restrictions eased. SOCOTEC was quickly able to adopt new ways of working (working from home, digital
training, faster adoption of digital tools, reduced time-to-market for services including those related to
new operational requirements during the Covid-19 crisis), thereby keeping business levels similar to 2019

and winning market share in the Construction, TI&V and Infrastructure sectors.
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The Group also strengthened its positions in its main platforms by making niche acquisitions that bolstered
its Infrastructure and Construction businesses in Germany (Pfilb and Tesch), and its Dispute Resolution
business in the USA (CPAG and Veritas). SOCOTEC meore than doubled its Infrastructure revenue in France
with the acquisition of Cementys, which specialises in monitoring in the Infrastructure and Construction
sectors. With its technology and international experience, Cementys bolsters the Group’s similar services

in ltaly and the UK and supports its growth in its other countries.

In late 2020, the Group's shareholders and management tock part in a €42 million capital increase to
finance some of the cost of the year's acquisitions, while ensuring that the Group continues to comply with

covenants on its long-term debt.

Despite the unusual circumstances, SOCOTEC generated consolidated revenue of €870 millien in 2020,
an increase of 3.9%, and its Ebitda rose 2.1% to €122.6 million, giving an Ebitda margin of 14.1%.

In proforma terms, i.e. taking inte account 2019 and 2020 acquisitions on a full-year basis in both years and
assuming constant exchange rates (i.e. using 2020 average exchange rates), revenue fell 4.5% to €891.4
million and Ebitda was down 14.3% to €131.8 million, giving an Ebitda margin of 14.8%.

Thanks to the efforts of all the Group’s manageriai teams in terms of collecting receivables and making
ongoing improvements in billing and debt recovery, and as a result of its discipline in terms of controlling
and reducing costs, the Group achieved its 2020 budget target regarding free cash fiow before acquisitions
{l.e. excluding 2020 acquisitions, earn-outs and puts and calls relating to previous acguisitions and the
capital increase), generating €66.8 miillion, up 270% relative to the previous year. Net cash rose from
€48.5 million at the end of 2019 to £78.3 million at the end of 2020, and from 2021 the Group has access
to £€93.9 million of short- and long-term bilateral funding facilities, of which €70 million were unused at
December 31,2020, along with €90 million of revolving credit facilities (RCFs) and more than €120 million

of non-recourse factoring.

The Group was able to make very significant progress in terms of digitalising processes and practices
as well as managing cash during the unprecedented crisis that unfolded in 2020, as a result of
the unstinting dedication shown by its management teams in every country, particularly France.
SOCOTEC struck the right balance between keeping its employees safe and healthy and growing its

business, and emerged stronger at the end of 2020, unlike many of its competitors.
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2. Faster developm{l§  ‘:; increased foculE S
on CSR ambitions RS

a. Risk management services driving growth in all business areas

In 2020, the SOCOTEC Group continued its development strategy, which has four main aspects:

> Developing and strengthening its geographical platforms in order to gain critical mass in each
of them and create an international leader in Testing Inspection and Certification: the only group
fully focused on the construction, infrastructure and environment sectors, with 9,000 engineers and
technicians working in these specialist areas.

> Growing its risk-management and technical consulting activities in construction, infrastructure and
manufacturing, expanding beyond the long-standing building control activities on which the Group
built its reputation.

> Increasing its operational focus on CSR and standing out from its peers by taking practical measures
and embarking on unique projects instead of just making grand statements of intent.

> Setting the standard in asset integrity throughout the project lifecycle, across the Group’s six
business lines:
* Construction and Real Estate, including sustainable real estate and BiM
e Technical Inspection & Verification, including inspections of nuclear and renewable energy facilities
* Infrastructure & Energy
e Environment & Safety
* Training in all our sectors, including nuclear
* Certification
Each of these business lines applies distinct operating models but they all share a common thread: ensuring

the safety of people and property in compliance with regulations and standards throughout the project life
cycle, i.e. during construction, operation and decommissicning.

Through its business lines, the Group's strategic aim is to provide its clients with end-to-end solutions, from
compliance with regulatory obligations to the forward-looking management of their assets and teams.

SOCOTEC defines its purpose with respect to its clients and employees as follows:

OUR PURPOSE

When it comes ta meeting the challenges posed by the cities, infrastructure and industry of tomorrow,
SOCOTEC provides risk management and technical consultancy services, supporting its clients in the
construction, real estate, infrastructure and manufacturing sectors throughout the life cycle of assets to
ensure their conformity with requirements, regulations and standards, extend their useful lives, improve
their environmental performance and guarantee personal safety.

OUR MARKET POSITION

Our market position is based on the company we want toc be and the way we want to be perceived by
others, particularly our clients, our teams and our potential applicants: we want to promote a comprehensive
approach to risk management by drawing on our key strengths:
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* Our expertise and ability to provide a comprehensive overview.

Our expertise is our strength, and we are very proud of it. Our 9,000 engineers and technicians are among
the most advanced in their field and in our specific sectors of construction, infrastructure, environment and
real estate. We add real value for our clients, not just by offering them the expertise that prompted them
to use our services, but also by taking a holistic view of the challenges they face and the regulations in
force in each specific field, and by being able to assist them by making connections between issues and
co-ordinating all aspects involved in construction, renovation and refurbishment projects.

* Our willingness to listen to and form close ties with our clients.

Listening to clients is one of SOCOTEC's hallmarks, and requires close ties with them, which we are able to
form through our network of 150 branches in France and our knowledge of regions and local economies.
Because we are specialists in our sectors, we have an intimate understanding of their needs and can
provide the right solutions.

¢ Our ability to offer the perspective of an independent third party.

Our clients are looking for this independent third-party approach, which is another distinguishing feature of
our busiress and imission. Our ethical standards, based on the independence of our inspections, diagnostic
work, reports and analysis, are a real strength and lend credibility to our opiniens, while aliowing us to act
as a trusted, first-choice partner.

* Qur role is to contribute to innovation and knowledge transfer in the risk management space.
We aim to be a major, influential player in each of our business lines. We build and expand our sphere of
influence by listening to our clients, who are active members of professional networks.

¢ Our proven track record, spanning almost 70 years, in building life cycle management.
For example, in France we play an active role on the technical committees of:

s Cofrac (an association that delivers accreditation to third-party organisations} and
* FILIANCE (federation of third-party organisations);
s internationally, we are active members of the technical committees of the TIC Council
(international federation of third-party organisations),
» and of the Fondation Palladic, which is working to realise the city of tomorrow;
* we are a member of METI, an organisation that serves French medium-sized businesses;
» and we are a member of the Institut de I'Entreprise.
Construction remains our core sector, with expertise covering both newbuild and existing properties. As

well as building control, we have also developed activities in technical consultancy and risk management,
which are now key services demanded by our clients in their projects.

b. Responsible development: central to our operations

Our position regarding CSR is based on the operational and pragmatic approach that has made
us a leading player in our business lines. Instead of making sweeping statements of intent, we
have adopted a practical roadmap with regular milestones that show our progress in matters of
sustainability, particularly those specific to our industry, and that strengthen our business lines and
enable us to stand out through initiatives that make a real difference to society.
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“BUILDING TRUST FOR A SAFER AND SUSTAINABLE WORLD" is our mission.

Our CSR strategy is central to our mission and our business lines: we help to make the world safer and
more sustainable. As a trusted independent partner in the construction, infrastructure and environment
industries, we are focused on finding solutions through our experts and their skills, our demanding
professional approach and our ethical and responsible conduct.

Given the complexity of the changes that are affecting our societies — and particularly the faster pace of
change in terms of the climate, urbanisation and environmental issues, demographics and requirements
related to mobility and digitalisation — we decided to consult our stakeholders in order to adopt a
collaborative and practical approach to CSR. More than 5,000 people received a questionnaire and more

than 1,400 replied.

The results allowed us to carry out a formal materiality analysis.

LET'S SOCOTEC!
Phweorecommitted Y #25G Y #CSR Y #proovingit

S

SOCOTEC

OUR STAKEHOLDER EXPECTATIONS

SOCOTEC materiality analysis for France

SOCOTEC STAKEHOLDER EXPECTATIONS:

T ployEes, TLSIOMETs, SUPENETs, v o,
actrediing bodies, professional “ederatione

HAPALT ON SOCOTEC'S BUSINESS
C5F Corrpitiee, Execuive Cumneitec

Materiality means analyzing which issues are the most important
of being addressed by businesses. After identifying potential
sustainability 1ssues thought ta be directly relevant to an arganization’s
velue chain, these issues are analyzed using 2 different lenses. So for
issues such as reducing plastic packaging, sharing wealth or working
with sustainable suppliers, the organization needs to evaluate: 1)
what's the potential of each issue to pesitively or negatively impact
organizational growth, cast, or trust and 2) how impertant is each
1ssue to stakeholders. The ultimate result is a visual representation
of which issues should be prioritized according to their importance
to the company's success and stakeholders’ expectations (that can
directly affect the first),

In other words, a materiality analysis 1s a methodology a campany
can use to identify and estimate possible Environmental, Social
and Governance (ESG) which might impact the business and its
stakehelders. As EY puts it, companies need to ask whether the
issues to cover in the sustainability report and disclosures are
important enough to influence a stakehelder’s decisions in relation
to the business. As a result of this analysis, comparies can create
their long-term ESG strategy, targets and find the best strategies to
report the data found as a resuit of the process.

@ o

. SOCIETA.

. . ETHIC AND OF L RATION A
! PERFORMANCE

@ overaents

PERRTRTaN]
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CovER e i

2L 2021

5 . ‘I

#E0COT

The Benefits Of Taking a Materiality Analysis.

- It's an oppartunity to analyse business risks and
opportunities, and to eventually readjust and improve
thei business strategy;

It's a ¢chance to understand where organizations are
creating or reducing value for society;

It’s a way of making a business case to senior executives
about why and how te report ESG data;

- It provides the knowledge and means on how te
measure different performances (financial, social and
environmental);

It inharently means spotting trends and, therefore,
anticipating emerging i1ssues,

+ Assessing the opportunities ahead allows for the
development of new products or services and, therefore,
staying ahead of the competition;

It allews erganizations to focus thair efforts on allecating
resources better;

' The analysis wilt allow companies to meet the
sustainability reperting expectations of stakeholders;

- It increases the chances of better satisfying stakeholders’
demands;

The results and data from the materiality assessment
can be used to design content for CSR Reports or for
communications with individual stakeholder groups like
nvestars, partners, customers or employees.

P For further informations, discover our commitments !
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Based on that analysis, we developed our roadmap, which has 10 points and covers three areas: talent
development, environmental impact and social inclusion. The aim is to ensure that these areas are key focal
points of SOCOTEC's strategy and to help strengthen the group in terms of its social and environmental
impact and its ability to attract and retain talent.

Over and over, we are showing clear progress towards our key commitments, through initiatives involving
our staff members, clients and partners. A CSR committee comprising representatives of each business
line was set up in late 2020 to co-ordinate our 2021 action plans.

LET'S SOCOTEC!
Lrwearocommitted § HESG Y #CSR Y #provingit

Sustainability is at the heart of what we do® - our expert tearms are committed to creating a safer, more sustainable world,

As an iIndependent trusted third party in the construction, infrastructure and environment sectors, our newly launched CSR
strategy offers a collaborative, pragmatic saluuen Find out mare about cur approach !

e e o SOCOTEC
* Our purpose  Bulding trust for 2 safer andf susiamable worla . i L .

—€) BEING ACTIVE F

PROMOTING A MORE SUSTAINABLE
OCIAL INCLUSION

pany: " &8

Our CSR readmap signed off by our Executive Qur organisation is comtinually Wa nre an inclusl !

Committee and our CSR Committee is based learning and Is committed to we davelop iandvative inclusion . 3§ .

on 3 commitments and 10 actlons : devaloping the potential of our programmia for disadvantaged | challeges
taams : we ara able to cultivete youngsters, engaging all of our our clients, we
our axpertisein aunique way. Our business lines. Our aim is to pro- contribute to reducing their
missian is to continuausly grow mate squal opportunity employ- envirenmental impact. As an
our expartise and transfer these mentand act for a fairer sociaty, indepandent trusted third party.

= Implement a key talent programme, with potental skills o new ganerations joining partcularly whenitcomestothe 8 our experts-offer solutians by

mentoring opportunities svailable the organisation. lnnovation is future of our workforca, optirnising the technical peror-
+Value. share and disserminate innovation keyin our value propasition for mance snd energy .usags of

our clients in the construction,
= Engagement with collaborators, measure our succass rasl estate, infrastructure and

with an annual survey and enhance company growth industry sectors.
through incentivization schemes .

PROMOTING SOCIAL INCLUSION

» Develop corporate philanthropy programmes linked
with our expertise

* Help disadvantaged youth find a job

s Promote gender equality across all business lines

A MORE SUSTAINABLE WORLD

«» Suppor our chents n measuning and reducing
their environmental impact
» Develop a arcular economy labelling service

buildings, industty equipment
and'infrastructure.

C5R ACTIONS

200

for the construction sector YOLUNTEERS
AND CSR S4VYY
» Optirruse the energy performance of our offices

f ! 2 STAFF MEMBERS
« Adopt environmentally respensible behaviours :

and reduce our carbon footprint

IDEATION
WORKSHOP

=y~
i 12
WS TES WA "

-€) COMMITTED

Given these priorities, our C5R Committes defined
maore thar 100 actions that required implementation.
Following this, 200 CSR savvy staff members voted for
the maost impactful actions and our Executive Committee
prioritised the results.

[ /[ L f Ll /

o v Ebtisgrsring: efivironinait, pevple, soclal whies - ¢ -
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2020 Highlig

3. Our 3 CSR com

a. You grow we grow

The SOCOTEC Group is always learning, committed to developing the potential of its people and to
passing on skills and know-how within the Testing, Inspection and Certification (TIC) businesses.

Unique expertise

By making nur expertise unique through the quality of Llie people we recruit and the service we deliver to
our demanding clients, through knowledge transfer between teams and through the year-round technical
training we offer to our staff members, we offer a distinctive package of solutions — addressing complex
issues and including advanced technologies — in the TIC market, and more specifically in the construction,
infrastructure and manufacturing sectors.

Preserving, growing and passing on that expertise is our purpese.

Being able to innovate is crucial in a sector where SOCOTEC is often a pioneer, as shown by its innovations
in fibre-optic sensors, real-time sensors used for infrastructure monitoring, anificial intelligence and
predictive analysis for structural maintenance, loT for equipment inspection, wind farms ard 3D, 4D and

50 BIM.

INVESTING IN PECPLE

SOCOTEC's mission relies on the technical expertise of its staff. To achieve its 2024 strategic ambitions,
SOCOTEC must therefore have the best talent available in the market: it must attract the best candidates to
underpin its growth, retain key people by fostering their commitment through attractive career prospects,
and develop their technical and managerial skills. These issues were addressed in 2020 via the following
initiatives in particular:

¢ The Covid-19 crisis, by freeing up some available time, allowed us to invest heavily in the continuing
professional development (CPL) of our staff members in France. SOCOTEC's training budget of €7
millien ameunted to almost 4% of its payroll in 2020, representing more than 20,000 days of training
and 22,400 training sessions. Almost all of them involved employees of our Group. Widespread use of
e-learning — through our Learning Management System {LMS) — allowed our staff to learn new tools and
related technologies more quickly.
To benefit from the CPD expertise developed by SOCOTEC Formation and to make use of its learning
platforms, all of the Group's operational entities in France now entrust the crganisation and execution
of their training plans to SOCOTEC Formation;

» While most players in cur industry chose to adopt a hiring freeze in 2020, SOCOTEC decided to pursue
its recruitment plan last year. More than 1,700 new staff members joined the Group last year around the
world, including more than 1,000 in France. To achieve that, SOCOTEC used one of the best applicant
tracking systems (ATS) in the market, carried out a major overhaul of its employer brand visuals and
adopted a new strapline: “Let's SOCOTEC!". A comparison of our “Employee Value Proposition” with
those of our main competitors shows that SOCOTEC is now ideally placed to attract the best candidates
in our industry.
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¢ In 2020, to identify key staff members and ensure that solid plans have been adopted to help them
develop, the SOCOTEC Group deployed a structured Talent Review process across its two main
platforms, i.e. France and the UK. It will be extended to Germany and the USA from 2021. As well
as identifying key people, the Talent Review allows the senior management team to carry out a joint
assessment of those key people and to prepare succession plans. It has been in place since 2019 in
France and has increased the number of internal promotions. Currently two out of three management
roles are filled internally, creating genuine opportunities for all SOCOTEC staff members to advance
their careers and increasing staff retention;

* Under the SOCOTEC Management Campus project, launched in late 2018, diplomas were awarded in
January 2020to almost 300 managers who completed this ambitious training programme. The SOCOTEC
Management Campus was developed with EM Lyon Business School, Crossknowledge, Krauthammer,
BL Consultants and Quaternaire, and provided training to 450 managers simultaneously over two years,
through 24 classroom-based training days plus remote work and e-learning modules. It represented
an investment of more than €10 million over two years. As well as considerably strengthening the
Group's management, the project has bolstered SOCOTEC's manager community, creating connections
between managers across business lines, geographies and business units and producing opportunities
for synergies between our various businesses.

Based on these excellent results, SOCOTEC has decided to maintain its efforts in this area by creating
a new cohort of managers taking part in the SOCOTEC Management Campus every year. The 2021
cohort started the programme in February.
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* SOCOTEC places particular importance on apprenticeships. By combining recruitment and training,
apprenticeships address two of the Group's long-term aims. Historically, SOCOTEC has taken on a large
number of apprentices, offering most of them jobs after they have completed their training courses. In
2020, it took those efforts to the next level by creating its own apprentice training centre (ATC). With
an initial cohert of 15 young apprentices in 2020, the aim is to increase that figure to 100 in 2021. To
meet its aim of giving young people rigorous training in its business lines, SOCOTEC has also requested
accreditation from France Compétence for a custom SOCOTEC-specific professional qualification.
SQCOTEC' ATC is the first of its kind in France’s TIC sector.

Guided by our belief that companies must actively help to address the social issues that surround them,
we launched the Rebond Faverable project in 2020, which aims to integrate into the workplace young
people from disadvantaged neighbourhoods and lacking qualifications. The project allows 60 young
people to take part in nine-month work-study programmes, and at the end of their apprenticeships they
are offered permanent jobs. This is another high-profile initiative that helps the SOCOTEC brand to
stand out from its peers.

Across these various initiatives, SOCOTEC welromed almost 200 apprentices in 2020.

* The MAPS (Mentoring Advocacy and Professional Strategy) project was launched in the USA in 2020:
it is @ mentoring project through which our most senior people support new recruits over a three-year
period. In France, the Group's Construction & Real Estate BU has adopted the Azur project, which aims
to set up a task force of around 15 young graduates from the best French engineering schocls {Mines,
Ponts, Centrale, ESTP, INSA etc.), putting them on a 12-month fast-track training course involving close
mentoring.

You grow we grow Our roadmap for the next three years
We are implementing a talent development programme, particularly through the following initiatives:
s increased use of mentoring, through which we harness the full benefit of, share and disseminate
innovation;
* initiatives to increase employee engagement, which we measure using an annual barometer;
* an improved training programme. CPD increased considerably within SOCOTEC in 2020.

The number of staff members who received training doubled between 2019 and 2020 due to greater use
of distance learning, partly because of Covid-19, but also because all departments made training a priority.
The development of technical and regulatory content made available through the LMS is continuing at a
rapid pace.

The new SOCOTEC Learning platform and its catalogue, to which modules are regularly added, allow
staff members to develop soft and hard skills at their own pace. They can take modules in personal
development, regulatory changes, industry practices and technical know-how in cur Construction & Real
Estate, Infrastructure & Energy, Environment & Safety, and Technical Inspection & Verification business
lines.

Key figures:
22,000 interns received training in 2020

13,000 staff members took part in e-learning sessions
4,600 staff members took remote-learning courses

Cur teams have some of the most advanced skills in the construction, infrastructure and environment
fields. They help to produce content and pass on their technical knowledge.
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b. Promoting social inclusion

SOCOTEC is an inclusive company. We firmiy believe that we can promote employment among young
people and people who are struggling to find employment by offering technical training that is accessibie
to all kinds of profiles.

Through our social programme, we are committed to a pioneering, innovative programme of inclusion
that shows the strength of our commitment: Rebond Favorable. This programme covers all of our
business lines, including construction risk management to TI&V and environmental services.

A committed company

We are committed to combating all forms of discrimination. From the recruitment stage, through
onboarding and throughout our people’s careers, we establish clear rules and protocols favouring the
inclusion of women and peopie of all origins and educational backgrounds, regardless of where they live.
Delivering equal opportunities is central to the way we operate and, through training, we ensure that every
situation involving every profile is treated equally.

Our role is to champion fair access to employment and training, so that everyone can find their place,
in order to create a fairer society.

Promoting social inclusion: our roadmap for the next three years

We want to take a proactive approach, stepping up our workforce-related and social efforts and
particularly in the following three areas:
* Skills sponsorship;
¢ Employing young people through specific initiatives including the Rebond Favorable programme;
* Champicning gender diversity in all our business lines.

Gender equality

As a responsible employer, one of SOCOTEC's priorities is to continue championing diversity, for both
ethical and performance reasons.An agreement regarding gender equality and wellbeing at work was
signed with three unions on 23 June 2020.

The targets set through this agreement, and the measures taken to achieve them, aim to ensure that men
and women are treated equatly and to promote equal opportunities in terms of career development within
SOCOTEC, by combating all forms of discrimination.

As well as measures relating to equal pay, SOCOTEC afso adopts training and awareness-raising initiatives
aimed at changing mindsets and combating gender stereotypes and the glass ceiling, which hold back
people’s professional development, within all Group subsidiaries to which the agreement applies.

To raise awareness and change attitudes among all stakeholders, the Group has rolled out e-learning
sessions. Avoiding discrimination in recruitment, increasing female representation in technical roles and
helping woemen achieve managerial positions all help us to achieve progress and growth.

As regards prevention efforts, representatives have been appointed across all our companies and
subsidiaries, regardless of how large their workforces are. Their role is to guide, inform and support
employees regarding efforts to combat sexual harassment and sexist behaviour.
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Our results in this area are measured and published via the gender equality index. This index, introduced
by the Penicaud decree of january 9, 2019 under France's “freedom to choose one's professional future”
act, measures the pay gap between men and women, and all companies with between 250 and 1,000
employees are required to publish their results. The index gives companies an annual indicator regarding
equality between men and women in the workplace

It is based on several criteria:

» The gender pay gap;

* The gap in the distribution of individual pay rises;

¢ The gap in the distribution of promotions;

* The percentage of female employees who received a pay rise on
returning from maternity leave;

* The number of women among the top ten earners.

Figures improved substantially in 2020, encouraging us to increase
our commitment and continue our action plans in this area. These

results are increasing the appeal of SOCOTEC's employer brand in
France.

GENDER EQUALITY INDEX

The 2020 results for our Group are as follows:

Companies with more than 250 staff members
e SOCOTEC Construction : 93
S5OCOTEC Diagnostic : 78
SOCOTEC Eguipements : 86
SOCOTEC Environnement : 79
SOCOTEC Power Services : 77

Companies with 50-249 staff members

CIS: 85

SOCOTEC Formation : 78
SOCOTEC Gestion : 58
SOCOTEC Infrastructure : 68
SOCOTEC Réunion : 61
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Rebond Favorable: our programme dedicated to training and employing young people who have
dropped cut of the education system

tn June 2020, the SOCCTEC Group launched Rebond Favorable, the only programme of its kind in its
industry, aimed at helping young people who have dropped out of education and who lack qualifications
to learn a trade and get a job.

It was created with financial support from the lle-de-France region and the Sport dans la Ville charity. It
takes an innovative approach by creating a supportive, comprehensive learning environment for various
roles, i.e. electrical verification officers, environmental measurement assistants and verification officers
for building sustainability (energy, acoustic and thermal performance). The training provided is unigue in
terms of the intended occupations and the people they are aimed at, and include catch-up learning in
core subjects {maths, physics etc.). Business etiquette also forms an integral part of the training provided,
in order to foster confidence among the young people concerned, and they are provided with constant
mentoring.

The approach also fits with the aims ot the French government’s France Relance economic recovery plan
and the "1 jeune 1 solution” plan. It uses learning solutions developed in partnership with AFPA and Sport
dans la Ville.

R Région
sm *ilegeFrance

SOCOTEC

al'Empioi
This nine-month programme allows young people to get their first permanent job with SOCOTEC, and
to become integrated into the world of work. SOCOTEC also covers the cost of obtaining their driving
licence, since the roles concerned involve carrying out inspections and measurements at client sites.
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Key figures related to this workforce integration programme:
* 23 branches are taking part in the programme, which represents a unique experiment in SOCOTEC's industry;

* 36 mentors have been appointed to support the apprentices;

* 56 young people have already joined the programme.

The Rebond Favorable training programme

Rebond Favorable comprises a nine-month training programme that is comprehensive, progressive and
highly structured so as to foster confidence and personal development among participants as well as
developing their skills:

* a work-study programme lasting six to nine months, including week-long blocks of working on the
ground alongside SOCOTEC technicians and week-long blocks of learning with our partner AFPA;

¢ three months of full-time in-house training to acquire all qualifications and authorisations required to
carry out assignments independently;

* innovative blended learning blocks complemented by classroom-based collective coaching sessions
covering inter-personal skills: client relationships, business etiquette etc.

s driving lessons funded by SOCOTEC;

* support from a volunteer mentor for the full duration of the programme. Each mentor receives
training in providing personalised support;

* asecure socio-professional environment, since participants are still young and unfamiliar with the
world of work and with technical B2B services.
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In terms of equal opportunities — a key value that is central to the way the SOCOTEC Group operates —
participants are selected without reference to CVs and only on the basis of their motivation, their ability to
adapt and integrate, and their stated desire to seize this opportunity and make a long-term commitment.

SOCOTEC is committed to offering apprenticeships and jobs to young people, and has launched the
Testing and Inspection industry’s first corporate apprentice training centre (ATC)

SOCOTEC took on more than 210 pecple on work-study contracts in 2020, backing young people by
setting up its own ATC and also offering young adults the opportunity to retrain in order to address skills
shortages.

SOCOTEC's ATC opened in September 2020 and offers:

*  work-study training programmes

* locations across France

*  one year of work-study training to gain the T3E (electrical technician) qualification, with training
taking place al AFPA centres and the SCGCOIEC Formation ATC's 32 locations in the Paris region
and across France.

¢ 30% training and 70% work experience

This training, which is free of charge for participants and allows them to gain a qualification accredited
by the French labour ministry, gives them the skills they need to work at a host company, which may be
a SOCOTEC branch or a partner company that takes people on work-study programmes.

* APPRENTICESHIP-BASED = A TECHNICAL AND VARIED
TRAINING THAT IS FREE OF CHARGE SERVICE-BASED OCCUPATION

FOR PARTICIPANTS * AN OPPORTUNITY TO WORK

* NO NEED TO FIND A HOST COMPANY INDEPENDENTLY, WITH A COMPANY
CAR PROVIDED

* A MONTHLY SALARY THROUGHOUT THE
TRAINING PROGRAMME * CAREER DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL
ACROSS FRANCE

The four key aspects of SOCOTEC's commitment to integrating people with disabilities

Since SOCOTEC is committed to combating all forms of discrimination, we also strive to welcome people
disabilities. We pay particular attention to making adjustments to workstations where necessary. In all
cases, we build trust by listening carefully to any staff member concerned and provide appropriate support.

In France, 4% of SOCOTEC's workforce have disabilities.
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DISABILITY INITIATIVE
The four key aspects of SOCOTEC's commitment to integrating people with disabilities

A discrimination-free recruitment guarantee

A proactive policy to welcome and integrate them
into the workforce

Equal opportunities for professional development
A commitment to ensuring wellbeing at work

These four aspects also form part of the Group's charter for
integrating and keeping disabled people in the workforce, and
were formally recognised by the signat of an agreement with

disability training, so tjiNes - o
people who mMay en o
health. - )

¢. Helping to create a more sustainable world

SOCOTEC is aware of the issues invalved in energy and environmental transition, and implements solutions
that have a positive impact on the envirenment.

Across our various business lines, our experts are already providing services that enable SOCOTEC clients
to reduce their environmental impact: gualification for the ECOCYCLE circular economy label, real-estate
sustainability services for partners and companies that build homes, offices and eco-districts, environmental
impact measurements (water, air and soil), decontamination of brownfield sites and regeneration projects,
assessments of how resilient buildings are to wear and tear and climate change, biodiversity impact analyses,
BREEAM and LEED certification, energy management certification, technical advice and inspections
aimed at increasing energy performance through reduced consumption of resources, support for energy
transition, and services relating to France's 2020 environmental regulation for newbuild properties and the
“Décret Tertiaire” aimed at improving the energy performance of commercial buildings. Through all of
these services, and more besides, we help our clients to assess their environmental impact and take thelr
sustainability programmes to the next level.

SOCOTEC is aware of the issues involved in energy and environmental transition: we are adopting
solutionsto addressthe environmentalissues of tomorrow, particularly those involving decarbonisation,
which reduce greenhouse gas emissions and positively impact the environment and biodiversity.
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We work with our clients to help reduce their environmental impact. As a trusted partner, our job is to find
solutions. Our experts develop and implement solutions that improve the equipment and infrastructure
that surrounds us in terms of technical performance, energy consumption, environmental impact, reuse
and sustainability.

Implementing the environmental transition: our roadmap for the next three years

To contribute to environmental transition, we intend to step up our efforts by:

¢ Helping our clients to reduce their environmental impact and assess and measure their progress

s Actively contributing to the development of the circular econemy in the construction and
environmental sectors

e Optimising the energy performance of our own buildings

*  Adopting responsible behaviours and reducing our own carbon footprint

¢ Integrating electric vehicles into our fleet

*  Making increased use of sustainable procurement

Helping clients become more sustainable

Our experts in real-estate sustainability, timber construction, low-carbon concrete, energy transition and
efficiency, biodiversity and environmental certification, along with our environment and health teams, help
clients reduce pollution and decontaminate sites, carry out site and soil pollution studies, reduce chemical
risks, ensure industrial hygiene and address safety issues.

We contribute to eco-building and circular economy projects in the construction industry, and to building
waste reuse and recycling projects.

We have also introduced the ECOCYCLE circular economy label for our clients, which reflects the
performance of buildings over their whole life cycles.

RECYCLAGE

ECOCYCLE

Fru-cur ceptiun

ECONOMIE REEMPLOY

RESPONSABLE DES MATERIAUX

We help our clients improve their energy, environmental and health performance at the time of
construction, while buildings are in use and when they are decommissioned. We make a commitment to
our clients and their stakeholders — all of which are concerned by the consequences of climate change and
resource shortages - that we will help them reduce the impact of waste and pollution (water, air and soil),
improve the predictive maintenance of their buildings and infrastructure, and optimise their environmental
performance.

Reducing SOCOTEC's carbon footprint

At SOCOTEC, taking a responsible approach also means reducing our greenhouse gas emissions and
carbon footprint.

As a result, we have started to add electric vehicles to our fleet. We have adopted three-year targets,
and we are carefully monitoring our progress towards them.

Our fleet of vehicles accounts for almost 95% of our greenhouse gas emissions, so we intend to reduce
our CO2 emissions by gradually adding electric vehicles so that they make up 15% of our fleet by 2023.
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As an independent trusted partner, robust ethics form the cornerstone of our business practices

SOCOTEC works to manage and mitigate construction, infrastructure and industrial risks for public- and
private-sector entities that need accurate, independent and transparent assessments.

At SOCOTEC, taking an ethical approach means showing integrity, responsibility and transparency with
respect to all our stakelwlders: through continuing professional development and constant managerial
attention, we apply high ethical standards in our commercial activities, our recruitment and in the way we
work with internal and external partners.

All our staff members receive training with regard to France’s Sapin 2 act, and best practice in terms of
preventing corruption and fraud, in order to ensure healthy commercial relationships. We have strict, clear
commercial rules and we foster a mindset of accountability and a rigorous appreach to business among
all our people.

All of our managers must sign our Manager Authorisation Guide, which sets out managerial best practice
and is distributec to ail of our countries every year. The guide sets out SCCOTEC's standard business
protocols, decision-making rules and best practice to be adopted to safeguard high standards of probity,
incorporating key aspects of our business culture, i.e. impartiality and fair and ethical conduct.

Finally, any kind of discrimination within the Group and n our recruitment practices is contrary to our
principles, and we strive to achieve diversity among our new hires, ensuring respect for others and fairly
assessing people’s career journeys with respect to our business needs. We are seeking to achieve a more
even gender balance in our recruitment, in a construction and public works market in which gender
diversity at the educational stage is increasing substantially.

Not only is compliance with laws and regulations — both local and international — a core requirement, but
our values help to prevent us from compromising our ethical standards as well.

SOCOTEC asserts its commitment to ethics and transparency through its Code of Ethics, which applies to
all staff members in France and worldwide. Our whistleblowing system allows all Group employees and
anyone else to report any crime, misdemeanour or threat to the public interest,

We have an Ethics Committee in charge of applying the Code of Ethics, receiving reports of unethical
conduct and monitering the application of anti-corruption laws.
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2020 Highlig

5. Group key figurci

The table below sets out details of the Group’s revenue and Ebitda in 2020:

PRODUCTION

GROUFP TOTAL

Disposals

GROUP TOTAL EXCL.
CHANGES IN SCOPE

; .
2019 vs. 2020
2020

ACQUISITIONS

Exchange-rate effect

Organic growth exdl. changes in scope
and at constant exchange rates

Organic growth excl. changes in scope §

Change

3.9%

-0.4%

4.3%

9.6%

-5.4%

-5.1%

GROUP TOTAL

Disposals

GROUP TOTAL EXCL.
CHANGES IN SCOPE

Impact of acquisitions
2019 sur 2020

2020

ACQUISMONS

Organic growth excl. changes in scope

Exchange-rate effect

Organic growth excl. changes in scope

and at constant exchange rates

EBITDA
Change
2.1%

-0.5%

2.7%

21.5%

-18.9%

-18.6%

N.B. Reventue figures do not include revenue from ancillary activities
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On a proforma basis (factoring in the full-year revenue of acquired companies), the breakdown of the
Group's revenue and Ebitda changed as follows between 2016 and 2020:

2020 acquisitions are listed in Section 6 of the Business Report and in Note 2 to the consolicated financial
statements.

BREAKDOWN OF PROFORMA*** GROUP REVENUE AND EBITDA BY BUSINESS LINE:

PRODUCTION

€ million
CONSTRUCTION & REAL ESTATE 328.6 347.3 362.4 380.4 350.3
INFRASTRUCTURE & ENERGY 202.6 229.7 237.5 261.5 274.6
ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY 85.0 85.2 885 4.4 R3.7
TECHNICAL INSPECTION & VERIFICATION 161.2 161.1 158.0 156.6 152.2
CERTIFICATION 16.3 16.4 16.7 15.6 15.0
TRAINING 32.6 33.6 3841 40.3 330
INTERCOMPANY AND OTHER .21.5 -20.0 -17.9 -15.8 -16.9

TOTAL £804.9 853.3 883.4 933.2 891.4 5.6% -4.5%

EBITDA **

€ million 2019 2020
CONSTRUCTION & REAL ESTATE 63.3 704 73.1 76.3 415
INFRASTRUCTURE & ENERGY 275 364 43.0 51.3 52,5
ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY 7.1 8.0 2.1 9.5 5.5
TECHNICAL INSPECTION & VERIFICATION 8.5 11.9 15.% 17.8 16.0
CERTIFECATION 1.8 3.1 3.6 2.9 36
TRAINING 0.9 2.0 33 43 1.9
CORPORATE * 0.3 0.0 -3.8 -8.2 -9.3

TOTAL 109.4 131.8 144.2 153.8 131.8 6.6% -14.3%
CONSTRUCTION & REAL ESTATE 19.3% 20.3% 20.2% 20.0% 17.6%
INFRASTRUCTURE & ENERGY 13.6% 15.9% 18.1% 19.6% 19.1%
ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY 8.4% 2.4% 10.3% 10.0% 6.6%
TECHNICAL INSPECTION & VERIFICATION 5.3% 71.4% 10.0% 11.4% 10.5%
CERTIFICATION 10.9% 18.7% 21.7% 18.3% 24.2%
TRAINING 2.8% 6.0% 8.8% 10.6% 5.8%
CORPOQRATE *

TOTAL 13.6% 15.4% 16.3% 16.5% 14.8%

* Corporate margin based on total Group production
** Ebitda calculated using the definition in the SFA (Senior Facility Agreement) - see bridge in Section &

*** Figures for 2016-2019 factoring in 2020 acquisitions.
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BREAKDOWN OF PROFORMA*** GROUP REVENUE AND EBITDA BY GEOGRAPHICAL
PLATFORM:

PRODUCTION

£ million
FRANCE 463.9 482.5 490.9 503.0 481.2
UK 126.3 126.9 1341 1457 141.0
us 94.6 102.3 108.8 1180 112.2
GERMANY 63.3 80.9 85.7 97.3 1091
ITALY 131 18.5 19.1 208 227
OTHER 65.3 621 62.8 64.2 421
CORPORATE * -21.5 -20.0 119 -15.8 -16.9

TOTAL 804.9 853.2 883.4 933.2 891.4 5.6% -4.5%

EBITDA **

€ million
FRANCE 46.7 55.8 61.2 65.9 49.1
UK 12.9 3.3 13.9 13.9 1.4
us 30.2 354 37.9 42.1 418
GERMANY 8.5 15.0 20.0 25.7 26.3
ITALY 32 4.0 55 5.0 6.1
OTHER 7.7 8.2 25 9.3 6.4
CORPORATE * 0.3 -0.0 -3.8 8.2 -9.3

TOTAL 109.4 131.7 144.2 153.8 131.8 6.6% -14.3%

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

FRANCE 10.1% 11.6% 12.5% 13.1% 10.2%
UK 10.2% 10.5% 10.3% 9.5% B.1%
us 31.9%  347% 34.9% 35.6%  37.2%
GERMANY 13.4%  18.5% 23.3% 264%  241%
ITALY 24.1% 21.5% 28.7% 23.9%  267%
OTHER 11.8% 13.2% 15.2% 14.5% 15.3%
CORPORATE *

TOTAL 13.6% 15.4% 16.3% 16.5% 14.8%

* Corporate margin based on total Group production
** Ebitda calculated using the definition in the SFA {Seniar Facility Agreement) - see bridge in Section 6
*** Figures far 2016-2019 factoring in 2020 acquisitions.
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BEREAKDOWN OF PROFORMA GROUP REVENUE AND EBITDA BY SERVICE TYPE

€ million

TESTING

INSPECTION

CERTIFICATION
TOTAL

€ million

TESTING

INSPECTION

CERTIFICATION
TOTAL

TESTING

INSPECTION

CERTIFICATION
TOTAL

PRODUCTION
Change 19/20 | % of total '
231.4 2429 5.00% 27.2%
679.8 628.2 -7 6% 70.5%
22.2 20.3 -8.5% 23%
933.3 891.4 -4,5% 100.0%

EBITDA **

| % total l

219 2020 CAGR 21/25
34.6 311 -10.4% 23.6%
115.5 %6.6 -16.3% 73.3%
16 4.1 14.6% 3.1%
153.7 131.8 ~14.3% 100.0%
2019 2020
15.0% 12.8%
17.0% 154%
16.0% 20 0%
16.5% 14.8%

** Ebitda calculated using the definition in the SFA (Senior Facility Agreement - see bridge in Section 6
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CHANGE IN WORKFORCE IN 2020

HEADCOUNT (END OF MONTH)

€ million Dec 19 Acquisitions In 2020 Change in 2020 Dec 20
FRANCE 4,577 -5é 4,521
UK 1,748 -40 1,708
us 325 37 -9 353
GERMANY 715 15 38 748
ITALY 296 58 354
OTHER 799 130 -43 886
CORPORATE 247 4 251

TOTAL 8.707 182 -48 8,841

2020 CASH FLOW

Change Change
€ thousand 2020 2019 in€ in %
CONSOLIDATED EBITDA 122,588 120,046 2,542 2.1%
Operating cash flow 151,046 122,933 28114 22.9%
Net capex -20.62% -35,009 14,380 -41.1%
Nen-recurring tems -16,430 -23,348 6,918 -29.6%
CONTRIBUTING CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS 113,988 64,577 49 411 76.5%

DIFFERENCE AVEC LA TRADUCTION UK
102%

54%
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18,005 48,763 270 8%
Purchases and disposals of financial assets -76,909 -532,947
Change in borrowings and debt -173 318,702
Capital increase 42,000 183,635
Exchange-rate effects -1,817 484

NET CASH FLOW 29,867 S22 41,988 l 346.4%J
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[Bonsolidated oplie

N.B.
The comments below relate to the “management view” adjusted income statement.

2020 2019

€ million

Revenue 850,805 799,417
38,048

Work in progress 19,153

PRODUCTION 869,958 837,465

Subcontracting -78.074 -75,495

PRODUCTION AFTER SUBCONTRACTING 791,884 761,970
Staff costs -445,244 -428,229
Other operating expenses -200,513 -191,670

Performance costs -23.540 -22,026

SFA CONSOLIDATED EBITDA 122,588 120,046

=754 =206

Transformation costs

Acquisition integration costs -1.019 -718
Restructuring costs -15.882 -19.240
(Gains on asset disposals -424 6,124
Cther non-recurring income and expenses -9,374 -7,211
NON-RECURRING ITEMS -27,493 -21,251

Software/IT depreciation and amortisation -5,624 5,361
Real estate depreciation -3,106 «2,033
Other depreciation and amortisation -11,824 =11,051
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION -20,554 -18,446

Financial costs {excluching SHL} -59,463 -31,033

-18,427

Tax {excluding deferred tax) -8,232
NET OPERATING INCOME 30,889

Financial costs (SHL}

FPA depreciation and amortisation

Goodwill amortisation

Armortisation of borrowing costs

Non-controlling interests and equity-accounted companies

Deferred tax

NET INCOME

-49,219 -119.3%
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a. Revenue

SOCOTEC's conselidated revenue totalled €870 million in 2020, up 3.9% compared with 2019.
That growth comprised:

> A negative scope effect of 0.4% following the disposal of CTE's non-destructive controls business
in June 2020;

> A positive scope effect of .7% (equating to revenue of €80.3 million) resulting from acquisitions,
of which arcund 87% represented the full-year effect of acquisitions made in 2019, with the
remainder coming from acquisitions made in 2020;

> A negative currency effect of 0.3% (€2.6 million), relating in particular to movements in the dollar/
euro exchange rate in the second half of 2020;

> Negative organic growth, at constant scope and exchange rates, of 5.0%.

b. Operating expense and Ebitda

Ebitda represents ocperating income before amortisaticn and depreciation in each of the Group's divisions.
It excludes net non-recurring costs such as business restructuring and premises renovation costs, the cost
of integrating acquisitions and additions to provisions relating to earn-cut payments and share awards.
The Group's Ebitda amounted to €122.6 million in 2020, equating to an Ebitda margin of 14.1%. That
represents an increase of 2.1% relative to 2019 including:
> An 18.6% decrease at constant scope, i.e. €97.2 million of Ebitda on revenue of €788 million
{margin of 11.7%);
> A 21.5% increase from acquired companies, which contributed €25.8 million to Ebitda in 2020
with an average margin of 32.1%;
> A 0.5% increase from divested companies.

As regards operating expenses:

> Subcontracting expenses rose by only 3.4%, mainly in the UK infrastructure business which uses geo-
technical subcontractors, and also in Germany and ltaly which together saw revenue grow by 15% and
subcontracting expenses by 22%. Outside of those specific business areas, consolidated revenue rose
by 2.1% and the Group reduced subcontracting expenses sharply, by 6%, due to lower business levels
in some areas as well as its policy of favouring in-house resources as far as possible during the Covid-19
period.

> Staff costs are the main component of the Group's expenses, amounting ta €445 million excluding bo-
nuses, employee profit sharing and other incentive plans, equal to 51.1% of revenue. Compared with the
previous year, staff costs include a full year of payroll expenses at Vidaris, consolidated since August 2019,
and reductions in staff costs arising from government furloughing measures and equivalent arrangements,
amounting to an estimated €17 million in 2020.

> Other operating expenses increased by 4.6%. Most of that increase related to higher provisions for
technical disputes in France and impairment of trade receivables caused by more stringent prudential
rules, which amounted tc €9.3 million versus €3.6 million in 2019, even though 2020 did not give rise to
any increase in bad debts. Other expenses rose by only 1% during the year.

Group Ebitda before variable remuneration expenses rose by 3% to £146.1 million.

> Variable remuneration expenses, in the form of annual performance bonuses, employee profit sharing
and incentive plans, are key elements of the remuneration paid to managers and other employees as part
of the Group's efforts to achieve centinuous improvement in its performance. Variable remuneration is
especially important in recently acquired businesses, where margins are above the Group average.

It increased by 6.9% in 2020, or by 6.2% at constant scope. Overall, it equalled 2.7% of revenue and 15.7%
of operating income, similar to the ratios seen in 2019.
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¢. Non-recurring items

There was a net non-recurring expense of £€27.5 million in 2020 as opposed to €21.2 million in 2019. Those figures
break down as follows:

€ theusand 2020 bk
NON-RECURRING COVID-RELATED EXPENSE 7217 ) o]
Of which workforce restructuring -6,423 7 o
Cf which other «794 . 0.
NON-RECURRING RESTRUCTURING EXPENSES* -6,662 T 12,042 .
Of which Ariane project C -6,528 "
Of which Penelope project -4,759 o
NON-RECURRING ACQUISITION-RELATED EXPENSES 5,769 . ' 718
Of which integration costs -1,019 C 718
Of which impairment of work in progress -2,080 ) 0
Of which earn-out provisions -3,372 : 0
OTHER NON-RECURRING EXPENSES 6,204 ~14,408
Of which rent on unoccupied premises -2,003 3,449
Of which costs related to site relocations <124 . 574
Of which provisions for the early termination of vehicle leases 0 o -198%
Of which disposals of subsidiaries 217 +1,294
Of which Phoenix project -448 -3,242 [
Of which discontinuation of an IT project B [+}
Of which change in method relating to work in progress in France -1,362 ’ 2.
Other nan-recurring income and expenses -1,693 -3,860
GAINS/LOSSES ON ASSET DISPOSALS -640 6,124
TRANSFORMATION COSTS 0 206
NET NON-RECURRING INCOME (EXPENSE) -27.492 -21,251

At the start of the second half of 2020, against the backdrop of Covid-19, the Group carried out a plan to adjust
its resources based partly on the likely immediate and future impact of Covid-19 on underlying economic activity
in each operating entity, and partly on government support measures.

Adjustments were made carefully on an entity-by-entity basis, and mainly concerned the Construction and Training
BU in France, the UK and the USA. Some other businesses introduced a hiring freeze during lockdown periods.
The total cost of adjusting resources and non-recurring public health expenses in connection with Covid-19
amounted to €7.2 million, with most of that expenditure disbursed in 2020. The TI&V business in France and the
Infrastructure business in Germany and Italy increased their production resources to deal with a sharp increase in
business levels during 2020 and particularly after the end of the first lockdown, driven by postponed projects and
new contract wins.

After the reorganisation plan in the TI&V BU in 2019, resulting in a reduction in the number of segments and the
consolidation of administrative back offices, the main reorganisation efforts in 2020 focused on the Construction
business in France after the accelerated roll-out of a new, highly digitalised production system including BIM
functions, along with a reduction in back-office staff numbers. The total cost provisioned in 2020, most of which
will be disbursed in 2021, amounted to £4.8 million.
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Finally, non-recurring workforce restructuring costs that related neither to the Covid-19 situation nor to the
reorganisation of the Construction BU in France amounted to €1.9 million in France, mainly concerning SOCOTEC
UK {€0.4 million) and Overseas France (€0.3 million}.

The Group is also pursuing the premises consolidation plan that began in 2018, aiming to renovate older premises,
reduce floorspace and, since 2020, take into account the organisational effects of working from home. It has
initiated a similar plan in the UK, with the aim of reducing the number of sites and locating its laboratories closer
to major infrastructure project hubs. Non-recurring costs related to vacant premises and refocations during the
year totalled €2.1 million.

Other material non-recurring expenses consisted of the following:

* Adjustment of the Group’s rules on impairing trade receivables at acquired entities €2.1 million

* Impairment of work in progress in the French Construction business €1.4 million
» Accounting provisions for earn-out payments on a prorata basis over their

exercise periods** €3.4 million
» Cost of integrating acquisitions €1 million
» Cost of discontinuing IT projects €0.7 million

+ Residual costs related to the change of shareholder in 2019 and social security
charges on the vesting of bonus shares in connection with new manager share
ownership instruments €1 million

s Other expenses and capital losses on asset disposals €1.9 million

Cf alt the non-recurring expenses recognised in 2020, €7.2 million were non-cash expenses and
€5.8 million will be disbursed in 2021.

* Workforce restructuring: this mainly relates to the Technical Inspection & Verification (TI&V) BU in 2019, with the Ariane job
protection plan aimed at scaling down the administrative back office for €6.5 million, and to the Construction BU in 2020, with the
job protection plan aimed at scaling down the admiristrative back office for €4.8 million.

** Earn-out: accounting value representing likely earn-cut payments spread over the earn-out period and regarded as remuneration
for accounting purposes and as non-recurring items for managerial purposes because they are valued only at the point that the
hability becomes certain.

d. Operating depreciation expense

Depreciation expense related to operating activities amounted te €20.5 million in 2020 as opposed to
€18.4 million in 2019.

As a proportion of revenue, it increased from 2.2% in 2019 to 2.4% in 2020 due to the gradual increase in
depreciation of real-estate assets following the large-scale refurbishment programme that started in 2018.
Depreciation of real-estate assets rose from €2 million in 2019 to €3.1 million in 2020, because of
expenditure on fixtures and fittings as part of branch refocations. Depreciation of IT assets mainly related
to the cost of developing new IT solutions. That item amounted to €5.6 millien in 2020, equal to 30% of
the year’s IT expenditure.

Depreciation expense related to operating activities equalled around 60% of the total, and was mainly
associated with maintenance expenditure in the infrastructure and testing businesses.
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e. Financial income and expense |

NET FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSE) EXCLUDING THE SHAREHOLDER LOAN (SHL)

Net financial income (expense} excluding the SHL mainly consists of interest on bank debt, the cost of
financial instruments, gains or losses on available-for-sale securities and gains or losses on foreign exchange
transactions. It also includes discounting costs relating to pension plans and long-term provisions for
technical risks.

€ thousand

FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest and other financial income

Positive exchange differences

FINANCIAL EXPENSE

-60,164 -36,756
SFA borrowings o .
Term B loan -29,991 . 21,680

Revolving credit facility -1,761 - 698 .
Other financial items
Bonds -204 -183
Bank borrowings and other financing 761 954
Cther financial expense -3,643 =353

Negative exchange differences -17.281 4476

Financial cost of lump sums paid on retirement 6,032 -3,733 §

Additions to provisions net of reversals =591

NET FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSE) EXCLUDING SHL -31,033 -28,430 -91.6%

€ thousand

NET FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSE] RELATING TO THE SHL

€ thousand 2020 . 2019

Disbursed financial income and exp

Non-disbursed financial income and expense -7,745 100.0%

Financial income and expense arising on consolidation -23,354 -4,079 472.6%

NET FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSE) -59,463 -38,778 -53.3%
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The average interest rate on net monthly bank debt was 4.1% in 2020 as opposed tc 4% in 2019. That resulted
in 8 net interest expense of €32.6 million in 2020 on average gross debt of €798 million.

In addition, there was a €2.8 million expense relating to the EUR/USD cross-currency swap covering a portion
of the debt arranged as part of the Vidaris acquisition, which was settled in late 2020 with a negative impact of
€1.3 million.

Exchange differences mainly relate to accounting transactions to cenvert foreign-currency liabilities into euros
between the holding company, which bears the Group's senior debt, and the main foreign financial holding
companies. Negative exchange differences amounted to €17.3 million in 2020, mainly relating to the long-term
loan between Holding SOCOTEC and the USA holding company in a nominal amount of $193 million, and the
long-term loan between Holding SOCOTEC and the UK holding company in a nominal amount of £73.3 million. As
regards the Group’s internal exchange differences, they have no impact on Group cash flow.

The discounting of lump sums paid on retirement generated an expense of €6 million in 2020. The change with
respect to 2019 arose from the fall in the long-term rate of retum on plan assets for both defined-benefit pension
plans in the UK, although that had no impact on the annual contribution paid each year to each pension fund trust.
Additions to and reversals of financial provisions resulted in a nct expense of €0.6 million in 2020, mainly relating
to the discounting effect on long-term provisions for technical risks in France.

NET FINANCIAL EXPENSE RELATING TO THE SHL

The net financial expense relating to the SHL ~ i.e. the interest on the shareholder loan arranged in 2013 as
part of the financing of the SOCOTEC acquisition — amounted to €7.7 million in 2019, All of the SHL and
its accrued interest to date were converted into equity by SOCO 1 at the time of the 15 April 2019 capital
increase, In an amount of €282 million.

€ thousand 2020 2019

NET FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSE) RELATING TO THE SHL |

f. Tax (excluding deferred tax)

Tax includes income tax and the CVAE (tax on business value added) in France. The latter amounted to
€46.5 million in 2020 as opposed to €7.2 million in 2019.

As regards income tax, each main country has its own tax consolidation group. The tax consolidation
group in France includes the holding company, which carries the Group's debt. Since 1 January 2019, tax
rules in France have limited the amount of net financial expense deductible from taxable income to 30%
of Ebitda (calculated for tax purposes) within the French tax consolidation group.

The French tax consolidation group did not generate any income tax in 2020.
Qutside France, income tax amounted to €2 million, including €2.6 million in Germany, €1 million in
ltaly and €2.4 millicn in other countries apart from the USA. In 2020, the USA business benefited from a

$5.8 million tax credit based on future deductible expenses as part of the Covid-19 Tax Refund support
programme, generating a net tax credit of €4 million after taking other levies into account.

g. Deferred tax

Deferred tax mainly relates to the expected use of tax loss carryforwards and other long-term tax deductions
in the next three years. It amounted to €3.3 million in 2020 as opposed to €0.3 million in 2019.
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2020 Highli

7. Change in net QSRR cash flow fro i
operating activigiE y

The comments below relate to the “management view” cash flow presentation.

€ thousand 2020 2019 Change in € Change in %
CONSOLIDATED EBITDA 122,588 120,046 2,542 2.1%
Change in provisions 1,285 1,697 2,982 176%
Change in operating working capital 27,173 4,583 22,590 493%
QPERATING CASH FLOW 122,933 28,114 22.9%
Net capex -35,009 14,380 -41.1%
Non-recurring items -23.348 6,918 -29.6%
CONTRIBUTION CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 113,988 64,577 49,411 76.5%

S T e

Income tax -19,132 9,626 -50.3%
Foreign exchange gains and losses 1,156 -1,415 -122.4%
Dividends received and paid -1,264 -488 38.6%
Net financial expense 27,331 -8,371 30.6%
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18,005 48,763 270.8%
Purchases and disposals of financial assets -76,909 -532,947
Change in borrowings and debt -173 318,702
Capital increase 42,000 183,635
Exchange-rate effects -1,8%7 484

NET CASH FLOW 12,121 41,988 346.4%
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CASH FLOW

Operating cash flow represents the cash generated by each of the Group's business activities. It excludes
expenditure on property, plant and equipment and financial investments, non-recurring items, income tax
and the payment of financial expenses.

In 2020, the Group generated operating cash flow of €151 million, compared with £122.9 million in
2019, representing an increase of 22.9%. The cash conversion ratio {gross operating cash flow divided by
Ebitda) was 123% in 2020 versus 102% in 2019. The improvement was due to managerial teams in the
various countries continuing to focus strongly on reducing average client payment times and speeding
up invoicing. The change in the working capital requirement therefore boosted cash flow by €27 million.

Whereas the Group'’s revenue in the last three months of 2020 was similar to that seen in 2019, the
operational working capital requirement {work in progress and trade receivables minus trade payables}
felt sharply from €215 million in December 2019 to €189 millien in December 2020. The WCR improved
steadily over 2020, and particularly sharply [ium the end of the first quarter.

Investments net of disposals amounted to £€20.6 million in 2020 as opposed to €35 million in 2019. That
represents a 40% decrease, and the amount was 25% lower than the pre-Covid budget for 2020. As soon
as the Covid-19 situation arose, the SOCOTEC Group carried out a major review of its investments and
decided either to stop projects that would not generate a rapid return on investment, or to postpone non-
essential investments, and it rescheduled its building refurbishment programme in France.

IT expenditure totalled €8.1 million as opposed to €10.2 million in the previous year. In particular, the
Group focused expenditure on overhauling the production software platform of the Construction BU in
France, allowing it to reorganise its operations before the end of 2020, and continued to roll out its CRM
solution and the Group internet platform across its local sites outside France. These investments were
guided by criterla based on productivity, commercial development and supporting the SOCOTEC brand
image.

Operational expenditure was stable around €% million, a large proportion of which related to operational
maintenance expenditure on production systems, particularly for the Infrastructure business, which saw
growth in 2020.

Real estate-related expenditure fell from €13 million in 2019 to €3 million, which is a more normal level
for the Group after major refurbishment works in France in 2018 and 2019 and following the disposal of
real-estate assets.

Non-recurring expenditure amounted to £16.4 million, down 30% year-on-year, despite non-recurring
expenditure incurred to adjust costs in 2020 as a result of the economic background.

Because of the Covid-19 situation, the Group quickly tock the decision in the second guarter of 2020 to
adjust capacity in businesses whose underlying markets were seeing a short- and medium-term impact,
and par‘cicularly the Construction BU in France. As a result, non-recurring expenses in 2020 include €7.2
million in relation to Covid-19-related public health and restructuring measures.
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Other non-recurring expenses disbursed in 2020 broke down as follows:

> €2.7 million in relation to the building refurbishment plan, mainly in France, including €2 million
relating to vacant premises as a result of moves in previous years;

> €2.8 million in relation to the restructuring of the TI&Y back office, which was carried out in 2019.
The remaining €1 million cost of that restructuring will be disbursed in 2021 as negotiated support
plans continue;

> €0.5 million in relation to the restructuring of the back office in the Construction BU in the second
half of 2020, with the remaining €4.3 million to be disbursed in 2021;

> €1.2 million in relation to other workforce restructuring costs in other BUs, including €0.3 million in
the UK and €0.2 million in other countries;

> £0.5 million of financial due diligence costs relating to the change of sharehoider;
> €1 million of acquisition integration costs;

> €0.5 million of other non-recurring expenses.

As a result, cash flow before tax amounted 1o €114 million, up 75.6% compared wath 2019 The cash
conversion ratio icash flow / Ebitdal was 93%, compared with 54% the previous year,

Tax expense fell sharply in 2020.

The CVAE expense amounted to €6.7 million, €1.3 million lower than in 2019 because of a fall in value
added in France resulting from the sharp drop in business levels in the first lockdown, and the reduction
in the rate applied from 2020 onwards.

Income tax fell from €11.1 million in 2019 to €2.8 million in 2020, taking into account the impact of the
tax refund by the USA authorities in 2020 as part of their Covid-19 financial suppornt measures, which
had a $5.8 million positive impact for the Group's USA cperations.

Interest expense amounted to €35.7 million, of which €30 million refated to the Senior Facility
Agreement, €1.8 million to the RCF drawn in March-July 2020 to protect the Group's cash position,
€1.7 million to the USD/EUR cross-currency swap and €0.2 to bonds.

Net cash flow from operating activities theretore amounted to €66.8 million, which covered most of the
Group's acquisitions during the year.
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Expenditure on acquisitions amounted to £€76.9 million, breaking down as follows:

> Earn-out payments: €2.5 million
> Acquisitions of majority stakes in 2020: €74.5 million

The cost of acquisitions as reported in the cash flow statement does not include earn-out payments and/
or stock options held by minority shareholders at 31 December 2020, since they are contingent. Based
on 2020 performance, future obligations are measured at €70 million in total, of which €17.3 million were
certain at the end of 2020 and are included in the SFA debt presented below.

Changes in debts produced cash flow of €0.2 million, representing the balance of changes in bilateral
facilities and finance leases, and there was no change in the Group’s senior debt.

To support the Group's strategy, shareholders and managers took part in a €42 million capital increase in
2020, aimed at limiting the leverage on acquisitions made in 2020 to 3x.

At the end of 2020, the Group's available cash amounted to €78.3 million, up €29.9 million year-on-year
and representing one month of average business activity.

€ thousand 2020 2019
Cash at beginning of year 48,477 40,598
Cash at end of year 78,344 - 48,477

NET CHANGE IN CASH POSITION 29,867 12421

NET DEEBT AND BANKING COVENANTS

In July 2017, the Group refinanced its bank debt and arranged seven-year senior debt in a gross amount of
€350 million, including one €300 million tranche and one £50 million tranche. A further €75 million of debt
was arranged in November 2018 with the same maturity and two further tranches were added totalling
€318 million in July 2019. All principal on the senior debt is repayable at maturity in July 2024.

GROSS FINANCIAL DEET (769,448} {765,469)

SFA

(748,618)

Term B

Revolving credit facility .

OTHER FINANCIAL DEBT

Bends (948}

119,882)

78,344 48,477
81,524

(691,103} (716,992)

Other financial debt

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Drawings on bank facilities

Cash and cash equivalents

NET FINANCIAL DEBT

2020 Annval Report / 38 / SOCOTEC Group



Gross debt at December 31, 2020 totalled €748.6 million, breaking down as follows:

> SFA
¢ Euro tranche: £693.0 million
* Sterling tranche: €55.6 million
> Bond issue
* Principal amount: £€0.7 million
¢ Accrued interest: £€0.2 million

> Other debt and borrowings under bank facilities
» Finance leases: €2.9 million
* Other bank debt: €16.3 million including €2 million of with-recourse factoring
and €12.4 million of medium-term borrowings, mainly arising
from acquisitions. That amount includes only €4 million
of state-guaranteed loans.

At December 31, 2020, the SOCOTEC Group had a €90 million revolving credit facility secured by the
July 2017 Senicr Facility Agreement, expiring in July 2023. The RCF was fully drawn between March and
May 2020 to protect the Group's cash position as a result of Covid-19 lockdown measures in the first half
of 2020. Because of the Group’s strong cash flow during that period, the Group reimbursed all drawings
on the facility in June 2020. It drew on the facility for a second time in October and November, in a smaller
amount, to provide temperary support in relation te the acquisitions of Veritas and Cementys, before the
€42 million capital increase took place on December 15, 2020.

The Group also has bilateral facilities with its main banks to cover its working capital requirement, finance
investments and cover other requirements, in a total amount of €93.9 million from 2021,

Cash and marketable securities net of bank overdrafts totalled €78.4 million at December 31, 2020. Most
of the cash is managed through a cash pooling arrangement (and is therefore available at the level of the
holding company), gradually used across companies acquired during the year,

The Group’s consolidated net debt was therefore €691 million at the end of 2020, down €26 million year-
on-year. As regards the covenants on the SFA (Senior Facility Agreement), the leverage (net debt/Ebitda)
ratio was 5.38 at December 31, 2020, compared with 5.03 at December 31, 2019. Despite the decrease

in net debt, the leverage ratio increased slightly in 2020 because of lower adjusted proforma earnings in
2020 as a result of Covid-19.

Despite the weak economic situation in 2020, the Group did not breach its banking covenants at any point.
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The leverage ratio is calculated as follows:

€ thousand

1) BRIDGE FROM ACCOUNTING EBIT TO REPORTED MANAGEMENT EBITDA

ACCOUNTING EBIT 60,412
Transtormation costs 794
Integration costs 16
Operational impairment 20,554
Impairment of purchase price allocation 29917
Amortisation of financing costs 1,042
Earn-out 3,373
Financing costs 0
CVAE {tax on business value added) 6,481
REPORTED MANAGEMENT EBITDA 122,588

2) BRIDGE FROM REPORTED MANAGEMENT EBITDA TO EBITDA FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE SFA

REPORTED MANAGEMENT EBITDA 122,588

SAL
B&Y
Expert Habitat

SNER

Axe France

BiM in Motion

Vidaris

DPA

Piulb

CPAG 0

Tesch 304

Cementys 4,090

Veritas 4,405

Full-year impact of acquisitions 8,799 23,702
CTE/CND 409 -227
Full-year impact of disposals 409 -227
SFA ADJUSTMENTS 9,208 30,641
Ebitda for the purposes of the SFA 131,796 143,521

3) BRIDGE FROM CONSOLIDATED NET DEBT TO NET DEBT FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE 5FA

CONSOLIDATED GROSS FINANCIAL DEBT -769.,448 -765,468
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 78,344 48,477

CONSOLIDATED NET FINANCIAL DEBT 691,103 716,991
ITM earn-out -1,453

CEBl earn-out -897

C2G earn-out -1,546

Synergen earn-out -1,435

Tax credit fin connection with the C2G and Synergen earm-outs} 3,090

Tesch deferred consideration 642

Veritas deferred consideration -3.000

Ventas vendor loan -8,917

Ventas retention bonus -137

CPAG retention bonus -50

Options relating to non-controlling interasts in PSP =100

Options relating to non-contrelling interasts in BIM -2,191

TOTAL EARN-OUT ADJUSTMENTS -17,317 5,323

NET FINANCIAL DEBET FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE 5FA -708,420 -722,314

LEVERAGE RATIO

MNET FINANCIAL DEBT FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE SFA 708,420

Ebitda for the purposes of the SFA 131,796

LEVERAGE RATIO
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2019

€ thousand 2020
FRANCE 441,377 © 480,210
INTERNATIONAL 71,063 79933
UK 141,013 141,462
us 101,449 3422
ITALY 22,69 20,845
GERMANY 107,978 92,557
INTERCOMPANY ITEMS / HOLDING SOCOTEC '
SOCOTEC GESTION 15,618 -14,964
PRODUCTION 869,958 837,465 32,493
FRANCE 38,950 41,198
INTERNATIONAL 12,042 10,984
UK 11,481 12,950
us 37,397 13,485
ITALY 6,070 4,980
GERMANY 25,989 24,607
HOLDING SOCOTEC - SOCOTEC GESTION 9,301 8,178
EBITDA 122,588 120,046
FRANCE 8.8% 12.7%
INTERNATIONAL 16.9% 13.7%
UK 8.1% 9.2%
us 36.9% 36.0%
ITALY 26.7% 23.9%
GERMANY 24.1% 26.6%
HOLDING SOCOTEC - SOCOTEC GESTION (¥S. TOTAL REVENUE) 1.1% 1.0%

MARGIN
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Following partial asset transfers and organisational changes in 2018, operations in France consist of the
following business units:

> Construction & Real Estate, comprising SOCOTEC Construction, SOCOTEC Monaco, SOCOTEC
Diagnostic (previously called Expert Habitat and acquired in May 2019), SOCOTEC Immobilier Durable
{created in 2019) and BIM in Motion. Together, these entities form a division providing services to
the construction and real estate sector, ranging from testing and diagnostics to consultancy services
relating to building risk prevention, maintenance and sustainability.

> Technical Inspection & Verification (TI&V}, comprising SOCOTEC Equipements along with the
Power Services, CTE and CIS industrial inspection businesses acqu}red in 2017, and SNER, acquired
in 2019. All of these entities provide inspection services relating to technical and industrial facilities in
both the service sector and manufacturing, and therefore focus on operational issues.

> Environment & Safety, comprising SOCOTEC Environnement, PLC and AXE, with the latter acquired
in 2019. These entities provide & comprehensive service relating to environmental and health risks,
including regulatory intelligence, surveys, sampling and risk management plans.

> Training, comprising SOCOTEC Formation for industrial and service-sector clients and SOCOTEC
Formation Nucléaire for the nuclear industry.

€ thousand 2020 . 2019

CONSTRUCTION & REAL ESTATE 200,807 216,345
TECHNICAL INSPECTION & VERIFICATION 169,614 © 181,125
SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT 38,006 42,404

TRAINING 32,950

PRODUCTION 441,377 480,210 -38,823
32,173
TECHNICAL INSPECTION & VERIFICATION 15,518 20,588

CONSTRUCTION & REAL ESTATE 19,821

SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT 1,688 4,162
TRAINING 1,923 4,275
EBITDA 38,950 -36.4%

CONSTRUCTION & REAL ESTATE
TECHNICAL INSPECTION & VERIFICATION 2.1% - 11.4%
SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT 4.4% 9:8%

TRAINING
MARGIN

The Operations France division generated revenue of €441.4 million in 2020, a decrease of 8.1%, following
an increase of 7.8% in 2019. The division was particularly hard-hit in 2020 by restrictions imposed during
the first Covid-19 lockdown. The French business, after seeing revenue growth of arcund 5% in the first
two months of the year, saw revenue slump by 27% in March, 51% in April and 28% in May, mainly because
all construction sites were closed for six weeks (unlike the situation in other developed countries). Revenue
recovered close to 2019 levels from June 2020 onwards. In the pericd from June to December 2020, the
France division limited the decline in revenue te 3% (monthly data calculated on the basis of the 2020
scope for both years).
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Lower business levels had a major impact on operational profitability, with Ebitda falling 36.4% or €22.2
million, resulting in an Ebitda margin of 8.8%. Again, most of the decline happened in the period from March
to May 2020, during which Ebitda fell by €17.7 million, accounting for 80% of the annual decline.

The CONSTRUCTION & REAL ESTATE business unit saw revenue fall by 7.2% to €201 millien, compared
with growth of 10.5% in 2019 including organic growth of 5.6%.

Despite the sharp deterioration in its underlying market, as shown by a 18% fall in grants of planning
permission and a 14% drop in the number of construction projects starting in 2020, the Construction BU's
order book remained stable at €266 million at the end of 2020. In the Building Control business, which is
directly influenced by movements in underlying newbuild construction markets, the order book contracted by
only 1%, reflecting the ongoing increase in its market share.

In 2020, the Construction BU carried out major organisational and development projects that will have
significant impact going forward:

* In May 2020, il combined the asbestos surveying activities that previously took place within SOCOTEC
Construction and SOCOTEC Environnement with those of Expert Habitat, which was acquired in 2019, within
a single entity called SOCQOTEC Diagnostic. This unit, which has annual revenue of around €40 million, now
has critical mass in terms of both production capacity and geographical exposure, enabling it to address the
whole of this growing market, which will in future be buoyed by new national and European energy-efficiency
rules. In 2021, having reached critical mass, the unit will be able to deploy resources that are both consistent
for technicians and effective for clients.

¢ It has completed development of its new production [T systems for building control, BIM and SPS activities,
replacing older software. These digital tools offer native BIM and updated risk data management capabilities,
and not only allow engineers to provide enhanced value-added services to clients, but also to increase
productivity.

+ |n the second half of 2020, after deploying new business systems, SOCOTEC Construction implemented
a plan to reduce its back office staff as part of a redundancy plan that will take effect from 2021.

* |t made adjustments to its production resources in view of the predicted decline in business levels in
underlying newbuild construction markets.

* |t reorganised its development plan and its operational, marketing and tendering organisation in order
to focus on new market requirements, which will be driven by public-sector encouragement and support
for renovation and energy-efficiency projects, growth segments {logistics, telephony, public sector and
infrastructure), and new services arising from new regulations {CEE, RE 2020, IPC, AMOSE, DPE etc.).

As a result, as well as its asbestos surveying activities, which are now housed within a separate entity, the
Construction BU also has companies focusing on new market requirements, i.e. SOCOTEC Immobilier
Durable specialising in consultancy, audit and qualification services relating to building energy consumption,
BIM in Mation specialising in BIM technologies for real-estate clients, and the Worksites division specialising
in construction, renewable energy and 5G telephony projects.

In 2020, SOCOTEC's Construction & Real Estate business generated Ebitda of €19.8 million, down 38.4%
year-on-year. Half of the decline took place between March and May 2020 (€6.2 million out of an annual
decline of €12.3 million); in the rest of the year it was mainly affected by delays to the granting of planning
permission.

2020 Annval Report / 43 / SOCOTEC Group



The TECHNICAL INSPECTION & VERIFICATION business unit saw revenue fall 6.4% to €169.6 million
in 2020.

During the year, the BU sold part of CTE's unprofitable non-destructive controls business. At constant scope,
TI&V revenue fell 5%. After the aforementioned disposal, it merged CTE with SOCOTEC Power Services and
cormbined the resulting entity's operations with SNER, CIS and SOCOTEC Equipements’ technical assistance
activities to form a unit addressing the industrial inspection market with annual revenue of around €30 millicn.

During 2020, SOCOTEC Equipements started to reap the rewards of its efforts to streamline its back office,
which were completed in fate 2019. In response to the economic impact of Covid-19, SOCOTEC Equipements
continued to improve oversight over planning and production and in June, given its order book, decided to
continue hiring new staff members to take advantage of the upturn in business.

As a result, the full-year decline in revenue was less than the proforma decline in revenue between March and
May 2020 caused by Covid-19 (€15.2 miilion). Between June and December 2020, revenue in the TI&V BU
rose by 2%.

In March-May 2020, Ebitda fell €8.1 million. Profitability improved from June onwards, with Ebitda up 15%
year-on-year between June and December 2020.

The ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY business unit saw revenue fall 10.4% in 2020, wiping out the 11.4% increase
seen the previous year. That was the direct result of the Covid-19 situation, with revenue falling £€2.6 million
and Ebitda €1 million in the period from March to May 2020. Business levels recovered strongly from June
2020, driven both by work postponed during the first lockdown and the BU's commercial impetus, resulting
in order intake similar to 2019 and an order book for the coming year that was larger at end-2020 than at
end-2019.

After four consecutive years of growth, the TRAINING business unit was badly affected by Covid-19 restrictions,
which forced it to close its own training centres and reduced access to nuclear training centres for a prolonged
period lasting for five months from March 2020. During that period, revenue fell by £€6.8 millien, accounting
for 92% of the full-year decline.

In response to that situation, the Training BU made some major adjustments:

* it focused on in-house training during the first lockdown by developing digital training and e-learning tools;
* it developed digital modules for client training (blended leaming, e-learning);

s it continued to make its training capacity more flexible by increasing the outsourcing ratio;

* it developed new production tools suited to e-learning and its digitalised back office.

The Training BU also invested in setting up the first apprentice training centre in SOCOTEC's industry, which
started operating in September 2020 and will provide training to new staff members for the Group’s other
BUs in France. It also continued to market its range of outsourced training services for external clients, and
now has a strong paosition as a certified training provider on continuing professional development platforms
following reforms in 2020.

In the nuclear training business, which was also affected by reduced access to training centres and nuclear
plants during lockdown periods, the Group’s subsidiary continued its efforts to set up site schools in order to
comply with new regulatory requirements in the vast majority of its centres.
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b. International Operations

The INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS division generated revenue of €71 million and Ebitda of €12 million.
Adjusted for the disposal of the Oil & Gas inspection business, completed in June 2019, and the acquisition
of Cementys in November 2020, the division saw revenue fall by 7.7%, but its Ebitda grew by 3%.

€ thousand 2020 2009
OIL&GAS 0  55M
BELUX 12,274 ©13,301
MEA & INFRASTRUCTURE 24,693 27510
CERTIFICATION 15,017 | 15,550
OVERSEAS FRANCE 17,503 18,891
SOCOTEC INTERNATIONAL 0 . )
SOCOTEC MONITORING FRANCE 2,400
OTHER AND INTERCOMPANY ITEMS 824 -831
PRODUCTION 71,063 79,933 11.1%
OIL&GAS 0 227
BELUX 751 274
MEA & INFRASTRUCTURE 3,101 L 4272
CERTIFICATION 3,632 2,849
OVERSEAS FRANCE 3,619 3,420
SOCOTEC MONITORING FRANCE 966
SOCOTEC INTERNATIONAL 27 59
EBITDA 12,042 10,984

OIL&GAS - 41%
BELUX 6.1% 21%
MEA & INFRASTRUCTURE 12.6% 15.5%
CERTIFICATION 24.2% 18.3%
OVERSEAS FRANCE 20.7% 18.1%
SOCOTEC MONITORING FRANCE 40.3%
SOCOTEC INTERNATIONAL

MARGIN 16.9% 13.7%

The Qil & Gas business was sold in June 2019, marking the SOCOTEC Group's withdrawal from a segment
in which it lacked scale and which was defined as "non-core” in its 2020-2024 strategic plan.
Cementys, which specialises in infrastructure and construction monitoring, was acquired in late October
2020 and consolidated within the Group for the last two months of the year. In 2020 as a whole, Cemen-
tys generated revenue of £14 million and Ebitda of €5 million, representing an Ebitda margin of 35%.
Cementys is both a technology company and a services company, with five areas of expertise in
monitoring:

* Instrumentation such as fibre-optic ana loT sensors;

* Topography, including automated topographical and satellite measurements;

* Geophysical and hydro-geotechnical services including seundings in relation to soil and
underground network surveys

Civil engineering for diagnostics relating to building materials and structures

Data and geomatics-based interpretation solutions and a geolocalised data visualisation platform
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Cementys operates in various areas of infrastructure: bridges and tunnels, hydraulic, marine and river
structures, nuclear and military infrastructure, and infrastructure in the energy sector. It works in synergy
with many of the Group's other business units in France and abroad, and will generate some of its growth
by deploying its services and solutions within the Group. It will help strengthen the Group's position in risk
management, predictive maintenance and extending the lives of structures.

The Belux business provides services in Belgium and Luxembourg similar to those offered by the Construc-
tion & Real Estate and TI&V business units in France. It saw a change of management in 2019, resulting in
a gradual recovery in its TI&V business and fresh momentum in its Construction business.

The Certification BU had an exceptional year in 2020 despite Covid-19 restrictions. Its revenue was almost
unchanged and its Ebitda rose by 27%. The Certification BU's performance in 2020 was underpinned by
the resilience of its management systems business in Asia, as well as growth in energy certifications in
Japan and fluid certifications in France.

Business levels in Overseas France were affected to varying extents according to the severity and duration
of Covid-19 lockdowns on each island in 2020. The decline in revenue was limited to 7.4% despite the
highly unstable context, and Ebitda rose by almost 6% thanks to a very firm grip on expenses and localised
workforce reductions. The upturn will be driven by government measures to support ecological transition,
and will help the deployment of the construction tools developed by the Construction BU in France.

The MEAI business, comprising our activities in Africa, Morocco, Lebanon and the Middle East along
with Infrastructure activities in France, was seriously affected by Covid-19, and revenue fell almost 10%.
However, performance was firm in some countries (revenue stable in the United Arab Emirates, up 3% in
ivory Coast), while revenue collapsed by 43% in Lebanon, which was hit by both the Covid-19 crisis and a
severe recession.

The order bock remained stable and the main contracts relate to Tour F in Abidjan, lvory Coast and the
Rabat hospital in Morocco. The fall in revenue directly affected Ebitda (including a €0.6 million decline in
Lebanon), since governments in emerging-market countries did not provide any support to companies in
relation to the Covid-19 crisis.
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c. Operations UK

€ thousand 2020 2019

INFRASTRUCTURE & ENERGY 60,858 | 58,634
LABS & ANALYTICALS 19,835 - ‘ 21,392
ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY 41,192 ’ -44,350
INTERCOMPANY ITEMS / CENTRAL COSTS -4,443 4997
SOCOTEC UK (1} 117,442 . 119,389
™ (2) 7,673 7,584
4SEE (3) 3,047 3902
SAL (4) 1,565 ’ 1,061
BAY (5) 11,296 - . 9,525

PRODUCTION 141,013 141,462

INFRASTRUCTURE & ENERGY 4186 .- 2973
LABS & ANALYTICALS 1,865
ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY 2502 . 4,250 ]
SOCOTEC UK 8551 10270
IT™ 1264
4SEE 470
SAL 433
B&Y 723
EBITDA 11,441 12,990 11.9%
INFRASTRUCTURE & ENERGY 69% 51%
LABS & ANALYTICALS 94% - . 14.2%
ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY 61% - 9.46%
SOCOTEC UK 7.3% . 86%
IT™ 165% 15.2%
4SEE 15.4% 123% | (1) SOCOTEC UK March 2017
SAL 27.8% 439% | @ 1TV March 2018
BeY 4% 5% | (9 4SEE June 2018

& se A 2015
o, )
MARGIN 8.1% (el 5. 55y Apri 2019

In 2020, SOCOTEC UK showed great ability in respending to the Covid-19 situation, which was particularly
difficult in the UK, and benefited from the resilience of a large proportion of its portfolio.

The infrastructure geotechnics business was supported by ongoing major projects such as H52, Lower
Thames Crossing and Head of the Valley, which drove 3.8% growth in the Infrastructure division and a 40%
rise in Ebitda, partly as a result of renegotiated financial terms taking into account the operational impact
of Covid-19.

The Labs & Analyticals business saw revenue fall 7.3%, although there was a contrast between Material
Testing activities, which were affected by the economic conditions, and Forensics activities, which
performed well.

As regards the Environment & Safety business, difficulties accessing client sites as a result of Covid-1?
delayed the performance of regulatory services. Business levels recovered to near-normal levels in the
fourth quarter of 2020.
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As regards businesses acquired since 2017, which are now fully integrated within SOCOTEC UK, monitoring
subsidiaries (SOCOTEC Monitoring - ITM and SAL) — which offer similar services to Cementys — saw growth
in 2020, partly as a result of long-term HS2 contracts as an extension of SOCOTEC UK's long-standing
geotechnical activities.

Butler & Young, which specialises in real-estate consultancy and building control services, continued its
development.

In 2020 as a whole, SOCOTEC UK's revenue remained stable at €141 million.

Ebitda fell by 12%, with €4.2 million of the decline coming during the first lockdown between March and
June 2020. There was a very strong recovery in the second half, when Ebitda was up more than 30%
compared with 2019 due to major infrastructure contracts combined with cost controls.

-

.
- -

et e e A =
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d. Operations USA

The QPERATIONS USA division was formed following the acquisition of Vidaris on 1 August 2019. This
was the first building block of the USA platform, which was strengthened by the acquisitions of DPA in
November 2019, CPAG in January 2020 and Veritas in late September 2020, with those three entities now
part of the Dispute Resolution {DR) business.

€ thousand 2020 201%

ATIC 35,006 14,571
ETIC 18,505 13,603
DR 2442 7.902 §
VIDARIS (1) 85953 - 35476,
DPA{2) 9,684 © o 9as
CPAG (3) 3,041 '

2774
101,449
14,607 -

ETIC ages 4752
DR 12224 . 2,446
VIDARIS { 1) 3,697 13,475
DPA (2} 3976 290
CPAG (3) 750
VERITAS (4) 974

VERITAS {4)

PRODUCTION

EBITDA

ATIC 41.7% 39.99%

ETIC 26.3% 34.9%

DR 37.7% 31.0%

VIDARI5 (1) 36.9% 35.1%

DPA(2) 41.1% 30.7%

CPAG (3) 24.7% {1) Vidaris August 201%

{2) DPA December 2019

VERITAS (4) 35.1%

(3) CPAG January 2020
MARGIN 36.9% {4) Veritas October 2020

Vidaris, which had already been the subject of an LBO many years previously, has both achieved organic
growth in its original ATIC (architecture, testing, inspection and certification) business — offering consultancy
and inspection services for real estate and construction clients, particularly relating to high-rise and
complex buildings — and established a complementary DR business, set up in 2017 with two acquisitions
and supplemented in 2019 and 2020 with the acquisitions of DFA, CPAG and Veritas. The DR business line
specialises in early-stage and pre-litigation dispute resolution relating to real estate projects, as well as
providing advice and assistance to cwners and operators in relation to such projects. In the last few years,
Vidaris has also diversified into technical assistance, along with checking and calculation services relating
to industrial facilities following major incidents.

The ATIC business line is developing skills that complement those of SOCOTEC in France in the Construction
& Real Estate business unit, in the UK with Butler & Young and in Germany with Canzler.

The ETIC (engineering, testing, inspection and certification) business line is developing skills that are similar
to and round out those of the TI&V business unit in France, particularly in the nuclear sector, and with the
Infrastructure & Energy business unit in the UK, ltaly and Germany. In particular, it provides appraisal
and engineering skills relating to real estate assets and infrastructure, expert witness services relating to
incidents, materials testing, non-destructive testing, and the commissioning of industrial equipment.
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In 2020, the USA platform's revenue amounted to €101 million, with an Ebitda margin of 36.9%.

Since Vidaris was consolidated for only five months in 2019 and given the 2020 acquisitions, operational
performance is best reflected by profoerma 12-month figures at constant exchange rates.

On that basis, the USA platform’s revenue was €112.2 million, down 4.9%, and Ebitda was €41.8 million,
giving an Ebitda margin of 37.2%.

In 2020, the ATIC division’s profoerma revenue fell by 6%, affected in particular by site closures in New
York. Staff members were able to carry out a large amount of work from home, allowing business levels
to remain firm. In 2020, the Ebitda margin of activities in Massachusetts rose significantly as a result of an
acquisition made by Vidaris hefore it became part of the SOCOTEC Group, and by the recruitment of a
manager dealing specifically with the ATIC business, allowing the USA management team to focus more
on organic growth and acquisitions in line with the Group's strategy.

Revenue in the ETIC business fell 1% despite the postponement of inspection projects as a result of the
Covid-19 situation.

As regards the Dispute Resolution business — which now includes activities that were originally part of
Vidaris but also CPAG, DPA and Veritas, acquired in 2019 and 2020 - preforma revenue fell by only 1%,
with staff able to do a large amount of advisory and dispute-related work from home. Acquisitions made
in 2020 doubled the division’s revenue and increased its geographical exposure. SOCOTEC expects to
achieve synergies in terms of expertise and cross-selling in this new-look business.

Covid-19 had a significant impact in the USA between May and August, when proforma revenue fell by
9.9% and Ebitda by 8.3%, after growth of 3.8% in the first few months of the year.

The period from September to December also saw revenue contract by 9%, although profitability held up
well with Ebitda up 3.7% due to cost-cutting efforts.

The backlog remained stable on average in 2020, except in the newbuild ATIC business. In February 2021,
the backlog rose back to its pre-Covid level of February 2020.

Proforma Ebitda amounted to €41.8 million in 2020, down only 0.6% despite Covid-19. That strong
performance was due to a tight grip on costs and a 3% reduction in productive headcount starting in July
2020.

The Ebitda margin was 37.2%, supported by the strongly earnings-enhancing impact of acquisitions.
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e. Operations Italy

The OPERATIONS ITALY division generated revenue of €22.7 million 2020, representing organic growth
of 8.9% compared with 2019. SOCOTEC lItalia specialises in inspection and testing services for road, rail
and maritime infrastructure, and benefited from two major factors in 2020. Firstly, management focused
on geophysical {as opposed to gectechnical) activities, which were regarded as essential during Covid-19
lockdowns. Revenue from geophysical services rose 124%, with an average Ebitda margin higher than that
of the geotechnical business. Secondly, SOCOTEC ltalia increased its portfolio of large clients, particularly
ASPL, from which it won some major multi-year structural inspection projects. Accordingly, its headcount
rose by almost 20% during the year in order tc cope with future growth. At the end of 2020, the order book
was 50% higher than a year previously and now represents more than 80% of annual revenue.

Thanks to the contribution of geophysical activities, which generate wider margins than geotechnical
activities, and management’s firm grip on costs, Ebitda rose by 21.9% and the Ebitda margin was 26.7%,

up 3 points year-on-year.

f. Operations Germany

€ thousand 2020
ZPP 26,314
SCHOLLENEERGER 56,034
PSP 1,543
CANZLER (INCL. P&M) 21,842
PFULB 1,376
TESCH 870

PRODUCTION 107,978
ZPP 4,145
SCHOLLENBERGER 17,458
PSP 231
CANZLER (INCL. P&M) 4,351
PFULB 233
TESCH 200
SOCOTEC DEUTCHLAND HOLDING 628

EBITDA 25,989
zPP 15.8%
SCHOLLENBERGER 31.2%
PSP 14.9%
CANZLER (INCL. P&M) 19.9% 22.2% (1) ZPP October 2017
PFULB 16.9% (2) Schollenberger November 2018
TESCH 23.0% {3) PSP May 2018
MARGIN 24.1% 26.6% ) PRUID January 2020

{5) Tesch July 2020
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The OPERATIONS GERMANY division grew revenue by 16.2% to €108 million in 2020. Adjusted for the
acquisitions of Pfilb and Tesch, carried out in January and July 2020 respectively, organic growth was
14.2%.

Performance was particularly strong at ZPP, which specialises in infrastructure engineering and achieved
growth of 30%, and at Schollenberger, which specialises in infrastructure services related to bomb detection
and generated organic growth of almost 16%.

Canzler, a specialist provider of engineering services in the construction industry, offset a decline in private
tertiary-sector projects with new public sector and facilities management contracts.

Ebitda rose 5.6%, driven mainly by ZPP as a direct result of its revenue growth. Weaker Ebitda growth in
the division’s other entities was due to the end of some major high-margin projects at Schollenberger at
the end of the first half of 2020 and Canzler's increased exposure to lowermargin public-sector projects,
along with slower progress on major projects with Fraport as a result of Covid-19.

In 2020, the Group's German operations continued to set up a joint management body in charge of
governance and business development, gradually preparing to adopt the SOCOTEC brand.
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2021 Ovutloo

In 2020, the SOCOTEC Group's teams were highly motivated and showed great agility in dealing with
an unexpected and unprecedented situation. That situation prompted a determination to overcome
difficulties, to show solidarity and to focus on the Group’s main aims of organic growth, continuous
improvement in operational processes, steady generation of cash flow and constant innovation. In some
respects, the Group has been focused on the post-Covid recovery ever since early April 2020, and has
been able to develop new strengths.

For 2021, with Covid-19 still creating uncertainties both globally and in each country, SOCOTEC is
forecasting:

consolidated revenue growth of 11%;
consolidated Ebitda growth of over 32%;

fuli-year proforma revenue and Ebitda, including acquisitions zlready completed, of around
€970 million and €162 million respectively, representing growth of around 5% compared with
pre-Covid proforma figures in 2019;

> net cash flow before acguisitions equal to 50% of forecast Ebitda. That target does not take into

account the global non-recourse factoring agreement, negotiated in 2020 and effective in France
from 31 March 2021, which will be deployed across the Group’s main platforms during 2021,

Since the start of 2021, the Group has carried out a further four acquisitions: in France {52M and Innov
Formation}, in ltaly (Tecnolab) and in the USA {Helmes} in the infrastructure business. Those acquisitions
represent additional proforma revenue of €13.5 millien.

In the first quarter of 2021, the Group generated revenue of £€231.7 million and Ebitda of £31.6 million,
representing growth of 8% and 37% respectively compared with 2020 (6% and 26% on a proforma basis).

The Group will also focus on developing its CSR efforts in 2021 for the benefit of its staff members, clients,
shareholders and lenders. A 2021-2024 strategic plan will be finalised in the first half of 2021 before being
presented to the Group’s external stakeholders and staff. It will be followed by a deployment plan that
includes clear targets.

2021 will also be an important year in terms of developing our workforce, supporting the professional

development of cur staff members at a time when they need to show agility in adjusting to new business
models and the greater integration of technolegy for the benefit of our clients.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(€ thousands) 2020

income from operations

Net revenue 868,784
Change in work in progress 1,107
Total Production 869,891
Capnalised production 68
Operating grants 473
Reversals of provisions net of additions 0
Other income 2,433

TOTAL INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Operating expenses
Other external purchases
Taxes and duties

Wages and salaries
Payrcll taxes

Employee profit sharing

Depreciation and amornsation of nan-current assets

Amortisation of deferred expenses
Additions to provisions net of reversals
Other expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Financial income

Interest and other financial Income
Foreign exchange gains

Reversals of provisions net of additions

TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME

Financial expense

Interest and other financial expense
Foreign exchange losses

Additions to provisions net of reversals

TOTAL FINANCIAL EXPENSE

Non-recurring income

Reiating to operating and capital transactions

Reversals of provisions net of additions

ECURRING INCOME

Non-recwring expense

Relating to operating and capital transactions

Additions to pravisions net of reversals

TOTAL NON-RECURRING EXPENSE

NET NON-RECURRING INCOME (EXPENSE)

v
0
®
m
m
Q
)
m
-
>
x

Income tax expense

Deferred tax expense (benefit)

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME {LOSS) before goodwill amortisation

Share of income of companies accounted for under the equity method
Additions net of reversals 10 goodwill amortisation

Attributable to non-conteolling interests

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTASLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

OPERATING tNCOME

NET FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSE)

INCOME FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME (LOSS)

Earnings (loss) per share (€}

872.864

276,584
15,219
347,190
105,984
2,610

50,471

1,042
3,605 ¢
747

2019

696,177
2518
8377652]

4@
0

275,54

18,744
5,972
105509

759,444

80,840

36,261
17,281
6,622

60,164

-59,463

1,676

24,249
736

24,986

-23,310

1,751
-3,293

19

[=3

69,738

-90.544
-56
90,490
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

2020 2019
ASSETS (€ thousands) Depr., amort.
Brut and impair Net Net

Intangible assets

Patents, licences and similar assets 73,455 -31,883
Cther intangible assets 267,475 -77,383
Intangible assets in progress 4,361 -6
Goodwill 932,693 -221,668

Property, plant and equipment

Land 612

Buildings 14,988 -4,677
Plant and equipment 69,875 -45,517
Other property, plant and equipment 91,838 -56,021

Non-current financial assets

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 1,726 -1 541

Other non-current financial assets 7.21% 531

Equity-accounted investments 919

1465161 427l 102593 1010422

Inventories

Inventories of raw materials and supplies 1,857

Receivables

Trade receivables and related accounts 417,171 -34,888

Other operating receivables 68,655 -806

Deferred tax assets 27,592

Cash and marketable securities
Other marketable securities 102
Cash 81,422

596,798 35601l sL104 550516

Prepayments, accrued income and similar assets

Deferred expenses 3,732

Prepaid expenses 11,480

Clearing accounts 220
Total prepayments, accrued income and similar assets 15,431 15,431 13,488
TOTAL ASSETS 2,077,391 -474,921 1,602,470 1578,426
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2020 2019

Equity

Share capital 508,832
Share premiums 186,020
Other reserves 9,642
Consolidated reserves -354,755
Exchange differences -22,627
MNel incume (loss) attributable to owners of the parent -90,4%0
Reserves attributable to non-controlling interests 53,828
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests -86

Non-controlling interests 53,771 28,978

Provisions for contingencies and losses
Provisions for contingencies 37,441

Provisions for {osses 27,542

Total provisions for contingencies and losses 64,983 56,324

Financial debt
Other bonds 948
Bank borrowings 769,301

Other borrowings and financial debt 2.378
Deferred tax liabilities 33,841

Operating liabilities
Trade payables and related accounts 65,470
Other operating liabilities 333,210

Other financial liabilities 28,951

Total financial liabilities 1,234,098 1,178,606

Prepayments, accrued income and similar assets

Deferred income 12,996
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,602,470 1,578,426
{*) of which Retained earnings 8,241 4,420
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{€ thousands) 2020 2019

Consolidated net income -90,546
Less income {loss} of companies accounted for under the equity method -10
Depreciation, amoertisation and provisions, net 128,831
Change in deferred tax -3,293
Unrealised foreign exchange gains (losses) 16,473
Cther income and expense (gains or losses on asset disposals) 497

Capitalised accrued interest on the SOCO1 shareholder loan
Cash flow from operating activities 37,839

Decrease (increase) in the working capital requirement 7,951

I!ED

F )
(2]
~
[=]

Net cash {used in)/from operating activities 83,403

investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets -20,940
Purchases of non-current financial assets -2,043

Deferred expenses

Disposals of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,421
Disposals of non-current financial assets 0
Impact of changes in scope -72,361

Net cash {used in)/from investing activities -559,280

Financing activities

increase in share capital 42,000
Dividends received from unconsolidated companies 77
Dividends paid to nen-controlling interests -1,773
Dividends paid to parent company shareholders -0
Net change in financial receivables and liabilities 1,901
Net cash from financing activities m 500,897
Total net cash {used in)/from operating, investing and financing activities 31,684
Cther: impact of exchange differences -1,817
Change in cash 29,867
Cash pesition at beginning of period 48,477
Cash pesition at end of pericd 78,344
Resulting change in cash 29,867
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Rotes to the consolidated financial statements

General information
Highlights

Accounting policies and methods

Financial indicators not defined under French GAAP

Segment information

Financial income and expense
Non-recurring items

Income tax

Scope of consolidation
Non-current assets

Operating receivables and liabilities
Cash and marketable securities
Equity

Provisions

Financial debt

Changes in cash flows
Deferred tax

Off-balance sheet commitments

Statutory Auditors’ fees (new Article R.233-14-17 of the French Commercial Code)
Average headcount (employees on permanent and fixed-term contracts)

Events occurring after the reporting period

Related party transactions

Executive pay
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Since it was founded in 1953, SOCOTEC has built up solid and recognised expertise, which it puts to work
for its clients, helping them manage technical risks and to ensure compliance with the applicable quality,

health, safety and environmental standards and regulations.
The SOCOTEC Group has developed its skills and its business activities specifically to serve the construction,

real estate, manufacturing and energy, and infrastructure sectors.

THIS EXPERTISE S FOCUSED IN FOUR MAIN SERVICE AREAS:

¢ inspection and Measurement
s Assistance and Consultancy
¢ Training

Certification

SOCO1 and its subsidiaries together form the SOCOTEC Group, hereinafter referred to as "SOCOTEC"
or “the Group”.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

o “Note 2. Highlights

COovID

Like the entire world economy, the Group has been affected by the Covid-19 crisis since March 2020. The
pandemic is therefore regarded as a material event in 2020, and the financial statements at December 31,
2020 were established on a going concern basis.

ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS DURING THE PERIOD:

Acquisitions in 2020 were as follows:

* CPAG (Construction Project Analytics Group) specialises in project management and dispute resolution
in the construction and infrastructure sector, and is based in Maryland and Caiifornia in the USA.

* Tesch specialises in electrical and mechanical engineering work as part of construction projects. Tesch’s
business is very similar to Canzler's main business, but with a greater focus on electrical work, and so it
is an excellent fit with Canzler, which is more focused on mechanical engineering work. The acquisition
strengthens SOCOTEC's business in Berlin, where Tesch has a strong presence.

* Veritas Advisory Inc., based in Texas, is one of the largest consulting and dispute resolution firms in
the state. With a staff of 45, it is a trusted partner to its clients and has nationally recognised experts
in technical consultancy, dispute management and forensics, acting for clients located throughout the
USA and beyond.

* Cementys specialises in infrastructure monitoring. Infrastructure monitoring is necessary during the
construction and operation phases of a civil engineering structure (tunnels, dams, bridges, railways,
ports, canals etc). Its services include installing instrumentation in areas regarded as most sensitive
(either on the structure itself or on the buildings or networks around it} in order to collect and
interpret data relating to movements in particular. Services rely increasingly on connected objects and
state-of-the-art technologies, allowing users to measure construction quality and reduce risks. During
the operatioral phase, they are used to monitor structural aging and influence maintenance strategies.

Disposals in 2020 were as follows:

* CTE : part of the company's unprofitable non-destructive controls business was sold to Teneo/
Endel Engie.

CAPITAL INCREASE

To help finance acquisiticns made in 2020, SOCOTEC carried out a €42 million capital increase in
December 2020.
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lotes to the consolidated financial statements
Note 3. Accounting policies and methods

Unless otherwise indicated, the main accounting methods described below have been applied consistently
for all of the financial years presented.

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The SOCO1 Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles defined by Regulation 99-02 of the Comité de la Réglementation Comptable (CRC,
the French accounting regulations committee), which was issued on 29 April 1999 and endorsed by the
Ministerial Order of 22 June 1999.

All Group companies have been consolidated on the basis of their financial statements at 31 December
2020, the date corresponding to that of their year-end accounting close.

The balance sheets of foreign companies established outside the eurozone have been translated into
euros at the official year-end exchange rates. Their income statements have been translated at the average
exchange rates for the year.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of these financial statements are recognised in equity.

3.2 ADJUSTED OPERATING INCOME (CONSOLIDATED EBITDA)

"Operating income” as shown in the consclidated income statement represents all income and expenses
that do not result from either financing activities, equity-accounted companies or income tax, and excludes
any non-recurring income and expense.

Consolidated EBITDA, which is useful in evaluating the operating performance of each of the Group's
business units as a measure also referenced by bank financing agreements, corresponds to consolidated
operating income adjusted to exclude certain non-recurring items, depreciation and amortisation of
assets used in operations, depreciation and amortisation of assets remeasured at fair value, and deferred
expenses related to bank financing.

3.3 CONSOLIDATION METHODS

Companies over which the Group has exclusive control, whether directly or indirectly, are fully consolidated.
Exclusive control is the direct or indirect power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Investments in companies not controlled by the Group, but over which the Group has significant influence,
are accounted for under the equity method.

The list of companies making up the scope of consolidation is presented in Note 9.
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3.4 GOODWILL

Upon first-time consolidation of a company controlled exclusively, its identifiable assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value as part of the initial purchase price allocation {"initial PPA") process. The difference
between the initial measurement at fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities, as it appears on the
consolidated balance sheet, and the camrying amount of these same items in the balance sheet of the
controlled company is assigned to the relevant asset and liability item and amortised separately.

Goodwill corresponds 1o the difference between the purchase price of the investment and the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date. Goodwill is presented as a separate line item
on the balance sheet.

In the first year following the acquisition date, the purchase price allocation process applying the fair value
of assets and liabilities may lead to adjustments in the value of residual goodwill not allocated to these
items. The Group uses several criteria to determine and track changes in fair value of the property, plant
and equipment and of intangible assets and liabilities to which the purchase price was allocated at the
acquisition date. Among other considerations, the Group takes account of the specific characteristics of the
assets concerned. Intangible assets are measured on the basis of criteria relating to business operations.
Impairment losses are recognised whenever the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount in
the consolidated balance sheet. It should be noted that the identifiable assets and liabilities are measured
at their value in use or their market value depending on whether the items are required in operations.

At December 31, 2020, goodwill for SOCOTEC totalled €932.7 million and comprised mainly €264 million
in goodwill recognised during the initial PPA process after SOCO1 acquired control of Holding SOCOTEC
in 2013, and €277.1 million relating to the acquisition of SOCOTEC USA Holding. The remaining balance
of €391.6 million corresponds to goodwill arising an several other acquisitions, including:

* €73 million in goodwill related to the acquisition of ESG, after allocating the purchase price to
the identifiable assets and liabilities measured at fair value

» €59.5 million in goodwill related to the acguisition of the Schollenberger group, after allocating
the purchase price to the identifiable assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Goodwill recognised upon obtaining control of Holding SOCOTEC is amortised over 20 years. Goodwill
refating to the other acquisitions completed before 2017 is amortised over five years. Since 2017, goodwill
recognised for all acquisitions has been amortised over 10 years.
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3.5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets include the following:

* Customer relationships and brands acguired in business combinations, and in particular
the Group's acquisition of Holding SOCOTEC in February 2013, together with customer
relationships deriving from the purchase price allocation for ESG in the United Kingdom
and CIS in France.

* Purchased software and software developed in-house

Formation expenses and research costs are expensed as incurred.

In 2013, at the initial purchase price allocation for Holding SOCOTEC, the intangible assets recognised
came to £172.2 million and consisted of the following items:

* The SOCOTEC brand, with a gross value of €26.4 million, not amortised because it has an
indefinite useful life
» Custorner relationships with a gross value of €132.5 million, amortised over 22 years
s Software with a gross value of €13.3 million, amortised over eight years
Following the purchase price allocations for ESG and CIS, intangible assets recognised
in 2018 breke down as follows:
s Customer relationships at ESG with a gross value of €14.1 million, amortised over eight years
¢ Customer relationships at CIS with a gross value of €4.0 million, amortised over seven years

The purchase price allocation for Schollenberger and Vidaris was completed in 2020, leading to recognition
of the following intangible assets:

» Customer relationships at Schollenberger with a gross value of €8.7 million, amortised over
20 years

* Repeat business relationships at Schollenberger with a gross value of €2.0 million, amortised over
10 years,

* Schollenberger's brand with a gross value of €£1.9 million, amortised over five years

* Customer relationships at Vidaris with a gross value of £€93.3 million, amortised over 13 years

* Vidaris' backlog with a gross value of £11.9 million, amortised over three years

* Vidaris' brand with a gross value of €2.1 millicn, amortised over three years

Customer relationships and brands

Customer relationships and brands acquired in business combinations are recognised at fair value. The fair
value and useful life of these assets are usually determined at the acquisition date.

The amortisation expense is calculated from the acquisition date.

These intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Software

Costs relating to the purchase or development of software are recorded under assets on the basis of the
costs incurred to purchase, develop and put into service the software in guestion. These costs include
those directly attributable to the purchase or production of software during the period preceding the entry
into service of the software. They are amortised over the estimated useful life of the software, which cannot
exceed five years.

Software maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

3.6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equiprnent are measured at historical cost.

The depreciation schedules used in the individual financial statements of Group companies are applied
in the consolidated financial statements, except for real estate complexes, land and buildings that were
remeasured during the initial purchase price allocation.
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The weighting of the compenents of fair value for buildings is as follows:

e Structure: 50%
s Facade: 15%
¢ Equipment: 20%
« Fixtures and fittings: 15%

A specific depreciation schedule has been established for buildings with a fair value different from the net
carrying amount used by the company.

The depreciation of the structure component is determined on the basis of the residual period between
the depreciation end date in the company’s accounts and the date of acquisition of control, based on the
assumption that the structure is depreciated over 50 years from the building’s acquisition date.

The depreciation periods for the other components are calculated as follows:

s 25 years for facades

¢ 20 years for equipment

» 20 years for fixtures and fittings
For non-current assets other than buildings, the Group’s main companies calculate depreciation using
the straight-line or declining balance method, depending on their expected useful lives, determined in
accordance with the rules laid down for assets by the CRC. These depreciation charges are considered as
reflecting economic wear and tear.

The periods and methods used are as follows:

¢ Technical facilities, fixtures and fittings, furniture: Straight line, 10 years

* Vehicles: Straight line, 5 years

¢ Testing and office equipment: Declining balance or straight line, 4 or 5 years
+ Computer equipment: Straight line, 3 years

e Software: 1 to 3 years

3.7 PROPERTY HELD UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Property held under finance leases is restated in the consolidated financial statements. Each transaction is
recalculated by considering that the property was acquired by way of a standard repayable ioan involving
the payment of interest and that it is subject to depreciation under the same conditions as those applying
to the other buildings reported under assets.

Since 31 December 2018, no property has been held under finance leases. All properties previously
acquired under finance leases by SOCOTEC France and recorded at their residual value in the company’s
financial statements continue to be depreciated as before.

3.8 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments in unconsclidated companies are measured at historical cost, less any impairment allowances
deemed necessary.

3.9 REVENUE RECOGNITION

For the Group's main companies, the method used to measure contracts in progress at the balance sheet
date involves the recognition of revenue per contract in proportion to their stage of completion.
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Given the very large number of contracts it has in place, SOCOTEC performs an automatic calculation
of accrued income and prepayments. The stage of completion is determined on the basis of physical
progress, measured using a set of criteria (reports issued, progress of work on sites, etc.).

The Group's other companies perform this calculation manually in accordance with the progress towards
completion for each contract.

3.10 RECEIVABLES AND LIABILITIES

Receivables and liabilities are stated at nominal value. Provisions are set aside for receivables, if necessary,
based on an assessment of the risk of non-recovery and depending on their age. Receivables and liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the closing rate.

Unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in income.

3.11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

At the reporting date for the 2020 financial year, the impairment methods adopted for receivables were
as follows:
Operations France and all operating entities other than MENA and Sub-Saharan Africa:

* Receivables more than 90 days past due: 25%
* Receivables more than 180 days past due: 50%
* Receivables more than 360 days past due: 100%

MENA and Sub-Saharan Africa:

* Receivables more than 12 months past due: 50%
* Receivables more than 24 months past due: 100%

3.12 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or a liability in
the consolidated balance sheet is different from its tax base.

Deferred tax assets are recognised in consideration of their expected recovery.

For conservatism’s sake, no deferred tax has been recognised in respect of tax loss carryforwards, except
at SOCQO1, the lead company of the tax group, and at Vidaris, following its acquisition in 2019.

At SOCO1, tax losses have been capitalised for the next three years on the basis of the established
budgets, in an amount not exceeding 80% of the estimated tax losses used in 2021, 2022 and 2023,
Deferred tax assets arising on tax loss carryforwards amounted to €11.8 million at December 31, 2020.
Vidaris' deferred tax assets amounted to €9.5 million at December 31, 2020.

3.13 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are recognised at fair value. All trade payables are classified under "Trade payables and
related accounts”.
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3.14 CASH AND MARKETABLE SECURITIES

The "Cash and marketable securities” item includes cash, money market SICAVs, bank demand deposits
and other highly liquid investments with maturities not exceeding three months. Bank overdrafts are
included in financial debt.

Changes in the fair value of cash and cash equivalents are recognised in income.

3.15 PROVISIONS

Provisions for contingencies and losses are recognised when, at the balance sheet date, the Group has a
legal, contractual or constructive obligation to a third party arising from a past event where it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, with no consideration in an amount
at least equivalent to this cutflow expected to be received in return.

3.16 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Retirement benefit obligations mainly involve the statutory defined-benefit pension plans in each
country and in particular the following:

¢ Lump sums paid on retirement
e Long-service bonuses

The present value of retirement benefit obligations to be paid is determined using an actuarial approach.
The projected obligation for vested benefits at the expected retirement date is determined and a portion
thereot, known as the service cost, is attributed to each year of work. Vested benefits are calculated on the
basis of the estimated salary at retirement, pro-rated to reflect the length of service at the measurement
date compared with the length of service at retirement. The positive or negative portion of the change
in provisions caused by the vesting of benefits between the beginning and the end of the year is taken
to operating income, with the portion reflecting the discounting of the provision to present value being
recognised in financial income or expense.

Assumptions used for French companies at 31 December 2020:

= Discount rate: 0.34%

¢ Salary increase rate: 1.5%, inflation-adjusted

* Retirement age: 65 for managers, 62 for non-managers

* Staff turnover rate in line with the rules of the collective bargaining agreement applicable
to each employee

3.17 BOND ISSUE EXPENSES

In accordance with accounting regulations, bond issue expenses are charged 1o deferred expenses and
recognised over the life of the bonds.

3.18 CRITERIA APPLIED FOR THE RECOGNITION OF NON-RECURRING INCOME
AND EXPENSE

Income and expenses that arise from events clearly distinct from the ordinary activities of the Group and
its companies are recognised under non-recurring inceme and expense.

3.19 CALCULATION OF NET EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income (loss) attributable to the owners of the parent
by the appropriate number of shares.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements

. 1,Note 4. Financial indicators not defined
f‘by French GAAP

In its external communications and for the calculation of its bank covenants, the Group uses the following
financial indicators not defined by French GAAP:

» Consolidated EBITDA corresponds to the Group's operating income before the effects of income
and expenses relating to business combinations, non-recurring items adjusted for the impact of
employee profit sharing, if necessary, as well as depreciation and amortisation.

* Net financial debt comprises bank and bond debt, and restatements of finance leases for items
used in operations, less cash and marketable securities.

* The leverage ratio corresponds to net financial debt divided by pro forma consolidated EBITDA,
including the full-year impact of the year's acquisiticons.

2020 Annval Report / 70/ SOCOTEC Group



lotes to the consolidated financial statements

! é;Note 5. Segment information

g Fa

Only the breakdowns of revenue and consolidated EBITDA are presented. The information provided
the indicators monitored internatly by the Group’s management. Intercompany transactions within each
segment are eliminated from the amounts shown.

Consolidated EBITDA components for the holding companies are shown on a separate line, with the
exception of the expenses for shared service centres and division management, the costs of which are
apportioned between the divisions.
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Net financial income {expense) was an expense of £59.5 million in 2020. It consists mainly of the
“Interest and other financial expense” and “Foreign exchange losses” line items.

(€ thousands) 2020 -
Shareholder loan 0

Term Loan A 0

Term Loan B o

Interest on Term Loan B 29,991

Revolving credit facility 1,741

Acquisition facility 0

Bond Fund C 204

Bank borrowings and other financing 761

Cther financial expense 3,543

interest and other financial expense 36,261 _
Foreign exchange losses 17,281

Additions to provisions for discounting of lump sums paid

on retirement net of reversals 6,032

Additions to provisions net of reversals 591

TOTAL FINANCIAL EXPENSE 60,164 -
interest and other financial income 152

Foreign exchange gains 550

Reversals of provisions for discounting of lump sums paid on

retirement net of additions 0

Reversals of provisions net of additions 0

TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME 701 5,724
NET FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSE) -59,4463 -38,811

The net balance of foreign exchange losses breaks down as follows:

¢ Foreign exchange losses realised: €701 thousand, of which €415 theusand arising from Holding
SOCOTEC's financial transactions.

* Unrealised foreign exchange losses: €16.581 miillion, of which £16.167 million arising from
financial transactions at Holding SOCOTEC, chiefly on USA dollar-denominated receivables.

The net balance of foreign exchange gains breaks down as follows:

* Foreign exchange gains realised: €442 thousand, of which €176 thousand arising from firancial
transactions at Holding SOCOTEC.

* Unrealised foreign exchange gains: €108 thousand
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QOperations France account for the lion's share of net non-recurring items.
P g

Net non-recurring expense totalled €23.3 million in 2020.€.

Non-recurring expense came to €25 million in 2020, mainly comprising:

€13.1 million in workferce restructuring costs: primarily €6.4 million under a resourcing
adjustment plan directly related to the pandemic, €4.8 million for the final phase of the
SOCOTEC Construction reorganisation plan and €1.9 million in other non-recurring charges
attributable to other HR restructuring expenses.

£2.7 million in real estate restructuring

€1.5 million in provisions for fosses on doubtful receivables and €0.6 million in provisions for work
in progress in the USA

the change in the method used to measure France Construction's work in progress, leading to a
negative impact of £€1.4 million

the discontinuation of IT projects, leading to an impact of €0.7 million

the residual cost related to the change in shareholders during 2019 and €1 million in payroll
charges on acquisitions of bonus shares in tandem with new share ownership instruments for
managers and

€4 million in other expenses

Non-recurring income totalled €1.7 million in 2020, including €0.8 million in reversals of provisions for
the closure of subsidiaries and €0.4 million in gains on asset disposals in France and the United Kingdom.
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Rotes to the consolidated financial statements
Note 8. Income tax

In 2020, the Group recorded a tax benefit on consolidated income of €2.5 million, reflecting €1.8 million
in income tax expense and €4.3 million in deferred tax benefits

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN THE STANDARD TAX RATE AND THE

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

2020
Income {loss} before tax (22,361}
Statutory income tax rate in France 32.02%
Theoretical tax expense 7.161
Reconciliation iterns
Impact of liability method {recognition/non-recognition of deferred taxes) 3,981
Consolidated tax regime (5.681)
Impact of tax exemptions (1,011}
Impact of non-deductible interest (404}
Impact of tax credits 533 m
Impact of differences in tax rates (1,763 2
Other reconciliation items (1,274)
Effective tax 1,542
Effective tax rate 6.90%
Current tax (1,751)
Deferred tax 3,293

(1) Mainly French competitiveness and employment tax credit {CICE)
As of 1 January 2019, the French competitiveness and employment tax credit (CICE) has been replaced by a long-term reduction in
employer social security contributions with immediate effect. Businesses that have not used their full CICE before this switchover
retain the right to use it to pay income tax bill between 2019 and 2021

(2} The Group is present in jurisdictions, mainly the United Kingdom and the United States, where the tax rates are different from those

applicable in France. This line item aisc reflects the differences in tax rates in France (rate of 32.02% applicable to the Group versus

rate of 28% to subsidiaries)
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The changes that occurred in the Group's organisation chart and scope of consolidation in 2620 are
listed below:

NEWLY CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES:

Establishment of a new entity following the acquisition of CPAG assets by IBA Holding on 2 January 2020
Acquisition of Tesch shares by Canzler on 28 July 2020

Acquisition of Veritas Group Advisory shares by IBA Holding on 1 October 2020

Establishment of SOCOTEC Monitoring France on 13 October 2020

Acquisition of Cermentys shares by SOCOTEC Monitoring France on 28 October 2020. This acquisition has
brought in four consolidated companies.

COMPANIES NO LONGER CONSOLIDATED:

SOCOTEC Algérie was deconsolidated effective 1 January 2020 following the decision to liquidate the
company

SHARE CONTRIBUTION:

SOCOTEC UK Holding's shares were contributed by Holding SOCOTEC to Phoenix UK 2020 in consideration
for new Phoenix UK 2020 shares

Canzier shares were contributed by SOCOTEC International to SOCOTEC Deutschland Holding in
consideration for new SOCOTEC Deutschiand Holding shares

SMGS3 shares were contributed by Sophielux to SCCO1
MERGERS:

None.

UNIVERSAL TRANSFERS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:

All CTE's assets and liabilities were transferred to SOCOTEC Power Services on 1 November 2020
All SMGS3's assets and liabilities were transferred to SOCO1 on 24 November 2020

All Sofortech's assets and liabilities were transferred to SOCOTEC Formation on 14 December 2020
All SOCO2's assets and liabilities were transferred to SOCO1 on 29 December 2020

CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST:
Buyout by SOCOTEC Diagnostic Groupe of 25% in non-controlling interest on 9 March 2020

INTRA-GROUP TRANSFERS:

Transfer of CTE shares by Holding SOCOTEC to SOCOTEC Power Services on 30 September 2020
Transfer of Sofortech shares by SOCOTEC Diagnestic Groupe to SOCOTEC Formation on 12 November
2020

SALE TO A NON-GROUP BUYER:
Sale of a 1.6% interest in SOCOTEC Testing by SOCOTEC Deutschland Holding to the managers
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SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION OF THE SOCOTEC GROUP AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

4s5C
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CPA
CTE
CUK
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DGF
DHS
DPA
DSK
DTS
DUE
E2C
EHG
EHI
EIL

Company name

4see Cansulting (UAE)

45EE

SQCOTEL Inter Abu Dhabi Branch
SOCOTEC Africa

SOCOTEC ArBTP fex Air Habitat et Industne}
AdA UK

SOCOTEC Certification Hong Kong
SCCOTEL Cenrfication Fhilippines
AJA Singapore

SOCOTEC Certification Thailand
SOCOTEC Certification USA
SOCOTEC Certification Training

ESG Asbestos Limited

SOCOTEC Algérie SPA

SOCOTEC Antilles-Guyane

ArchEng Helding Company

SOCOTEC ASBL

Schollenberger Kampfmittelbergung GmbH Austria
AXE Marac

AXE France

SOCOTEC Gulf

SCI Bouloi Bas

Buckingham Invesugation

SOCOTEC Belgium SPRL

SCI Boulol Haut

EIM In Motion

Butler & Young Approved Inspectors Limited
Butler & Yourg Consultants Limited
Butler & Young Group Limited

Butler & Young Heldings Limited
Trenton Fire Limited

ESG Capital 1 Limited

C2G International LLC

ESG Capital 2 Limited

SCOCOTEC Calédonie

Societé de Développement BTP Maroc
CBIl Consulting LLC

CIS Certfication PTE

SOCOTEC Cwil Engineenng

Contrdle Industriel Belge SA
SOCOTEC Belgium ASBL

Canzler GmbH

Certification International Holdings INC
SOCOTEC Certification Japan
Certification Intermational Limited
Certification Intermational Philippines INC
SOCOTEC Certification Singapaore
Cementys France

Gaotys

SensOptix

Cementys Vietnam

CPAG

CTE NORDTEST

SOCOTEC Certification UK

SOCOTEC DEVELGPPEMENT
GeoFact GmbH

SCOCOTEC Deutschland Hoiding

Cavid Pattillo & Associates
Schollenberger Kampfmitte lberqung GmbH
SOCOTEC Testing GmbH

SOCOTEC Inter Dubal Branch
EXPERTISE CONCEPTION CONTROLE
Expert Habitat & Industrie Groupe
Expart Habitat & Industrie Ingenierie
ESG Investments Limited

(£ thousands)

Method % control 9 ownership Share capital 2.020
net income
FC 49.00 4900 53 87
FC 100.00 979 1 0]
FC 100.00 10000 0 -35
FC 100.00 100,00 30 102
FC 100.00 100.00 7b -4%
FC 100.00 100.00 a3 -0
FZ 100.00 10000 1 13
FC 40.00 40.00 kil -370
FC 100.00 10000 a 0
FC 100.00 74.38 100 202
FC 100.00 100.00 Q 0
FC 49.00 49.00 3 "
FC 000 97 91 0 897
EXIT 9995 99.95 17 Q
FC 100.00 100.00 55 433
FC 100.00 91.40 67,721 -0
FC 10000 100.00 0] 373
FC 100.00 78.40 35 843
FC 10000 F9.90 26 b
FC 100,00 100.00 132 584
FC 100.00 100.00 119 -30
FC 100.00 100.00 Fi 0
FC 10000 #7.91 o 13
FC 10000 100 00 132 78
FC 160 00 10000 2 -1
FC 60.00 £2.0C riY 53
FC 100.00 57 91 114 272
FC 100.00 879 v] 92
FC 100.00 37 91 106 88
FC 100.00 97 91 16 29
FC 100.00 TN 0 -7
FC 100.00 7N 115,300 5
FC 100.00 71.40 1] 5772
FC 100.00 37 91 90.372 -5
FC 100.00 100.00 37 350
FC 100 60 100.00 a7 -14
FC 100.00 ¢1.40 0 1,560
FC 100.00 G530 & 1127
FC 100.00 100.00 100 407
FC 100.00 100.00 62 14
FC 100.00 100.00 o] -754
FC 7000 F000 150 2720
EM 3992 39.92 9] o]
FC 5010 5010 74 506
FC 100.00 100.00 275 1,188
EM %9 80 46382 o 0
FC ?5.00 95.00 7 2118
FC 100 00 67.00 40 505
FC 51.00 34.17 1 -24
FC 100.00 67.00 1 72
FC 10000 &7 GO 77 4
FC 100.00 21.40 0 i
FC $00 00 10000 ] -1,541
EC 100.00 100,00 377 =77
FC 100 00 100 00 1,095 47
FC 100.00 7840 25 345
FC 100.00 100.00 29 4808
FC 100.00 91.40 Q 2,052
FC 100.00 78.40 15,390 -0
FC 7840 78 40 3 10,456
FC 100.00 100.00 G -353
FC 100.00 100.00 1 73
FC 100.00 100.00 1,600 1%
FC 100.00 100.00 313 -548
FC 100.00 TN 98,341 -1.085
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SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION OF THE SOCOTEC GROUP AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

GSL
HLD
HwWL
Ba
IEV
IHL
INF
INT
ITA
ITB
ITC
ITH
1Tl
1M
LAB
123
LFE
LFI
LUx
Maz
Ma|
MAR
MON
MTS
NDT
P20
FLC
POL
PSP
RBS
REU
SAS
SCC
SCl
sCT
Soi
SEQ
SES
SFO
SFT
5GE
SGH
5GL
SHL
SID
SLD
SM3
SMF
SNR
501
SG2
SOF
sal
SUH
TES
UiN
ULP
VAG
VHL
VI
VIH

z¢l
zPL
PP

Company name

Geotech Specialists Limited Iraland
Holding SOCOTEC

Henley Water Limited

IBA Holdings LLC

Inspicia Environmental

Inspicio Holdings Ltd
SOCOTEC Infrastructure
SOCOTEC Internationaf

ITAL SOCOTEC

SOCOTEC halia SRL
Canstryctionfit Monitaring | imted
SOCOTEC Italis Holding

Calyx Investments Limited

ITM Menitoring Limited
SQCOTEC Power Services
SOCOTEC Liban

LPI Engineering Inc

LPtIne

SOCOTEC Luxembourg SARL
SOCOTEC Madagascar
SOCOTEC Infrastructure Maroc
SGCOTEC Marce

SCCOTEC Menaco

SOCOTEC MTS Ltd. (Mauritius)
CIS Contrdle Superssion Inspection
Phoenix UK 2020

Patrick Levy Consulting
SOCOTEC Palynésie

PSF Tunnelhng Engineers
RINCENT BTF SERVICE SAS
SOCOTEC Réunion

SOCOTEC Smart Solutions

SOCOTEC CONSULTING MEDITERRANEE [SOCCCONSULT)

Synergen Consulting Internaticnal LLC
SOCOTEC Construction

SO Ingenieure

SOCOTEC Equipements

SOCOTEC Environnement.

SOCOTEC Formation

Sofortech

SOCOTEC Gestion

Environmental Scientifics Group Holdings Limited
SOCOTEC UK Limited

Environmental Scentifics Heldings Limed
SOCOTEC Immchilier Durabile
Scientifics Limited

SMGS2

SQCOTES Monitoring France

SNER Societé Novatnce d Etudes et Réalsations
SOCO

50C0o2

SOCOTEC Formation Nucleaire
SOCOTEL Certfication

SOQCOTEC UK Holding

Ingemeurbure Tesch GmbH
SOCOTEC USA Helding Inc
SOCOTEC USA Holding LP

Ventas Advisory Group

Vidans Holdings LLC

Vidans Inc

VIH Company

Waterwise Technoloy Limited

ZFP International GmbH

tauPlan GmbH

ZPF Ingenieure AG

FC Full consalidation - EM: Equity method
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£ thousands)

. . 2020
Method % contrel % ownership Share capital net income
FC 10000 97 91 o 22
FC 100.00 100.00 114,800 54,359
FC 100.00 7N 7 a
FC 100.00 9140 1,305 19
FC 100.00 97.91 O 0
FC 10000 97 91 o 0
FC 100.00 100.00 1,300 -554
FC 100.00 100.00 29,480 2,250
EM 40.00 40.00 500 0
FC 100.00 8500 7.144 2,375
FC [[eNxeq] 9/ ol a
FC 85 GO 85.00 6,543 63%
FC 10300 77N 0 o]
FC 100.00 ?7.91 0 1,330
FC 100.00 100.00 40 -337
FC $0.00 S0.00 1% -80
FC 100.00 ?1.40 0 -13
FC 100.00 21.40 9297 4,138
FC 100.00 100.00 210 142
FC 100.00 100 00 3 180
FC 100.00 100.00 44 44
FC 99.90 99.90 922 sl
FC 75.96 5 96 150 261
FC 100.00 100.00 1 26
FC 100.00 100.00 a9 380
FC 97 91 97 31 12,076 491
FC 100 00 100.00 1 75
FC 10000 100.00 38 216
FC 8600 7200 Q 144
EM 40.00 40.00 803 0
FC 100.00 100.00 50 431
FC 10000 100.00 30 9
FC 99 96 97 8% 44 28
FC 100.00 91.40 o] 3,283
FC 10000 100.00 10,000 -7 775
FC 7000 6330 25 -1
FC 100 00 100.00 8.500 £54
FC 100.00 100.00 3,600 -2,995
FC 100.00 100.00 2,000 -1,642
FC 100 00 100.00 G -40
FC 10000 100.00 1,000 -1,329
FC 100.00 9791 350 o]
FC 10000 97 21 0 579
FC 100.00 27.91 21,7192 -5
FC 100.00 10000 1 -92
FC 100.00 27.91 21 Q
FC 100.00 10000 o] -1
FC £7.00 &7.00 45,453 211
FC 100 00 10000 150 721
Holding company 0.00 100.00 508832 1.587
FC 100.00 100.00 o -8
FC 100.00 10000 300 52
FC 10000 100.00 100 400
FC 10000 97.91 47,562 -1.808
FC 10000 70.00 50 10
FC 100.00 91.40 270,356 -44,527
FC 91.40 #1.40 27511 0
FC 100,00 ©1.40 ol 368
FC 100.00 91.40 4,557 -2
FC 100.00 F1.40 27,782 8,843
FC 160.00 91.40 113,614 0
FC 100.00 ?7 91 2 q
FC 100.00 %0.00 25 0
FC 100.00 90 00 25 160
FC 70.00 90.00 200 0



Start of
Gross values financial year 1
January 2020
Gooduwill 248,341
Other intangibie essets 228,949
Intangible assets in progress 4,205
Total intangible assets 1,181,495
Land 785
Buildings 14,124
Plant and equipment 59,344
Other property, plant and equipment 80,137
Property, plant and equipment under construction 6,419
Total property, plant and equipment 160,809
Investments in unconsohdated subsdianies and afflliates 313
Investments i compar &5 acezunted for under te aqurty methed 97
Other non-current financial assets 5172
Non-current financial assets 9,220
Start of
Depreciation, amoitisation and impairment financial year 1
January 2020
Goodwill 156,830
Other intangible assets 89,884
Intangible assets in progress 3
Total intangible assets 246,721
Land -0
Buildings 3746
Flant and equipment 39675
Other property. plant and equipment 49 046
Froperty, plant and equipment under construction 0
Total property, plant and equipment 92,486
Investrnents in unconsolidated subaidiarses and affibates 1,377
Investments r fempan es acze.nted “or under *he 2guity methed
Other non-current financial assets 518
MNon-current financial assats 1,894
Start of
Net financial year 1
January 2020
Goadwill 791,511
Cther intangible assets 139,063
Intangible assets in progress 4,199
Total intangible assets 934,774
Land 785
Euwldings 10,379
Flant and equipment 19,649
Other property. plant and equipment 31,09
Property, plant and equipment under canstruction 6419
Total property, plant and equipment 68,323
investments i unconsolidated subsidianes and affil ates 1,754
I veserents a1 compan gs accourtes for aser the 3.1y retmod 717
Other non-current tinancial assets 44654
Non-current financial assets 7.325
Total net 1,010,422

Opening
correction

(=T — R e T o B |

187

-57

130

e o o O

Opening

correction

o & o & o

132

-57

75

Opening
cotrection

a o o O O

(=T = R B w ]

55

Increases

3424
3,315
6,736

410
84674
3.579
1,162

13,825

0
2,303
2,314

69,738
34,962
0
104,700

723
6,917
7,985

o]
15,624
197

13
210

Increases

69,738
-31.,540

3.315
-97,964

313
1,758
-4,406
1,162
1,799
=197
10
2290
2,104

-97.659

Decreases

¢l
-13,970
-150
-14,120
S92

Decreases

-13.7865

-13,745

-2,322

-1.783

4,105

Decreases

-205
-150
355
-192

619
-159

-5
974

=160
160

-1,48%

Change in
scope
19,886
128,812
5}
148,698
20
116
5.926
1.298

7,359
-1.363

95
1,268

Change in
scope

24

26

39
2,004
a3

2,187

Change in
Kope
19,886
128.786
o]
148,672
20
17
3921
1.215

5,173
-1,363
C

5
-1,268

152,576
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Exchange Reclassifications mﬁ:::;’:rl
differences 34, 2020

-35,533 o] 932,693

9,288 3,006 340,930

Q -3,009 4,361

44,821 3 1,277,984

-0 0 12

=75 224 14,988

S1,100 -29 £9.875

-45% 5,754 88.310

9] 4,049 3,528

-1.634 1,902 177,313

41 ) 1,726

-8 Q 919

-9 o] 7.21%

-240 0 9,864

Exchange Rodass End of finandisl

differences ssifications ylaarmher

-4,892 -7 221,668

~1,855 i3 109,266

s} s} &

-5,748 ] 330,940

o] 0 ol

-23 0 4,677

-464 =310 45,517

-365 1112 56,021

o] o] o]

854 802 106,215

-33 8] 1,541

9] ] 531

-33 0 2,072

di;:‘::g; Reclassifications a:;;.:ﬁf:

-30,641 7 711,025

-7,433 2,992 231,664

0 -3.009 4,355

-38.074 9 947,044

0 #] 612

-52 226 10,311

-633 281 24,358

-94 4.641 32.288

o -4,04% 3528

+780 1.100 71,097

9 -0 185

-8 ol 219

191 0 6,688

-208 -0 7.793

-39,061 1,091 1,025,934



€105.3 million in new goodwill was recognised in 2020, including:

* €4.1 million in respect of CPAG following its acquisition in January 2020

¢ €1.0 million in respect of Pfilb following its acquisition in January 2020

* £7.4 million in respect of SMGS3 following the buyout of minority interests in September 2020
¢ £1.1 million in respect of Ingenieurbiire Tesch following its acquisition in July 2020

£36.6 million in respect of Veritas Group Advisory following its acquisition in October 2020
€55.1 miillion in respect of Cementys following its acquisition in October 2020

€88.8 million in purchase price allocations were made in 2020, consisting of:

¢ £8.8 million for Schollenberger

* €80 million for Vidaris
For the business combinations that chiefly oceurred in 2020, the cost of the entities acquired will potentially be
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair value during the forthcoming financial year.
During the allocation period, changes to the value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
including any contingent liabilities, arising from the acquisitions recognised are accounted for by means of a
retrospective adjustment to goodwill. Once the allocation period has ended, any changes to the estimated
values of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including any contingent liabilities, are taken
to income, without any adjustment to goodwill.

The increase in intangible assets reflects the acquisition of development of software, chiefly among which:

e €5.2 million in France, including €1.9 million in intangikle assets in progress
s £0.9 million in the United Kingdom
* £0.3 million in the United States

The increase in property, plant and equipment chiefly reflects the acquisition of:
» £2.0 million in plant and eguipment in France, €4.3 million in the United Kingdom and €1.5 million

in Germany
» £1.5 million in computer equipment in France, including €1.1 million held under finance leases,

£€0.4 million in the United Kingdom and €0.3 million in Germany
¢ €1.6 million in fixtures and fittings, mainly in France

The decrease in property, plant and equipment chiefly reflects:
* The disposal of €0.8 million in plant and equipment by CTE
s The retirement of £1.4 million in plant and equipment in the United Kingdom

Depreciation and amortisation totalled €120.2 million during the year, breaking down as follows:

> £69.7 million in goodwill amortisation, breaking down as follows:

* 13,3 ME afférents au goodwill calculé lors de la prise de contréle de Holding SOCOTEC
par SOCO1 en 2013,

* €26.4 million related to goodwill calculated when Vidaris was acquired in 2019
e €7.4 million arising from the acquisition of the ESG group
* The remaining goodwill amortisation relates to the other acquisitions, including €4.9 million for
Schollenberger, €2.4 million for Dimms (SOCOTEC ltalia), €0.7 million for AJA Registrars, €0.8 million
for SNER, £0.6 million for ZPP, £€2.3 million SOCOTEC Diagnostic and €0.9 million for AXE
£0.4 million for 4SEE, €0.9 million for Butler & Young, €0.9 million for Cementys, €1 million for Veritas,
£0.5 million for DPA, €0.4 million for CPAG and €5.2 million for other acquisitions.
> €29.9 million in amortisation of fair value adjustments on assets occurring as a result of the PPA process
chiefly related to customer relationships.
> Depreciation and amortisation of assets used in operations totalling £17.4 million, mainly consisting of
€11.8 million in respect of plant and equipment and €5.6 million in respect of IT developments

> €3.2 million in depreciation of buildings
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At December 31, 2020, the breakdown of non-current assets between historical cost and purchase
price allocation was as follows:

Gross values Depreciat.ion, amortisation Net

At December 31, 2020 (€ thousands) and impairment

Goodwill 932,693 221,668 711,025 711,025
Other intangible assets 43,490 297,441 32,293 76,974 11,197 220,467 231,664
Intangible assets in progress 4,361 6 4,355 4,355
Total intangible assets 980,544 297,441 253,967 76,974 726,577 220,467 947,044
Land 461 151 3 -3 458 154 612
Buildings 12,616 2,372 5,149 -472 7,468 2,844 10,31
Plant and industrial equipment 69,875 45,517 24,358 24,358
Other property, plant and equipment 88,310 56,021 32,288 32,288
Property, plant and equipment under construction 3,528 0 3,528 3,528
Total property, plant and equipment 174,790 2,523 106,690 -475 68,099 2,998 71,097
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MR

ANALYSIS OF OPERATING RECEIVABLES BY MATURITY

The details provided below correspond to the following asset items on the balance sheet: "Trade
receivables and related accounts”, “Other operating receivables”, “Prepaid expenses” and “Deferred

fotes to the consolidated financial statements
‘Note 11. Operating receivables and liabilities

expenses”,
Sub-total Over Less than 1 110 5 years > Over
5 years year 5 years

Trade receivables and related accounts 361,481 340,292 19,944 1,244
Doubtful or disputed receivables 11,658 3,663 6,879 1,116
Debit balances and debit notes on trade accounts 3,977 3,966 3 8
Advances & payments on account to suppliers 1,413 1,151 263 0
Receivables on non-current assets and related accounts 1,712 1,707 5 1
Social security receivables 2,414 2,414 0 0
VAT receivables 24,748 24,594 154 4]
CICE {competitiveness and employment tax credit) 1,978 1,978 0 G
Miscellaneous tax receivables 2,299 2,292 7 0
Corporate income tax receivables 19.294 7,227 12,067 0
Miscellaneous tax receivables 727 727 0 0
Current account debit bzlances 1,323 1,161 163 0
Other miscellaneous recevables 8,326 4,820 3,476 30
Miscellaneous accrued income 443 91 353 0
Deferred expenses 3,732 0 3,732 0
Prepaid expenses 11,480 10,617 832 3

457,006 406,700 47,878 2,428

Total receivables

Deferred expenses relate tc issue expenses for long-term bank borrowings. These expenses are deferred over the
term of the facilities.
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ANALYSIS OF OPERATING LIABILITIES BY MATURITY

The details provided below correspond to the following liability items on the balance sheet: "Trade
payables and related accounts”, "Other operating liabilities”, *Other financial liabilities” and “Deferred
income”.

Description Sub-;c;t::r(s)ver Les;:l:n 1 1to 5 years ;;::;:
Employee profit sharing 2,622 2,622 0 o
Trade payables and related accounts 63,692 54,360 9,250 82
Liabilities on non-current assets and related accounts 1,778 1,467 310 0
Advances & payments on account received on orders 110,285 105,849 4,012 424
Credit balances and credit notes on trade accounts 16,430 15447 874 110
Employment costs 73,522 67,897 5,626 0
Social security contributions 37,327 36,544 783 0
VAT liabilities 66,406 63,695 2,313 398
Miscellaneous tax liabilities 10,099 10,003 34 0
Corporate income tax liabilities 16,017 8,639 7,379 0
Miscellaneous tax receivables 501 499 2 0
Current account credit balances 263 262 2 -0
Other miscellaneous financial liabilities 21,070 Q744 10,519 808
Accrued expenses 7,617 6,875 548 194
Deferred income 12,996 7,649 3,346 0
Total liabilities 440,626 393,550 45,060 2,016
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¥ <Motes to the consolidated financial statements
™= Note 12. Cash and marketable securities

2.
B
i

€ millions 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 81.4 50.1

MarkEtable securities -

Total 81.5 50.2

The marketable securities referred to above are money market SICAVs.
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sMotes to the consolidated financial statements
Note 13. Equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Total equity

. Non-

Share Share Net income Exchange attributable .

(€ thousands} capital  premiums Reserves toss) differences  to owners of conlrolling
th interests
e parent

Equity at December 31, 2019
after appropriation of net income 486,689 158,531 -297,932 -41,271 1,160 307,176 28,978
Increase in share capital 22,144 27,488 -0 0 0 49,633 1,871
Appropriation of net income 0 0 -41,289 41,289 0 -0 -0
Dividend payments 0 0 -0 0 0 -0 -1.773
Changes in scope 0 0 -8,054 -18 96 -7.97¢6 26,718
Cther changes G 0 14 0 0 14 -184
Corrections 0 0 2,146 0 -2,147 -0 -0
Changes in exchange differences 0 0 0 0 -21,735 -24,735 -1,843
Net income in the year ended 31 December 2020 0 0 0 -20,490 0 -90,490 -56
Equity at December 31, 2020 before 508,833 186,020 -345,115 -90,490 -22,626 236,622 53,771

appropriation of net income
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Start of

End of

financial year Reclassifica- Change in Exchange financial year

(€ thousands} January 1, Increases Pecreases tions scope differences December 31,
2020 2020

Provisions for contingencies 34525 6,313 -4,928 n§2 244 -62 36,674
Provisions for losses on completion 833 -45 0 0 0 -21 767
Provisions for retirement benefit obligations 19,541 11,397 -4,719 1,261 141 -235 27,406
Provisions for losses 1,405 51 -689 -578 0 -53 135
Total provisions for contingencies and losses 56,324 12,716 -10,335 1,265 385 37 64,983

Provisions for contingencies amounted to €65.0 millien and mainly consisted of the following:

*  £246.4 million in provisions for technical disputes, of which €23.8 million at SOCOTEC
Construction, €0.8 million in Germany and €1 million in Overseas France

¢ €34 million in provisions for employee disputes, of which £1 million at SOCOTEC Construction

and €0.7 million at Holding SOCOTEC

s £0.4 million in provisions for tax disputes, chiefly at SOCOTEC Maroc
e £6.6 million in provisions for other contingencies, of which €2.5 million at SOCOTEC Gestion,

£0.5 million at Holding SOCOTEC, £€1.1 million at SOCOTEC International, €0.4 million at

Schollenberger and €1.5 million at SOCOTEC UK Limited.

Provisions for losses on completion include €0.5 million for ZPP Ingenieure and €0.1 million for CBI

Consulting LLC.

Obligations for lump sums paid on retirement:

Obligations for lump sums paid on retirement at French companies, including those in Overseas France,
totalled €29.9 million. Of these, €11.5 million are covered by assets managed under a special external
insurance policy and the remainder by €16.4 million in provisions.
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Balance at

(€ thousands) December 31, Less than 1to 5 years > Over
1 year 5 years
2020
Shareholder loan - -
Principal - -
Accrued interest -
Bonds 948 204 - 744
Principal 744 744
Accrued interest 204 204
Bank borrowings 763,139 7,283 755,856 -
Term Loan B - principal (1) 748,618 748,618
Term Loan B- interest -
Acquisition Facility
Other (2} 14,521 7,283 7,238
Finance leases {3} 2,895 1,785 1,110
Guarantees and deposits received 87 81 6
Miscelianeous berrowings and financial debt (4) 2,379 - 2,379
Accrued interest on bank borrowings 3,165 3,165
Accrued interest on bank facilities 14 14
Total bank borrowings and facilities 772,626 12,450 759,426 750
Balance at
{€ thousands) at December Fixed rate  Floating rate
31, 2020
Shareholder loan R
Bond Fund € 948 Q4R
Bank borrowings 763,13% 12,250 750,879
Term Loan B - principal 748,618 748,618
Term Loan B- interest - -
Acquisition Facility
Other 14,521 12,260 2,261
Finance leases 2,895 2,895
Conditional advances 87 87
M scellanecus borrowings and financial debts 2,379 2,379
Accrued interest on bark borrowings 3.165 3,165
Accrued interest on bank facilities 14 14
Total bank borrowings and facilities 772,626 21,747 750,879

Note

{1} The Term Loan B consists of a €693 million and 2 £50 milhon tranche.
{2} Of the other bank barrowings, €10,583 thousand are denominated in euros, €3,901 thousand in USA dollars and €37 thousand n

Philippine peso.

{3) The finance lease liabilities include €2,842 thousand denominated in euros and €523 thousand in the Singapore dollar.

{4) Of the miscelfaneous bank borrowings, €1,043 thousand are denominated in euros, £€1,303 thousand in pound sterling and €32
theusand in Philippine peso. All the other borrowings and financial liabilities are denominated in euros.
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All the Group’s bond issues are housed by ZPP Ingenieure.

In July 2017, the Group refinanced its bank debt and arranged a seven-year senior debt facility in a
gross amount of €350 million, including ene €300 million tranche and one €50 million tranche. A further
€75 million of debt was arranged in November 2018 with the same maturity and two further tranches
amounting to €318 million were added in July 2019.

The Group's other borrowings from banks mainly comprise €4.4 million in factoring and loans at SOCOTEC
ltalia, €3.9 million at the USA subsidiaries, €2.8 million at SOCOTEC Diagrostic, and €2.6 million at
Cementys.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
® Note 16. Changes in cash flows

The cash used in investing activities reflects:

> €20.9 million in purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets relating to:
+ £3.1 million for building works, fixtures and fittings

¢ £8.1 millien in IT investments, new software solutions and tools to improve productivity and
facilitate development

e €9.3 million in purchases of items used in operations

¢ €0.4 million in purchases of other property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
> €1.4 million in disposals of other property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

> €2.0 million in purchases of non-current financial assets, mainly linked to earn-out payments and
additional amounts due in relation to CIS, SAL, Geofact and ITM.

> the €72.4 million impact of changes in scope, mainly reflecting the acquisitions of Pfiilb, Tesch, CPAG,
Veritas and Cementys
The €42.2 millicn in cash generated by financing activities reflects:

> a net increase of £1.9 million in financial receivables and liabilities
> the £1.8 million in dividend payments to non-contreliing interests

> a €42 million capital increase
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‘ é:Note 17. Deferred tax

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

{€ thousands)
Components of deferred tax: 2020 2019
Employee profit shanng for the financial year 2,622 6,956
Lump sums paid on retirement 25,489 17,205
Provisions for doubtful recewables 24,696 7.227
Provisions for contingencies and lossess -1,566 1,708
Temporary differences reversing at payment -5,700 15,388
Tax Josses recognised as assetss 45491 53,744
Fair value adjustments to customer relationships, brands, orders, net -110,971 14,116
Fair value adjustments to land and buildings, net 977 -401
Finance lease restatements -1,342 -1,178
Regulated and other provisions -3,968 6,411
Revenue recognition under completed contract methed vs. percentage 21 336 17,233
of completion method
Temporary differences linked to depreciation and amortisation 22,831 29,845
Impact of non-deductible interest 4,427 4,385
Cther -8,754 -6,560
Total components of deferred tax -29,057 90,526
Change in deferred tax: Assets Liabilities Net
Balance at 1 January 3,921 -5,700 26,221
Change in income statement during the year -3,989 7.282 3,293
Changes in scope 463 -36,831 -36,368
Reclassifications 0 -329 -329
Exchange differences -803 1,737 934
Balance at December 31, 2020 27,592 -33,841 -6,249
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Commitments given:

> Agreements:
Through the arrangement of new borrowings in February 2013, SOCOTEC France also became a
party to the Senior Facility Agreement and pledged to comply with its subseguent commitments.

> Endorsements, sureties and guarantees given:
Endorsements, sureties and guarantees given by the Group totalled £13 million in 2020, of which
£6.8 million in France, £1.2 million in the United Kingdom, £1.2 million in Morocco, €0.1 million in
Lebanon, €2.6 million in Germany, €0.4 million in Belgium and €0.7 million in ltaly.

> 2013 refinancing and various acquisitions:
The security package arranged as part of the LBO resulted in the pledge of collateral, notably in the
form of bank accounts, securities and receivables, provided by various Group companies.

> Agreement with CGI
On September 30, 2016, SOCOTEC France signed a 10-year agreement with CGl to reorganise and
modernise the Group’s IT department as part of the 2018 SOCOTEC Plan. This agreement includes a
volume commitment.
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> Financial commitments relating to investments or earn-out payments:

Some of the acquisitions carried out by SOCOTEC involve either earn-out payments or put options granted
to minority shareholders, generally senior managers of the acquired companies.

At December 31, 2020, these commitments concerned the following companies:

* |ITM in the United Kingdom

* BIM in Motion and Cementys in France

¢ ZPP, PSP and Schollenberger in Germany

e Dimms in ltaly

* CBI, C2G, Synergen, DPA, CPAG and Veritas in the United States
» SOCOTEC Certification in Singapore

Earn-out payments have been measured based on the probability of meeting the earnings target for the
period covered by the financial agreement.

Put options granted to minority shareholders have been measured in accordance with the formulae for
each option, based on earnings in 2020 rather than on forward-lacking information relating to financial
itens at the possible exercise date of each put option.

At December 31, 2020, after applying these criteria for measurement, the amount recognised by the
Group in respect of its financial commitments for equity investments and earn-cut payments was €70.8
million.

> Lease commitments:

Off-balance sheet commitments relating to property leases within the Group came to a discounted amount
of approximately €78.6 million over the 2021-2030 period and related to more than 300 sites, nearly two
thirds of which are located in France. This commitment amount corresponds to an average lease term of
3.9 years, on the basis of lease payments in 2020.

This amount reflects the extension of the main leases that are due to expire over the relevant period.

In addition, a discount rate of 4% has been applied, reflecting the average cost of debt over the year.
Off-balance sheet commitments relating to long-term vehicle leases came to & discounted amount of
approximately €6.3 million over the 2021-2030 period and related to more than 1,000 vehicles. A discount
rate of 3% was adopted. This amount excludes the vehicle fleet in France, for which lease terms are shorter
(less than 14 months).

Commitments received:

Guarantees received at December 31, 2020 amounted to €0.04 million (Germany).

> Other:

In accordance with the Comfort Letters signed on September 10th, 2020, German Law and especially Art
264 section 3 HGB and Art 264b HGB, SOCO1, as parent company of the Group, acknowledges that the
tollowing companies :

* ZPP Ingenieure AG,

¢ Schollenberger Kampfmittelbergung GmbH {Germany),
* Socotec Testing GmbH, and

* Socotec Deutschland Holding GmbH,

Are included into its consolidated financial statements, and therefore are exempted from the requirement
to disclose their individual annual firancial statements.
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% <Motes to the consolidated financial statements
{ éNote 19. Statutory Auditors' fees (Article
W’ R:.233-14-17° of the French Commercial Code)

<.

Fees relating to the statutory audit of the financial statements of consolidated entities for the year ended
following page
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Statutory Auditors’ fees shown in the Euro-aquivalent

Company 2020 income statement (statutory audit) Currency value
LOCAL CURRENCY Currency code EUROS
SOCCTEL Africa 3279785 XOF 5,000
SOCOTEC ASBL 10,000 EUR 10,060
SOCOTEC Belgium SPRL 14,000 EUR 14,000
Contrdle Industriel Belge A 10,500 EUR 10,500
SOCOTEL Belgium ASBL 17,620 EUR 17,620
AJA UK 4725 GBF 5,314
SOCOTEC Certficanon Hong Kong 36,000 HKD 4,067
SCCOTEC Certification Philippines 378,000 FHF 6,680
SCCOTEC Certification Thailand 300,000 THE 8,405
SQUOTEC Certiffration Training 50,500 THe 1,415
Certification International Limited 7,875 GEBP 8,854
SCCOTEC Certification UK 14,000 GBP 12,3711
BIM In Moticn 3,000 EUR 3,000
SOCOTEC Diagnastic {ex Expert Habitat & Industrie Ingenierie) 18,000 EUR 18,000
SOCOTEC Construction 87,000 EUR 87,000
SOCOTEC Immoblier Durable 2,500 EUR 2,500
SOCOTEC Antilles-Guyane 10,000 EUR 10,000
SOCOTEC Calédonie 947,000 XPF 7.934
SOCOTEC Madagascar 8.250.000 MGA 1.885
SCCOTEC Polynésie 901,000 XPF 7,550
SOCOTEC Réunian 8,950 EUR 8,950
SOCOTEC Environnement 22800 EUR 22,800
Schollenberger Kampimittelbergung GmbH Austria 14,000 EUR 14,000
Canzler GmbkH 29,500 EUR 2%.500
Schollenberger Kampimittelbergung GmbH 41,000 EUR 41,000
ZPP Ingenieure AG 26,000 EUR 24,000
Holding SOCOTEC 20,000 EUR 20,000
SCCOTEC International 12,500 EUR 12,500
SGCOTEC Gestion 33,006 EUR 33,000
SOCO1 140,000 EUR 140,000
SOCOTEC Civil Engineering 2,500 EUR 2,500
SGCOTEC Infrastructure 2.000 EUR 7.000
SCCOTEC Italia SRL 24,000 EUR 24,000
SOCOTEC Italia Holding 6,440 EUR 6,440
SOCOTEC Liban 14,321,250 LBF 8,263
SOCOTEC Marac 85,000 MAD 7.841
SOQCOTEC Consulting Méditerranée {Sococonsult) 50,000 MAD 4,612
SQCOTEC Power Services 30,000 EUR 30,000
CIS Contrgle Supervision Inspection 5,000 EFUR 5.000
SOCCTEC Equipements 70,500 EUR 70,500
SOCQOTEC Formation 18,000 EUR 18,000
ESG Asbestos Limited 25.500 GBP 28677
Buckingham Investigation 5775 GBP 6,495
Butler & Young Approved Inspectors Limited 13,500 GEBP 15,182
Butler & Young Consultants Limited 4,500 GEBP 5,061
Butler & Young Group Limited 3785 GBP 4,257
Butler & Young Holdings Limited 6,300 GBF 7,085
Trenten Fire Limited 8,000 GBP 8,997
Calyx investments Limited 5,775 GBF 6,495
ITM Maonitoring Limited 13,250 GBFP 14,901
Environmental Scientifics Group Haldings Limited 3,465 GBF 3.897
SOCOTEC UK Limited 82,000 GBP 92,218
SOCOTEC UK Holding 11,550 GBP 12,989
Vidaris Inc 108,424 usp 95,000
TOTAL EUR 1,077,258
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a ﬁ

Operations France

international Operations, Infrastructure
BELUX

Germany

Italy

MEA & Infrastructure

Certification

Overseas France

Monitoring
Operations UK
Operations USA

Holding company

Total average headcount

2020

AVERAGE HEADCOUNT

permanent and fixed-term contracts)

B oage b

Variation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
*Note 20. Average headcount (employees on

1,835 2,614 4,449 1,756 2,596 4,351 79 18 98
167 1,646 1,812 211 1,526 1,737 -44 120 75
15 111 126 22 114 136 -7 -3 -10

16 750 766 17 688 705 - 62 &1

4 345 3492 4 318 322 27 27

72 194 266 88 186 274 -16 8 -8

10 145 155 25 132 157 -15 13 -2

50 79 128 55 88 143 -5 -9 -15

22 22 22 22

129 1,541 1,670 127 1,383 1,510 2 158 160
95 277 372 32 106 138 63 hFal 234
151 86 237 138 85 222 13 1 15
2,377 6,164 8,540 2,264 5,696 7,958 113 4568 582

2020 Annual Report / P4 / SOCOTEC Group



Hotes to the consolidated financial statements

% Note 21. Events occurring after the
‘yeporting period

Since the start of 2021, the Group has carried out a further four acquisitions: in France (S2M and Innov

Formation), in ltaly {Tecnolab) and in the USA (Helmes) in the infrastructure business. Those acquisitions
represent additional proforma revenue of €13.5 million.

In the first half of 2021, the Group began the process of refinancing its senior debt by arranging a Term
Loan B in a total amount of €800 million (a EUR tranche of €550 million and a USD tranche of £250 million).
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€ “Notes to the consolidated financial statements

KNote 22. Related party transactions

None.
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£ “sNotes to the consolidated financial statements

i;Note 23. Executive pay

e

Information on the remuneration of corporate governance bodies has not been provided because this
would indirectly result in the disclosure of individual remuneration packages.
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